BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr

Ms. Rose Filicetti
Santa Cruz County Ms. Sandra Nichols
Office of Education Ms. Sue Roth

Mr. Dana M. Sales
Mr. Abel Sanchez
Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Regular Board Meeting

Santa Cruz County Office of Education August 16, 2018 Time:

400 Encinal Street Time: 4:00 p.m.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Tech Center
AGENDA

1.0 CALL TO ORDER,ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Bruce Van Allen (President), Jane Royer Barr, Rose Filicetti, Sandra Nichols, Sue Roth,
Dana Sales, Abel Sanchez
Michael Watkins, Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Bruce Van Allen (President) will lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence will be approved or the agenda will be approved as
submitted.

PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for the public to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda. The
Board President will recognize any member of the audience not previously placed on the agenda
who wishes to speak on a matter directly related to school business. Each speaker, on any
specific topic, may speak up to three (3) minutes unless otherwise limited or extended by the
President. The President may allot time to those wishing to speak but no action will be taken on
matters presented (E.C. Section 35145.5). If appropriate, the President, or any Member of the
Board, may direct that a matter be referred to the Superintendent’s Office for placement on a
future agenda. Please refer to item, Please Note, on the last page of this agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

All items appearing on the consent agenda are recommended actions, which are considered to be
routine in nature and will be acted upon as one motion. Specific items may be removed for
separate consideration. Item(s) removed will be considered immediately following the consent
agenda motion as Deferred Consent Items.

5.0.1 Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held on July 19, 2018

5.0.2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on July 19, 2018

5.0.3 Routine Budget Revisions

5.0.4 Treasurer’s Quarterly Investment Report, Quarter Ended June 30, 2018
5.0.5 Donations



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2
Agenda, Regular Meeting
August 16, 2018

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required)

This item is placed on the agenda to address any items that might be pulled from Agenda
Item 5.0 for further discussion/consideration if so determined.

CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence will be available for review at the meeting location.

RECOGNITIONS

7.1 Jim Howes
The Board will recognize Jim Howes, Assistant Director, Career Technical Education
Partnership (CTEP), for his over 19 years of service to the Santa Cruz County Office of
Education.

Presenter: Mark Hodges, Senior Director, Career Technical Education Partnership

PUBLIC HEARINGS/NEW BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS

8.1 Watsonville Prep School (Resolution 18-10 or Resolution 18-11)

The Board will be asked to either conditionally approve (Resolution #18-10) or deny
(Resolution #18-11) the creation of a charter school in Watsonville (Watsonville Prep
School) with a corresponding Memorandum of Understanding between the Charter
School and the County Board of Education/County Superintendent of Schools.

Call for Motion and Roll Call Vote: Bruce Van Allen (President)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

County Superintendent of Schools, Michael C. Watkins, will provide an update on activities and
matters of interest.

TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each)

Trustees will report on matters, events and activities as related to Board goals of: Advocating for
students, maintaining community relations and promoting student achievement.

AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS (if any)

ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS




Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 3
Agenda, Regular Meeting
August 16, 2018

14.0

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS

August 20, 2018
8:00 a.m.

September 6, 2018

11:00 a.m. — 1:30 p.m.

September 20, 2018
4:00 p.m.

September 27, 2018
7:45 a.m.

October 18, 2018
4:00 p.m.

October 25, 2018
7:45 a.m.

SCCOE Employee Orientation Meeting
Sequoia Schools

229 Green Valley Rd.

Freedom, CA 95019

Inside Education Kickoff Luncheon
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Inside Education — Early Years
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Inside Education - Elementary
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom

400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

16.0 ADJOURNMENT

The Board President will adjourn the meeting.

PLEASE NOTE:

Public Participation:

All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz County Board of Education. If you wish to
speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the
agenda. Persons wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board will establish a time limit of
three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the public. Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session
except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session. Expulsion appeal
hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the appellant.

Backup Documentation:

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection in the County Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, during normal
business hours.

Translation Requests:

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements with Jim Guss by telephone at (831) 466-5900.
Traducciones del inglés al espafiol y del espafiol al inglés estan disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva. Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado
con Jim Guss por teléfono al numero (831) 466-5900.

ADA Compliance:

In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cruz County Office of Education will, on request, make this agenda available in
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec
12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation tAereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who
need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the
Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., Santa Cruz, CA 95060, (831) 466-5900.




SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Consent Agenda: Special Board Meeting Minutes, July 19, 2018
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Santa Cruz County Board of Education

ACTION REQUESTED:

Board Approval

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

Consent Agenda items are recommended for approval as actions routine in nature and acted upon
as one motion. Specific items may be removed for separate consideration.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
None
CONTACT PERSON(S):

Michael Watkins, Superintendent
Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent

August 16, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr

Ms. Rose Filicetti
Santa Cruz County Ms. Sandra Nichols
Office of Education Ms. Sue Roth
Mr. Dana M. Sales
Mr. Abel Sanchez

Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Special Board Meeting
Santa Cruz County Office of Education July 19, 2018

400 Encinal Street Time: 2:30 p.m.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Board Room

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

1.0 CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Board Present Staff Present
Bruce Van Allen (President) Jim Guss
Jane Barr

Rose Filicetti

Dana Sales

Abel Sanchez
Absent

Sandra Nichols
Sue Roth

2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Bruce Van Allen (President) led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was M.S.C (Barr/Sales) to approve the agenda as submitted.

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Sales, Sanchez, VVan Allen
Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Nichols, Roth

4.0 PUBLIC COMMENT

None

5.0 INTERDISTRICT TRANSFER APPEAL HEARING

The Board held an Interdistrict Transfer Appeal Hearing concerning a student who lives in the
Scotts Valley Unified School District and requested to attend school in the San Lorenzo Valley
Unified School District. The San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District denied the Interdistrict
Transfer Request because of limited district resources and/or impaction in special education
programs. Both the family of the child and the District presented their case before the Board.



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2
Special Meeting Minutes
July 19, 2018

6.0 BOARD ACTION

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Sanchez) to deny the appeal and affirm the denial of the Request for
Interdistrict Attendance Permit to transfer to the San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District;
however, the District stated that the student will be placed on a wait list in the event that space
were to become available in special education.

Ayes: Barr, Sales, Sanchez
Nays: Filicetti, Van Allen
Abstain: None

Absent: Nichols, Roth

7.0 ADJOURNMENT

Bruce Van Allen (President) adjourned the Special meeting at 3:18 p.m.



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Consent Agenda: Regular Board Meeting Minutes, July 19, 2018
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Santa Cruz County Board of Education

ACTION REQUESTED:

Board Approval

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

Consent Agenda items are recommended for approval as actions routine in nature and acted upon
as one motion. Specific items may be removed for separate consideration.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
None
CONTACT PERSON(S):

Michael Watkins, Superintendent
Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent

August 16, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.2



©

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr
Ms. Rose Filicetti

Sant_a Cruz Coun_ty Ms. Sandra Nichols
Office of Education Ms. Sue Roth

Mr. Dana M. Sales
Mr. Abel Sanchez
Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Regular Board Meeting
Santa Cruz County Office of Education July 19, 2018

400 Encinal Street Time: 4:00 p.m.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Tech Center/Board Room

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Board Present Staff Present

Bruce Van Allen (President) Faris Sabbah

Jane Barr Mary Hart

Rose Filicetti Mary Anne James

Dana Sales Jim Guss

Abel Sanchez Lauren Soukup (Legal Counsel)
Michael Watkins (Secretary)

Board Absent

Sandra Nichols
Sue Roth (Late)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Bruce Van Allen (President) led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was M.S.C (Sales/Filicetti) to approve the Agenda.

Ayes:
Nays:
Abstain:
Absent:

Barr, Filicetti, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen
None

None

Nichols, Roth

PUBLIC COMMENT

None.

CONSENT AGENDA

5.0.1 Minutes of Special Board Meeting/Retreat held on June 1, 2018
5.0.2 Minutes of Special Board Meeting held on June 14, 2018

5.0.3 Minutes of Board Meeting held on June 21, 2018

5.0.4 Donations



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2
Regular Board Meeting
July 19, 2018

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

It was M.S.C. (Filicetti/Sales) to approve Consent Agenda items 5.0.1 and 5.0.2.

Ayes: Filicetti, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen
Nays: None

Abstain: Barr

Absent: Nichols, Roth

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Sales) to approve Consent Agenda items 5.0.3 and 5.0.4

Ayes: Barr, Filicetti, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen
Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent; Nichols, Roth

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required)

None.

CORRESPONDENCE

Trustee Filicetti passed out to the Board and the public two articles of interest: “The Brown Act
and the Perils of Electronic Communication” by Kara Ueda and “Charter Schools Damage Public
Education” by Diane Ravitch.

RECOGNITIONS

The Board recognized Rebecca Bogdan, School Nurse, Special Education, for her 20 years of
service to the COE and Mary Anne James, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services, for
her 35 years of service to education and six years of service to the COE.

Trustee Roth arrived at 4:10 p.m.

REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

8.1 Childhood Advisory Council

The Board received a presentation from Martine Watkins, Senior Community Organizer
and Diane Munoz, Coordinator, Childhood Advisory Council. The Council provides
leadership for the assessment, development and sustainability of quality early care and
education and school age recreation options in Santa Cruz County. The Council is a
state-funded commission with members appointed by the County Superintendent of
Schools and the County Board of Supervisors.

PUBLIC HEARINGS, NEW BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS

9.1 Public Hearing: Watsonville Prep School

Prior to the Board conducting the Public Hearing on the Watsonville Prep School, Mary
Anne James, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services, presented an Introduction
of Items to the Board. An Overview of Petition was then presented to the Board by
Loren Soukup, Senior Associate General Counsel, School & College Legal Services of
California.



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 3
Regular Board Meeting
July 19, 2018

10.0

11.0

12.0

Bruce Van Allen (President) addressed the Board and the Public to explain how the
Public Hearing would be conducted.

President VVan Allen opened the Public Hearing.

Kevin Sved, CEO, Navigator Charter Schools was invited to give an opening statement.
President VVan Allen then invited Michelle Rodriguez, Superintendent, Pajaro Valley
Unified School District to give an opening statement.

After the opening statements, President Van Allen opened the Hearing to hear from
teachers, employees, parents, guardians or any other member of the public who desired to
speak on this matter. The following people spoke before the Board: James Dent,
Marcela Salas-Ibara, Heather Parsons, Andrea Hernandez, Jennifer Evans, Fiaau
Ohmann, Luis Carillo, Melissa Alatorre Alnas, Maria Luisa Hernandez, Haley Saldana,
Alba Yanira Rivas, Leslie Castillo, Lupita Gallardo, Martha Denny, Sharon Waller,
Alison Stoll, Jananne Gaver, John Flaherty, Janelle Ruley, Leah Sugarman, Francisco
Rodriguez, Carlos Cruz and Crystal Prado.

Following the comments from the Public, President VVan Allen gave both Ms. Rodriguez
and Mr. Sved an opportunity to make closing remarks.

President VVan Allen closed the Public Hearing.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None.

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

County Superintended of Schools, Michael Watkins, provided an update on his activities and
matters of interest since his last report on May 17, 2018.

TRUSTEE REPORTS

Trustee Van Allen did not have a report for this reporting period.

Trustee Sales reported that the Watsonville Community Band put on a 5-Week summer camp for
children (second year in a row). He also attended the Aptos 4" of July Parade.

Trustee Barr attended a Charter School Committee Meeting.

Trustee Sanchez reported that he also attended the Charter School Committee Meeting and the
Aptos 4™ of July parade.

Trustee Filicetti advised the Board that she attended a Breaking the Glass Ballot event, a
CalTrans Barbecue, Senator Bill Monning’s K-12 Focus Group meeting here at the COE and the
retirement party for Mary Anne James.

Trustee Roth attended the Capitol Advisors Budget Workshop here at the COE, the Santa Cruz
Families March Together event and the Charter School Committee Meeting.

10



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 4
Regular Board Meeting
July 19, 2018

13.0 ADHOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS

None

140 ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS

None.

150 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS

August 16, 2018 Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
4:00 p.m. 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

August 20, 2018 SCCOE Employee Orientation Meeting

8:00 a.m. Sequoia Schools

229 Green Valley Road
Freedom, CA 95019

September 20, 2018 Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
4:00 p.m. 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060
October 18, 2018 Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
4:00 p.m. 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

16.0 ADJOURNMENT

Bruce Van Allen (President) adjourned the meeting at 6:48 p.m.

11



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Consent Agenda: Routine Budget Revisions
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Business Services/Administration

ACTION REQUESTED:

Board Approval

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD Action:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:
Detailed revisions and narrative follow this page.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

Adjusts 2018-2019 Spending Plan

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services
Rebecca Olker, Manager, Internal Business Services

August 16, 2018
12

Agenda Item #5.0.3



BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr

Ms. Rose Filicetti

Ms. Sandra Nichols

Ms. Sue Roth
e Santa Cruz County M. Abel Sancher
ety Office of Education Mir Bruce Van Allen

Michael C. Watkins, Superintendent » 400 Encinal Streetl, Santa Cruz, CA §5060 » 831-466-5600 + FAX 831-466-5607 - www.santacruzcoe.org

MEMO

DATE: August 16, 2018

TO: Santa Cruz County Board of Education
Michael C. Watkins, County Superintendent of Schools

FROM:  Mary Hart ~ |
Deputy Superintendent, Business Services
Jean Gardner
Senior Director of Fiscal Services

RE: July Budget Revisions

Budget revisions in July reflected no change in projected revenues and an increase in

expenditures in the amount of $9,139, resulting in a net decrease to fund balance of
$9,139.

The changes in budget were as a result of adjustments made to services and supplies
necessary to cover the increased cost of contracts for the year.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact us.

MH:rao
3 attachments

CC: Rebecca Olker

13



Santa Cruz County Office of Education
Budget Variance Summary for July, 2018

August 16, 2018 Board Meeting

2018-2019 201819 JULY 2018-19
Description Adopted Budget Board Meeting Unrestricted Restricted Board Meeting 08/16/18
REVENUE
Local Control Funding Formula 27,242,923 27,242,923 - - 27,242,923
Federal Revenues 7,405,876 7,405,876 - - 7,405,876
State Revenues 7,932,026 7,932,026 - - 7,932,025
Local Revenues 11,747,301 11,747,301 = - 11,747,301
TOTAL REVENUE 54,328.126 54,328,126 - - 54.328,126
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 10,967,874 10,967,874 2,103 - 10,969,977
Classified Salaries 11,221,565 11,221,565 - - 11,221,565
Employee Benefits 12,229,612 12,229,612 - - 12,229,612
Books and Supplies 3,356,296 3,356,296 (20,396} {1,217) 3,264,683
Services, Other Operating Expenses 9,188,678 9,188,678 94,631 4,017 9,287,326
Capital Outlay 698,115 698,115 - - 698,115
Other Outgo 6,624,756 6,624,756 - - 6,624,756
Interprogram Support (69,269) (69,269) - - {69,269)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 54,217 627 54,217,627 6,339 | 2,800 54,226,766
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Transfers In - - - = -
Transfers Out 45,000 45,000 - - 45,000
TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS 45,000 45,000 - - 45,000
FUND BALANCE
Beginning Fund Balance 22,520,871 22,520,871 - - 22,520,871
Net Increase/(Decrease) 65,499 65,499 (6,339) (2,800) 56,360
ENDING FUND BALANCE 22,586,369 22,586,369 {6.338)] - {2.800) 22,577,230

Pacheco Bill Compliance:

In the working budget, the Santa Cruz County Health Services Agency contract was budget for $40,000, the actual contract is for $65,000. A difference of $26,000. A budget
revision has been prepared to cover the additional cost. This contract provide services to Medicaid students and parents at Alternative School sites and throughout the county.

In the working budget, the William James contract was budget for $16,1675, the actual contract is for $32,856. A difference of $16,181. A budget revision has been
prepared to cover the 2018/19 contract. This contract provides visual, literary and performing arts instruction.

14

lofl



Budget Variance Detail for

Total State Revenues

7,932,026

7,832,028

July, 2018
August 16, 2018 Board Meeting
2018-19 Variance 2018-18 2018-18
Description {Object Code Range) Res |Program Adopted Budget Unrestricted Rastricted Board Meefing 8/16/18 Approved /1818
REVENUE
Local Control Funding Fermula {8010-8099) 27,242,923
Total Lecal Control Funding Formuta 27,242,923 - - 27,242 923 27,242,923
Federal Revenues {8100-8299) 7.405.878
Total Federal Revenues 7,405,876 - - 7406876 7405876
State Revenues (8300-8599) 7,932,026

Local Reveriues [B600-6799)

Total Local Reverues

11,747,301

11,747,301

11,747,301

11,747,301

Other Financing Sources {8900-8937)

TOTAL REVENUE 54,328,120 - - 54,328,126 54,328,128
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (8999) 22,520,871

Total Beginning Fund Balance 22 620,871 « - 22,520,871 22,520,871
TOTAL REVENUE PLUS BEGINNING BALANCE 76,848,997 - - 76,848,297 76,848,987

WEXPENDITURES

Certificated Salaries (1000-1999}
TO COVER VAPA EWA'S

Total Certificated Salaries

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

10,967,874

10,967 874

10,969,977

Books and Supplies {4000-4989)

TO COVER VAPA EWA'S

TO COVER TWO DOORS, FRAMES & HARDWARE
TO CLEAN UP BUDGET

TO COVER CONTRACT INCREASES

TO COVER FOOD SUPPLIES FOR MTSS

TO COVER COMPUTER FOR T. DUNKS

Total Books and Supplies

0030(EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

0080| EDUCATIONAL & ADMIN OPERATIONS
0611(JUVENILE COURT SUPPLEMENTAL
0620(COUNTY COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
9010|OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL
9010|0THER RESTRICTED LOCAL

3,356,296

130
6,339

(30,385)

(66,500)

Classified Salaries (2000-2999) 11,221,565

Total Classified Salaries 11,221,565 - - 11,221 565 11,221,565

Employee Benefits (3000-3989) 12,226,612

| Total Employee Bensfits 12,229612 - - 12229612 12,229,812
3,356,296

(4,017)
2,800

3,264,683

15

1of2



Budget Variance Detail for

July, 2018
August 16, 2018 Board Meeting

1 2018-19 Variance 2018-19 2018-18
Description (Object Code Range Res |Program Adopted Budget Unrestricled Restricted Board Meeting 8/16/18 Approved 8/16/18
Sarvices, Other Operating Expenses (5000-5999) 9,188,678

TO COVER VAPA EWA'S 0020[EDUCATIONAL SERVICES (2,234)

TO CLEAN UP BUDGET 0611 |JUVENILE CCURT SUPPLEMENTAL 5,365

TO COVER INCREASES IN MENTAL HLTH & WILLIAM JAMES' CONTRACTS 0620{COUNTY COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 91,500

TC COVER FOOD SUPPLIES FOR MTSS 9010|OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 4097

Total Services, Other Operating Expensas 9,189,678 94 631 4017 9,267,326 9,287,326
Capital Outiay (5000-6999) 698,115

Total Capital Cutlay 888 115 - - 698 115 698,115
Other Outge (7100-72€9, 7400-7459) 8,824,756

Total Other OQutgo 5,624 756 - - 6,624,758 § 624 756
Interprogram Suppoit Services (7300-7399) (69,269)

Total Interprogram Suppart §9,269) - - (69,2691 (69,269
Interfund Transfers Out (76007629} 45,000

Totat Infarfund Transfers Qut 45,000 - - 45,000 45,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 54,262,627 6,338 2.80D 54,271,766 54.571,766
ENDING FUND BALANCE 22,586,369 (6,339} (2,800) 22 577,230 22,577,230
Total Expenditures plus Ending Fund Balance (7599) 76,848,897 - - 76.848.997_ 76,848,997
Ending Fund Balanca Change Detail {7999): 22,686,368

TQ COVER TWO DOCRS, FRAMES & HARDWARE 0090|EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS {6,339)

TO COVER COMPUTER FOR T. DUNKS 9010|OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL (2,800)

Net Increasef{Decrease) in Ending Fund Balance

22,586,389

22,577,230

22,577,230

16

2of2



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Santa Cruz County Treasurer’s Quarterly Investment Report; Quarter Ending: June 30, 2018
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Business Services/Administration

ACTION REQUESTED:

Receive and File Report

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

The Superintendent/designee is required to provide a report of investments on a quarterly basis.
Since the SCCOE maintains all of its investments in the County Treasurer’s investment pool, the
June 30, 2018 quarterly report is provided.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

None

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services
Rebecca Olker, Manager, Internal Finance

August 16, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.4
17



Santa Cruz County Treasurer’s

Quarterly Investment Report

For the Quarter Ended
June 30, 2016

Edith Driscoll
Auditor — Controller — Treasurer - Tax Collector

18



Table of Contents

Introductory Section

Treasury Oversight Commission Members

Audit Process

Certification of Liquidity
Summary Reports

Summary of Portfolio Statistics

Portfolio Size and Composition

Portfolio Net Yield

Maturity Distribution

Credit Quality Distribution

Source of Funds

Detailed Reports

Detailed List of Investments Outstanding

Securities Activity by Broker
Accrued Interest Report
Investment By All Types Report

Miscellaneous Reports

Description of Investment Instruments

19

2
3
5-6
7
8
9
10
11
12-16
18-22
24 -26
28 - 30
31-33



TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

Chairperson: Bob Shepherd
Public Member
Alternate: Ron Sekkel

Current Members: Bruce McPherson
Member, Board of Supervisors
County of Santa Cruz

Michael Watkins

Superintendent

Santa Cruz County Office of Education
Alternate: Mary Hart

Jeff Maxwell — Vice Chairperson
Central Fire Protection District
Alternate: Angela Aitken

Chris Schiermeyer

San Lorenzo Valley School District
Alternate: Vacant

20



AUDIT PROCESS

The Santa Cruz County Treasurer’s Office is audited on an annual basis by an
outside auditor selected by the Santa Cruz County’s Audit Committee.
Additionally, all investments are audited on a regular basis by the County
Auditor as well as on a daily basis by an in-house audit process.

21



COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

EDITH DRISCOLL

- AUDITOR-CONTROLLER-TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR
701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 150, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073
POST OFFICE BOX 1817, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95061 » (831) 454-2450 « FAX (831) 454-2257

Pam Silbaugh, General Accounting Manager
Marianne Ellis, Property Tax Accounting Manager
David Zweig, Treasury-Tax-Collections Manager
Laura Bowers, Audit and Systems Manager

July 12, 2016

Board of Supervisors
County of Santa Cruz
701 Ocean Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Subject: CERTIFICATION OF LIQUIDITY

Dear Members of the Board:

This report shows the investment activity for the quarter ending June 30, 2016 of pooled funds on
deposit with the Treasurer and that it is in compliance with California Government Code Sections
27000 et seq., 53600 et seq., and the County’s 2016 Investment Policy.

Attached are summaries of the Portfolio Structure, Investment Details, Securities Activity by
Brokers, and other information to give a better understanding of the investment activity that has
occurred through June 30, 2016.

Pursuvant to Government Code § 53646(b)(3), I certify that because of the liquidity of the pool and the
county’s issuance of Teeter Notes and TRANS, the county has the ability to meet the pool’s
expenditure requirements for the next six months.

Respectfully submitted,

EDITH DRISCOLL
Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

22



SUMMARY REPORTS

1. County of Santa Cruz Portfolio Summary including:

a) Issuer

b) Type of Asset

¢) Current Value

d) Par Value

e) Market Value

f) Rate of Return

g) Purchase Date

h) Maturity Date

i) Credit Rating

j) Source of Valuation

2. Portfolio Size and Composition Report
a) Portfolio Balance Trend

b) Portfolio Composition by Type

3. Portfolio Yield
a) Net Yield History / Comparison to LAIF
b) Net Yield Trend / Comparison to LAIF

4. County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool Maturity Distribution

5. County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool Credit Quality Distribution

6. County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool Source of Funds

23



Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Portfolio
As of June 30, 2016

1SSUER BOOKVALUE  YIELD . PARVALUE . MARKETVALUE(Y o 9 o ujowen PURCHASE MATURITY CREDIT RATING

, ‘ _ =10 portrouo  DATE DATE .
LS. Treasyries |
US Treasury 14,998,83263  0.83% 15,000,000.00 15,002,5650.00  2.05% 100% 09/08/13 0711516 AA+/ Aza
US Treasury 15,008,838.23 0.77% 15,000,000.00 15,016,200.00 2.05% 100% 07/08/13 07131.0:16 AA+ | Aaa
US Treasury 14,952 686,67 0.73% 15,000,000.00 14,980,950.00 2.05% 100% 12110115 12/08/16 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 15,006,034.62 0.68% 15,000,000.00 15,024,900.00 2.05% 100% 12/08/14 011517 AA+ | Aaa
U8 Treasury 17,000,000.00 0.88% 17,000,000.00 17,042,330.00 2.33% 100% 01/10M4 0113117 AA+ | Aaa
US Treasury 10,017,010.76 0.62% 10,000,000.00 10,025,800.00 1.37% 100% 02/05/16 02/28M17 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 12,016,085,88 0.72% 12,000,000.00 12,037,560.00 1.64% 100% 11/06/15 06517 AA+ ! Aaa
US Treasury 14,980,128.40 0.92% 15,000,000.00 15,013,500.00 2.05% 100% 03/10/14 05/3117 AA+ [-Aaa
US Treasury 1495474233  1.06% 15,000,000.00 15,084,850.00  2.05% 100% 03121114 06/30/17 AA+ | Aag
US Treasury 14.986,891.80  0.08% 15,000,000.00 15,053,85000  205% 100% 12117115+ 071517 AA+/ Aaa
US Treasury 12,000,025.58 0.87% 12,000,000.00 12,053,173.85 1.64% 100% 03aMBMe 08/15/17 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,926,344.77 1.05% 15,000,000.00 15,013,500.00 2.04% 100% 12/29/14 0813117 Al [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,094,362.07 0.91% 15,000,000.00 15,059,250.00 2.05% 100% 02/08M15 101517 AA+ f Aaa
US Treasury 12,9756,156.81 0.90% 13,000,000.00 13,031,460.00 1.78% 100% 06/08/15 10/3117 AA+ f Aaa
US Treasury 15,012,424.52 0.81% 15,000,000,00 15,087,897.80 2.06% 100% 04/28/16 0173118 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,939,070.61 1.22% 15,000,000,00 15,112,500.00 2.04% 100% 12/30M15 05/15M18 AA-I- 1 Aga
Total US Tresuurias N % -
us men! cies
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 16,033,814.63 0.57% 16,000,000.00 16,037,440.00 2.18% 25% 01/03/113 08/251M6 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 13,999,748.88 0.70% 14,000,000.00 14,009,660.00 1.92% 25% 0112314 08/23/18 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 10,500,000.00 0.75% 10,500,000.00 10,509,975.00 1.44% 25% 101113 10111116 AA+ | Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Asscciatior 11,997,267.04 0.68% 12,000,000.00 12,008,180.00 1.84% 25% 12/08/14 11/28/16 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 15,000,000.00 0.75% 15,000,000.00 15,020,100.00 2.05% 25% 12/28/15 12/28/16 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank, 14,500,000.00 0.75% 14,500,000.00 14,528,855.00 1.98% 25% 0211815 0221117 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 12_,021,232.53 0.62% 12,000,000.00 12,034,320.00 1.65% 25% 01M6M5 0311017 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 15,000,618.51 0.60% 15,000,000.00 15,001,200.00 2.06% 25% 05/09/13 0412517 AA+ | Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Association 15,033,140.08 0.85% 15,000,000.00 15,066.450.00 2.06% 25% 06/06/14 0412717 AA+ | Aag
Federal Home Loan Bank 14,000,000.00 0.75% 14,000,000.00 14,018,800.00 1.92% 25% 04/23/15 09/08/17 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Association 12,027,288.38 0.81% 12,000,000.00 12,054,960.00 1.865% 25% 05/08/15 Q9727117 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 14,996,527.78 0.82% 15,000,000.00 15,032,700.00 2.05% 25% 05/21/113 112117 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 14,919,925 81 1.10% 15,000,000.00 15,026,650.00 2.04% 25% 12/24/15 oiM1218 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 11,000,000.00 1.11% 11,000,000.00 11,080,520.00 1.51% 26% 02/20/15 02/20/18 AA+ [ Ama
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. 17,000,000.00 1.05% 17,000,000.00 17,004,250,00 2.33% 25% 02/26/16 02/26M18 AA+ ] Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Association 17,000,000.00 1.20% 17,000,000.00 17,033,490.00 2.33% 25% 172715 11/28/18 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 15,140,242.70 0.87% 15,000,000.00 15,196,266.67 2.07% 25% 05/13/16 0341519 AA+ | Aaa
Federal Home Loan Morigage Corp. 10,000,000.00 1.09% 10,000,000.00 10,008,900.00 1.37% 25% 03/29/16 03/29/19 AA+.] Aaa
Federal National Morigage Association 15,000,000.00 1.20% 15,000,000.00 16,009,000.00 2.05% 26% 052316 05/2319 AA+ |/ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 13,083,861.85 1.15% 14,000,000.00 14,091,700.00 1.91% 26% 06/03/16 06/03/18 AA+ / Aaa
Total Government Aganci KA KR ) Y )

24



Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Portfolio
As of June 30, 2016

: SR E ; , % of PURCHASE MATURITY CREDITRATING
IS3UER BOOK VALUE YIELD ©  PARVALUE MARKET VALUE {1} - ALLOWED :
: . : M porrrouig * D pATE DATE &)
St
International Bank of Redevelopment 15,000,000.00 1.04% 15,000,000.00 15,139,200.00 2.05% 30% 0310216 01/02/119 AAA | Aaa
International Bank of Redevelopment 15,000,000.00 1.25% 15,000,000.00 15,004,200.00 2.06% 30% 04/28/16 04/26/19 AAA T Aaa
Toul Supteatnpal $ . G000000000 _ 1i0% S 5 W,IDA000 A T1% 3%,

Medium Term Notes

National Australia Bank 12,005,243.21 0.64% 12,000,000.00 12,004, 320.00 1.64% 10% 01/30/15 07/2516 AA- | Aa2
Australia & New Zealand Bank 10,012.991.46  1.00% 10,000,000.00 10,016,400.00 1.37% 10% 08/05/15 0tHOM7 AA- | Aa2
Berkshire Hathaway 8,056,341.77  0.76% 8,000,000.00 8,057,080.00 1.10% 10% 02/09/16 01/3117 AA [ A2 ! A+
Johnson & Johnson 11,962,193.88  1.05% 11,950,000.00 12,014,530.00 1.64% 10% 07/28M5 172417 AAA [ Aag
Johnson & Johnson 10,051,34067  1.02% 10,000,000.00 10,082,252.50 1.38% 10% 051816 03/01/18 AAA [ Aaa
Fotel Badugn Term Noton § T,000,71099  080%  § 2X T.19% 3%

Negotiable CRs

Wells Fargo Bank NA 15,000,000.00 0.80% 15,000,000.00 15,000,150.00 2.05% 10% 01/20/186 0710116 At+{P1/E1+
Wielis Fargo Bank NA 10,000,000.00  0.84% 10,000,000.00 10,001,200.00 1.37% 10% 01/b8/18 071418 Al+IP1/F1+
Nordea Bank NY 25,000,000.00  0.61% 25,000,000.00 25,004,500.00 3.42% 10% 04114118 08M2/18 Al+{P1/F1+
Toronto Dominion Bank 20,000,910.14  0.56% 20,000,000.00 20,003,222.22 2.74% 10% 05/06/16 vaf2218 Al+/P1/F1+
Tokal Negetighio Gbn [3 TO000TI0.14__ GET%  § 9.86% 3%

Checking

Bank of the West Checking 10,679,631.56  0.70% 10,679,631.56 10,679,631,58 1.48% - NA NA NR
Toi Checlng §__ Temgise ook 8 Wil 3 E e 1A% R

Money Market Mutual Funds (3) _

Bank of the West Money Market 10,000,000.00  0.27% 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 1.37% 10% NA NA NR
Migcellaneous Investments )

LAIF 38,060,158.68  0.54% 38,060,158.68 38,080,158.68 5.21% 10% NA . NA NR
Santa Cruz Auditor - Teeter 12,000,000.00  0.50% 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 1.64% NA NA NA

Yol Wincellanous rotimenis S G000t 0% %

GRAND TOTAL 730,720,192.93  0.77% 730,669,790.24 732,498,123.28  100.00%

(1) Market Value pricing obtained from Union Bank safekeeper (custodial bank).
(2) Split ratings reflect ratings from S&P and Moodys.
(3) Money Market Mutual Fund balances do not Include current month interest,

25



County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool

Porfolio 8ize and Co

sltion
As of June 30,2016 -

Monthly Balance
History , Monthly Portfolle Balance Trend
Jul-14 § 812,867,455.61 $800,000 — e
Aug-14 $ 589696.888.77 | £ grrsone
Sop-14 § 529,190,942.52 E
Oct-14 § 511,350,439.87 $750.000
Nov-14 § 534,042061.68  F  g7a5000 AN
Dac-14 § 633,187,747.70 f— / M
Jan-15 § 651,081,007.43 $700,000 7N\
Fob-15 § 634,691,208.68
Mar15 § 627,487 282.60 $675,000 N TR by P
Apr-16 $ 714,261,972.70 3630,000 ¥~ ] N\ 4
May-15 $ 709,230,154.04 $625,000 '
Jun-15 $ 686,841,783.50 4 / \ |
Jul15 § 628,299, 785,67 $800,000 N 7 N 7
Aug-15 § 565,044,785.89 $575,000 :
Sep-15 § 516,027,659.86 N\ / * /
Oct-15 § 511,905,548.50 350,000 \ 7 T 7
Nov-15 § 525,289,173.46 $525,000
Dec-15 § 641,780,561.33 —
Jan-18 § B72,648,077.70 $500,000 pr— . b D e PR
Feb-18 $ 651,972,608.52 > o b I & b
Mear-ie $ 674,307,733.66 5&"\9‘%.@! Oa'\\"o“'s""&y@ v‘*d""f ’yvﬁ%“ 0"'@0“’@6‘«@ ?‘fi‘f ‘*(
Apr18 $ 785,109,555.47
May-16 $ 753,065,280.14
Jun-18 § 719,254,948.49
6/30i2016 3i31/2018 6/30/2016 B/30/2014
LS. Treasuries 31.31% 32.73% 33.51% 36.02%
U.S. Agencles 38.20% 42.51% 42.08% 35.16%
Supranationals 4.11% 2.15% 0.00% D.00%
Money Market Fund 1.37% 0.14% 0.07% 3.88%
Commerclal Paper 0.00% © 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Negotlable CD 9.58% 7.16% 5.94% T.76%
LAIF } BOW / Other 8.31% 7.86% 7.50% 10.71%
Medium Term Note 7.13% 7.48% 10.80% 6.48%
100% 100% 100% 100%
Portfolio Composition
Medium Term
LAIF / Notes
Checking 7.13%
8.31%
U.S. Treasuries
Negotiable CD 31.31%
9.58%
Money Market
1.37%
Supranationals
4.11%
U.S. Agencies

38.20%

26



County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool
Portfolio Net Y:e!d _ ;

As of June 30, 2016
Apportionment Rate
Manth County LAIF Difference
Jul-14 0.386% 0.240% 0.15%
Aug-14 0.4106% 0.240% 0.17%
Sep-14 0.430% 0.240% 0.19%
Oct-14 0.440% 0.250% 0.19%
Nov-14 0.430% 0.250% 0.18%
Dec-14 0.404% 0.250% 0.15%
Jan-15 0.450% 0.260% 0.19%
Feb-15 0.547% 0.260% 0.29%
Mar-15 0.497% 0.260% 0.24%
Apr-15 0.470% 0.280% 0.19%
May-15 0.502% 0.280% 0.22%
Jun-15 0.578% 0.280% 0.30%
Juk15 0.592% 0.320% 0.27%
Aug-15 0.620% 0.320% 0.30%
Sep-15 0.656% 0.320% 0.34%
Oct-15 0.595% 0.370% 0.23%
Nov-15 0.599% 0.370% 0.23%
Dec-15 0.562% 0.370% "0.19%
Jan-16 0.658% 0.460% 0.20%
Feb-16 0.686% 0.460% 0.23%
Mar-16 0.683% 0.460% 0.22%
Apr-16 0.683% 0.550% 0.13%
May-16 0.716% 0.550% 0.17%
Jun-16 0.769% 0.550% 0.22%
Net Yield Trend
1.00% T
0.30%
|
| 0.50% N
~ v
0.40% ,
e et
| 0.20%
0.00% T 7 T T T T T v T T
) \J L) H ] \] 5 ] 5 ] L) o
5 Al X N N N N I N N N [
: 2 A g ’ o A ! R !
W & Qp“ N ¢§\ o Q_o" A “S‘

27




. County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool

Maturity Distribution
__ As of June 30, 2016
/307201 ‘ _

5.71%] . 6.95%) 5.40% 11.32%
28.00%| 37.78%| 20.%% 9.37%
15.86% 8.256%| 26.16% 39.21%

A —E e
377 365' zﬁéﬂ :ﬁ
e 1 aeel 4 .88

35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
‘ 15.00%
10.00%

5.00%

0.00% -

Portfolio Maturity Distribution

1 Day "Z2to 90 ) 91 to 360 361 to 720

l__ I_'—_I | =

721+

28




e L s cmm Quality msii-is'i.&an

Money Market LAIF /

I Checking Unrated
3% 6%

A1+/P1 F1+
10%
AAA | AA+
7%
AATA
4%

..+ MarketValue o s s R L n S
Rating o {sml) 3!30!2016 3!31!2018 613012015 6/30/2014
AAA | AA+* $ 561 77% 79% 77% 72%
AA $ 30 4% 6% 8% 5%
A $ - 0% 0% 1% 0%
A1+ /P1/F1+ $ 70 10% 7% 6% 8%
Checking $ 11 2% 1% 2% 2%
Money Market $ 10 1% 0% 0% 4%
LAIF / Unrated $ 50 7% 7% 5% 9%
Total Portfolio Value $ 732 100% 100% 100% 100%

* The AAA / AA+ category includes securities rated Aaa / AAA and Aaa / AA+

29




County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool

- Source of Funds
__As of June 30, 2016
Special
County Districts
39.96% 11.66%

Schools

47.86%

© BI30r2046 ; 3012018 63072014

County 39.96% 45.4_-_9% 48.64%
, Districts T8 12.22% 12.97%]
Schools 47.86% 41.85% 38.38%
Clties ' 0.5% __0.04% 6.61%
Total 100% 100% 100%)

30




DETAILED LIST OF INVESTMENTS OUTSTANDING

As of June 30, 2016

REPORT DESCRIPTION

The Detailed List of Investments Outstanding lists active investments in the portfolio on a
specific date providing information on the market values, book values, interest rates and
yields. It is arranged so that the securities of the same type are grouped together. What follows
is a description of the abbreviations used in the report.

CUSIP - The CUSIP number is a 9-character alphanumeric code which identifies a North
American financial security for the purposes of facilitating clearing and settlement of trades.

INVESTMENT NUMBER - This is a unique system-generated number assigned to the
security. Assigned by the County for internal identification purposes.

ISSUER — The issuer named is the name of the institution which issued the bond.
PURCHASE DATE — This is the date on which the security was purchased.

PAR VALUE — The nominal or face vale of a bond. This is the amount that will be received
at maturity with accrued interest. It is also the amount that is used in calculating the interest
received on the bond.

MARKET VALUE — Market value is the dollar amount the security could have been sold for
on the report date. By comparing this number.to the book value one is able to determine what,
if any, loss or gain we would realize if we were to sell the bond in the open market.

BOOK VALUE - The original cost for each investment adjusted for amortization of
premiums or accretions of discounts to the date of the report. Amortizations and accretions
are calculated on a straight line basis.

STATED RATE — In most cases this is the coupon rate (rate of interest) set on a bond at the
issue date by the issuer. If the security has no coupon (discount note, UST Bill or CP) then

the stated rate is the yield to maturity on the date that the bond is purchased. The stated rate is
not intended for comparing yields between different investments because the item may have

been purchased at a discount or premijum to par.

YTM — This is the Yield to Maturity. This is what the yield will be on the bond if it is held to
maturity.

DAYS TO MATURITY - This is the number of days remaining between the report date and
the maturity date.

MATURITY DATE — The maturity date is the date when a bond matures. On the maturity
date an issuer of a security will pay the holder of the security the par value plus any accrued
interest earned on the security from the date of last distribution.

31



Santa Cruz County
Quarterly Reports

Portfolio Management
Portfolio Summary

June 30, 2016
Par Market Book % of Days to YTM YTM
Investments Value Value Value Portfolio Term Maturity 360 Equiv. 365 Equiv.
U.8. Treasury Notes/ Bonds 214,000,000.00 214,588,921.65 213,804,948.71 20,69 875 342 - 0875 0.887
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 279,000,000.00 279,771,396.567 279,133,768.18 3877 287 495 0.873 0.885
Medium Term Notes 51,950,000.00 52,174,592.50 52,088,110.09 7.23 672 380 0883 0.806
Negotiable CDs 70,000,000.00 70,000,072.22 70,000,910.14 8.72 135 32 0.659 0.6685
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 167 M 30 0.493 0.500
Local Agency Investment Fund {LAIF) 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68 5.29 1 1 0.542 0.550
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing 15,000,000.00 14,980,950,00 14,952,666.67 2,08 384 160 0.724 0.734
Supranationals 30,000,000.00 30,233,400.00 30,000,000.00 4.17 1,086 972 1.129 1.145
Meney Market Mutuai Funds 02 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 1.39 1 1 0.266 0.270
720,010,158.68 721,818,491.72 720,040,561.37 100.00% 761 368 0.829 0.840
Investments
Total Earnings June 30 Period Ending Fiscal Year Ending
Current Year 1,504,794.72 4,822 845.86
Average Daily Balance 745,889,670.36
Effective Rate of Return 0.81%
Santa Cruz County Treasurér,
Reporting period 04/01/2016-06/30/2016 Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 ) ] NLIAC
Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35 No fiscal year history available PM (PRF_PM1)7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2

32



Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments

June 30, 2016

Page 1

Purchase Stated YTM  YTM Daysto Maturity
CUsSIP Investment # Issuer Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate 360 365 Maturity Date
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828VL1 22109 US Treasury N/B 09/09/2013 15,000,000.00 15,002,550.00 14,098,83283 0625  0.819 0.831 14 0715/2016
8128280QX1 22106 US Treasury N/B 07/09/2013 15,000,000.00 16,018,200.00 15,008,836.23 1.600 0762 0773 30 O07/31/2018
912828A81 22144 US Treasury N/B 12/08/2014 15,000,000.00 15,024,900.00 16,006,034.62 0.750 0.666 0675 198 01/15/2017
912828SC5 22125 US Treasury N/B 01/10/2014 17,000,000.00 17,042,330.00 17,000,000.00 0875  0.863 0.875 214 01/31/2017
9128285.J0 22183 US Treasury N/B 02/05/2018 10,000,000.00 10,025,800.00 10,017,010.76 0.875 0609 0617 242 02/28/2017
912828WHQ 22170 US Treasury N/B 11/08/2015 12,000,000.00 12,037,560.00 12,016,085.88 0.875 0710 Q720 318 05/5/2017
912828SY7 22130 US Treasury N/B 03/10/2014 15,000,000.00 15,013,500.00 14,960,128.40 0.625 0908 0821 334 05/31/2017
812828T8B6 22132 US Treasury N/B 03/21/2014 15,000,000.00 15,034,650.00 14,854,742.33 0.750 1.044 1059 384 06/30/2017
912828WT3 22178 US Treasury N/B 121712015 15,000,000.00 15,053,850.00 14,986,891 .69 0.875 0947  0.950 379 071812017
912828049 22188 US Treasury N/B 03/16/2016 12,000,000.00 12,063,173.85 12,009,025.59 0.875 0.860. 0.872 410 03M15/2017
912828TM2 22148 US Treasury N/B 12/29/2014 15,000,000.00 15,013,500.00 14,925,344.77 0.825 1.038  1.054 426 08/31/2017
912828F54 22153 US Treasury N/B 02/09/2015 15,000,000.00 15,059,250.00 14,984,362.07 0.875 0892 0.905 471 10M15/2017
912828TW0 22185 US Treasury N/B 06/08/2015 13,000,000.00 13,031,460.00 12,975,156.61 0.750 0.883 0885 487 10/31/2017
912828P20 22192 US Treasury N/B 04/28/2016 15,000,000.00 15,067 ,697.80 15,012,424.52 0.750 0802 0813 579 01/31/2018
912828XA3 22180 US Treasury N/B . 12/30/2015 15,000,000.00 15,112,500.00 14,930,070.61 1.000 1204 1.221 683 05/15/2018

Subtotal and Average 221,409,280.27 214,000,000.00 214,588,921.65 213,804,946.71 0.875 0.887 342

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
31FTEACWT 22080 Fed.Home Loan Mtg.Corp 01/03/2013 16,000,000.00 16,037 ,440.00 16,033,91463  2.000 0562 0.570 55 08/25/2018
3133EDES7 22128 Federal Farm Credit Bank 01/23/2014 14,000,000.00 14,009,660.00 13,999,748.88 0.680 0.688 0698 B84 09/23/2016
3133ED4S8 22114 Federal Farm Credit Bank 10/11/2013 10,500,000.00 10,609,975.00 10,500,000.00 0.750 0.740 0750 102 10M1/2016
3136G07ES 22143 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 12/08/2014 12,000,000.00 12,008,160.00 11,997,267.04 0.625 0.672 0881 150 11/28/2016
J130A6XGT 22178 Federal Home Loan Bank 12/28/2015 15,000,000.00 15,020,100.00 15,000,000.00 0.750 0740 0.750 180 12/28/2016
3130A4CY6 22154 Federal Home Loan Bank 02/18/2015 14,500,000.00 14,528,855.00 14,500,000.00 0750 0740 0750 235 02/21/207
3133782N0 22148 Federal Home Loan Bank 011162015 12,000,000.00 12,034,320.00 12,021,232.56 0.875 0609 0817 252 031072017
3133ECMM3 22096 Federal Farm Credit Bank 05/09/2013 15,000,000.00 15,001,200.00 15,000,618.51 0.600 0.587 0.595 208 04/25/2017
3135G0JA2 22135 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 08/06/2014 15,000,000.00 15,066.450.00 15,033,140.06 1125 0841 0852 300 04/27/2017
313380EC7 22160 Federal Home Loan Bank 04/23/2015 14,000,000.00 14,018,800.00 14,000,000.00 0.750 0.740 0.750 434 09/08/2017
3135G0ZL0 22163 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 05/06/2015 12,000,000.00 12,054,960.00 12,027,288.36 1.000 0.803 0814 453 09/27/2017
3134G44F2 22099 Fed.Home Loan Mig.Corp 05/21/2013 15,000,000.00 15,032,700.00 14,996,527.78 0.800 0.806 0817 508 11/21/2017
3137EADNG 2177 Fed.Home Loan Mtg.Corp 12424/2015 15,000,000.00 16,025,650.00 14,919,925.81 0.750 1.080 1104 5§60 01/12/2018
3133EEQMS 22155 Federal Farm Credit Bank 02/20/2015 11,000,000.00 11,080,520.00 11,000,000.00 1.110 1.085 1110 599 02/20/2018
3134G8Lo8 22188 Fed.Home Loan Mig.Corp 02/26/2018 17,000,000.00 17,004,250.00 17,000,000.00 1.050 1.036 1.050 805 02/26/2018
3136G2SX6 22172 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 11/27/2015 17,000,000.00 17,033,400.00 17,000,000.00 1.200 1.184  1.200 880 11/28/2018
J130ATL37 22194 Federal Home Loan Bank 05/13/2016 15,000,000.00 15,196,266.67 15,140,242.70 1.250 0958 0972 987 03/15/2018
31é4G8TK5 22189 Fed.Home Loan Mtg.Corp 03/29/2016 10,000,000.00 10,009,900.00 10,000,000.00 1.250 1.233 1.250 1,001 03/29/201%

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35

Run Date: 077152016 - 08:35

33

Portfolio SCRZ
NL! AC

PM (PRF_PM2) 7.2.0

Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Investments

Page 2

Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35

34

June 30, 2016
7 Average Purchase o Stated YTM YTM Daysto Maturity

CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value  Rate 360 365 Maturity Date
Federal Agency lssues - Coupon
3136G3aNAY 22196 Federal National Mort, Assac. 05/23/2018 15,000,000.00 15,009,000.00 15,000,000.00  1.200 1.184 1.200 1,056 05/23/2019
3133EGCA1 22197 Federal Farm Credit Bank 08/03/2016 14,000,000.00 - 14,091,700.00 13,963,861.85  1.080 1.134 1150 1,067 06/03/2019

Subtotal and Average 284,676,160.62 279,000,000.00 279,771,396.67 279,133,768.18 0873 0.885 485
Medium Term Notes
63254AAG3 22150 Nat.Australia Bank 01/30/2015 12,000,000.00 12,004,320.00 12,005,243.21 1.300 0.632 0840 24 07/25/20186
05253.JAE1 22168 Australia & New Zealand Bank 08/05/2015 10,000,000.00 10,016,400.00 10,012,991.46 1.250 0.986 1.000 183 01/10/2017
084670BD9 22184 Berkshire Hathaway (nc 02/00/2018 8,000,000.00 8,057,080.00 8,056,341.77 1900 0750 0.760 214 01/31/2017
478160BL7 22187 Johnson & Johnson 07/28/2015 11,950,000.00 12,014,530.00 11,962,193.88  1.125 1.036. 1.050 508 11/21/2017
478160BR4 22195 Johnson & Johnson 05/18/2016 10,000,000.00 10,082,262.50 10,051,340.67 1.125. 1.007 1.021 973 03/01/2019

Subtotal and Average 50,438,618.29 51,950,000.00 52,174,592.50 52,088,110.99 0.883 0.896 380
Negotiable CDs
94088EP28 22182 Wells Fargo Bank NA 01/20/2018 15,000,000.00 15,000,150.00 15,000,000.00 0.790 0790  0.801 0 07/01/2018
94988EN79 22181 Wells Fargo Securities LLC 01/08/2016 10,000,000.00 10,001,200.00 10,000,000.00 0.830 0.830 0.842 13 0714/2016
B65558LPNG 22190 Nordea Bank 04/14/2018 25,000,000,00 25,004,500.00 25,000,000.00 0.600 0.600 0.608 42 081212018
80113E7TM2 22193 Toronto Dominion Bank 05/06/2016 20,000,000,00 20,003,222.22 20,000,910.14 0.560 0.550 0.558 52 08/22/2016

Subtotal and Average 76,368,785.66 70,000,000.00 70,009,072.22 70,000,910.14 0.659 0.668 32
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan
§Y522198 22198 Santa Cruz County Auditor 06/30/2016 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00  0.500 0.493 0.500 30 07/31/2016

Subtotal and Average 131,868.13 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00 0.493 0.500 .30
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
8YSe501 6501 LAIF {General Fund) 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68 0.850 0.542 0.550 1

Subtotal and Average 44,218,995.68 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68 0.542 0.550 1
Union Bank Activity - Dividend
8Ys2111 21111 Union Bank 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.260 0.256 0.260 1

Subtotal and Average 3.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000 0.000 1]
Federal Agency Dis¢. -Amortizing

Subtotal and Average 6,854,665.71

Poartfolic SCRZ

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 NL! AC

PM (PRF_PM2)7.2.0



Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2016

Page 3

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35
Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35

35

Average Purchase Stated YTM YTM Days to Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value  Rate 360 365 Maturity Dats
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing
g12798HUG 22174 US Treasury Bilt 12/10/2015 15,000,000.00 14,980,950.00 14,952,666.67 0.710 0.724 0.734 160 12/08/2016
Subtotal and Average 14,939,354.17 15,000,000.00 14,980,950.00 14,952,666.67 0.724 0.734 160
Supranatlonals
45905UVD3 22187 Int Bank of Recon & Redev 03/02/2018 15,000,000.00 15,139,200.00 15,000,000.00 1.040 1.026 1.040 9186 01/02/2019
459068FC2 22191 int Bank of Recon & Redev Q42612016 15,000,000.00 15,084,200.00 15,000,000.00 1.250 1.233 1,250 1,029 04/26/2019
Subtotal and Average 25,879,120.88 30,000,000.00 30,233,400.00 30,000,000.00 1129 1145 972
. Money Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21923 Bank of the West 03/18/2009 10,000,000,00 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 0.270 0.266 0.270 1
Subtotal and Average 20,472,817.52 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 0.266 0.270 1
Total and Average 745,889,670.37 720,010,158.88 721,818,491.72 720,040,561.37 0.829 0.840 368
Portfolio SCRZ

NL!AC
PM (PRF_PM2) 7.2.0



SECURITIES ACTIVITY
BY BROKER

A Report on the

Investment Transactions by Broker-Dealer
For the Period Indicated

36



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report

Sorted By Dealer
April 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016

Par Value

Santa Cruz County

Par Value
Percent Beginning  Current  Transactlon Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cusip Investment # issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawais Balance
Dealer: Bank of the West
Money_Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21023 Bank of the West 0.270 132,001,435.03 123,002,015.71
Subtotal and Balance 1,000,530.68 132,001,435.03 123,002,015.71 10,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotaf 1.389% 1,000,580.68 132,001,435.03 123,002,015.71 10,000,000.00
Dealer: Cantor, Fitzgeral L.P. )
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
Subtotal and Balance 18,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 2.083% 16,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer: Citigroup Global Mar
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 24,500,000.00 24,500,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 5.488% 39,500,000.00 0.00 0.00 38,500,000.00
Dealer: Citigroup
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3133834R9 22098 Federal Home Loan Bank 0.375  06/24/2016 0.00 10,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 10,000,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00 0.00
Dealer Subtotal 0.000% 10,000,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00 0.00
Dealer: Jeffries & Company, INC
Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 NLI AC

Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35

37

DA {PRF_DAY7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Activity Report Page 2
April 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016

Par Value. kb
Percent Beginning  Current Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
CUSIP Investment # Issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Dealer: Jeffries & Company, INC
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828RM4 22081 US Treasury N/B 1000  06/13/2016 0.00 15,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 72,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 57,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3135GOCM3 22086 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 1250  0B8/20/2016 0.00 10,000,000.00
3130ATLI7 22184 Federal Home Loan Bank 1.250 05/13/2016 15,000,006.00 - 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 64,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 69,000,000.00
Federal Agency Disc. -Amortizing
313384XE4 22179 FHLE Disc 0510  05/23/2016 0.00 12,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 12,000,000.00 0.00 12,000,000.00 0.00
Dealer Subtotal 17.500% 143,000,000.00 ) 15,000,000.00 37,000,000.00 126,000,000.00
Dealer: Keybang Capital Mark
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 i 15,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3136G3NA9 22198 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 1.200  05/23/2016 16,000,000,00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance ‘ 32,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0.00 . 47,000,000.00
Medium Term Notes
Subtotal and Balance . 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 9.722% 55,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0.00 70,000,000.00
Dealer: LAIF {General Fund) ~
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
8Y86501 6501 LAIF (General Fund) 0.550 51,060,158.68 60,048,247 11
Subtotal and Balance 47,048,247 11 51,060,158.63 60,048,247.11 38,060,158.68
Dealer Subtotal 5.286% 47,048,247 11 51,060,158.68 60,048,247.11 38,080,158.68
Portiolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 NL!AC
Run Date: 07156/2016 - 08:35 DA (PRF_DA) 7.2.0

Report Ver. 7,3.2

38



Quarterly Reports
Activity Report Page 3
April 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016

__ Par Value : ... Par Value SO
Percent Beginning  Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cusiP Investment # Issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Deater: Multi-Bank Secutities Inc
Supranationals
459058FC2 22191 Int Bank of Recon & Redev 1.250  04/26/2016 15,000,000.00 0.00 ]
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 - 15,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 2.083% 0.00 15,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer: Morgan Stanley Smith
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
Subtotal and Balance : 15,000,000.00 N 15,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3136G04A6 22068 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 1.000  05/21/2016 0.00 15,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 486,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 31,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 6.389% 61,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 46,000,000.00
Dealer: Prebon
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 41,000,000.00 41,000,000.00
Medium Term Notes
478160BR4 22195 Johnson & Johnson 1125  05M8/2016 10,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 10,000,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00
Negotiable CDs
869580751 22185 Svenska Handelsbanken NY 0560  08/06/2016 0.00 25,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 25,000,000.00 0.00 25,000,000.00 0.00
Dealer Subtotal 7.083% 66,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 §1,000,000.00
Dealer: Royal Bank Canada Capital Mrkt
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828P20 22192 US Treasury N/B 0.750 04/28/20186 15,000,000.00 0.00

Portfolio SCRZ

NL!AC
DA (PRF_DA)7.2.0
Repart Ver. 7.3.2

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35
Run Date: 0711572016 - 08:35

39



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report Page 4
April 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016
. Par Valye Lol L
Percent Bagianing Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
CUsIP Investment # Issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Subtotal and Balance 24,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0.00 39,000,000.00
Nagotiable CDs
65558LPN6 22180 Nordea Bank 0.600  04/M4/2016 25,000,000.00 0.00
89113E7M2 22193 . Toronto Dominion Bank ) 0.560  05/06/2016 20,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 45,000,000.00 0.00 45,000,000.00
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
‘Dealer Subtotal  13.750% 39,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 0.00 99,000,000.00
Dealer: Royal Bank of Canada
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 2.083% 15,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer: SANTA CRUZ COUNTY
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan
§YS221988 22198 Santa Cruz County Auditor 0.500  08/30/2016 12,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 12,000,000.00 0.00 12,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 1.667% 0.00 12,000,000.00 0.00 12,000,000.00
Dealer: Stifel Nicolaus & Co
U.5. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
Subtotal and Balance 43,000,000.00 43,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
I130A4ZV7 22162 " Federal Home Loan Bank 0.750 04/28/2016 0.00 15,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 38,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 23,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 9.167% 81,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 66,000,000.00
Dealer: Union Bank
Portfolic SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 NLIAC

Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35

40

DA (PRF_DA}7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report Page 5
April 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016
[Par Value . Par Value
Percent Beginning  Current ° Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
CUsIP Investment # lssuer of Portfollo . Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Dealer: Union.Bank
Union Bank Actlvity - Dividend
3Ysz21111 2111 Union Bank 0.260 23.14 23.14
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 23.14 2314 0.00
Dealer Subtotal 0.000% 0.00 23.14 23.14 0.00
Dealer: Wells Fargo Institutional Sec
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 14,500,000.00 14,500,000.00
Medium Term Notes
037833AH3 22161 Apple Ing D.450  05/03/2016 0.00 10,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 22,000,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00 12,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 3.681% 36,500,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00 26,500,000.00
Dealer: Wells Fargo Securities LLC
Federal Agency issues - Coupon
3133EGCA1 22197 Federat Farm Credit Bank 1.060  DB/03/2016 14,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 14,000,000.00 , 0.00 29,000,000.00
Medium Term Notes
Subtotal and Balance 21,850,000.00 21,950,000.00
Negotiable CDs
Subtotal and Balance 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00
Supranationals
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal  12.632% 76,950,000.00 14,000,000.00 0.00 90,950,000.00
Total 100.000% 690,998,827.79 324,061,616.85 295,050,285.96 720,010,158.68
Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 NL! AC
Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35 DA [PRF_DA}7.2.0
Report Ver, 7.3.2

41



ACCRUED INTEREST REPORT

For Period

April 1, 2016 through June 30, 2016

REPORT DESCRIPTION

The Accrued Interest Report shows the amount of interest earned, but not yet received, for
each active investment within the portfolio. Within the date range, the report displays the
amount of interest accrued as of the report beginning date, the amount of interest earned
during the reporting period, the amount of interest recorded as received, and the ending
accrued interest. What follows is a description of the report’s headings.

ISSUER - Issuer is the name of the institution which issued the investment.

INVESTMENT NUMBER - The investment number is a unique number that identifies the
investment position.

SECURITY TYPE — This heading is a three-character code assigned by the program to
identify each type of investment,

PAR VALUE- The nominal or face value of the security.
MATURITY DATE — The maturity date is the date on when an investment will mature.

CURRENT RATE — For coupon instruments, the current rate is the coupon or interest rate at
the time of purchase. For discount instruments, the current rate is the yield to maturity.

BEGINNING ACCRUED INTEREST - This column displays the amount of interest earned,
but not yet received, as of the report beginning date.

INTEREST EARNED — This column shows the amount of interest earned during the selected
reporting period.

INTEREST RECEIVED - This column includes the amount of interest posted as received
during the selected reporting period.

ENDING ACCURED INTEREST - This column displays the amount of interest earned, but
not yet received, as of the report ending date.

42



Security

Quarterly Reports
Accrued Interest
Sorted by Security Type - Fund

April 1, 2016 - June 30, 2016

Adjusted Acc'd Int.
Par - Maturity  Gurrent * Beginning at Purchase

Santa Cruz County

Interest Interest * Ending
CUSIP __Investment # Type Value Date Rate Accrued Interest During Period Eamed Recelved Accrued Interest
U.S. Treasury Notes! Bonds
912828RM4 22081 TRC 0.00 10/31/2016 1.000 63,049.45 0.00 29,885.33 92,934.78 0.00
912828QX1 22106 TRC 15,000,000.00 07/31/2018 1.500 37,708.04 0.00 58,250.00 0.00 93,956.04
912828VL1 22108 TRC 15,000,000.00 0715/2018 0.625 19,831.73 0.00 23,437.50 0.00 43,269.23
9128285C5 22125 TRC 17,000,000.00  01/31/2017 0.875 24,927.88 0.00 37,187.50 0.00 82,115.38
9128288Y7 22130 TRC 1 5,060,000.00 053172017 0.625 31,506.15 0.00 23,309.43 46,875.00 7.940.58
912828TB6 22132 TRC 15,000,000.00  06/30/2017 0.750 28,434.07 0.00 28,121.64 56,250.00 306.71
912828A91 22144 TRC 15,000,000.00  01/15/2017 0.750 23,798.08 0.00 28,125.00 0.00 51,923.08
912828TM2 22148 TRC 15,000,000.00  08/31/2017 0.625 8,162.17 0.00 23,182.74 0.00 31,334.91
912828F54 22153 TRC 15,000,000.00  10/15/2017 0.875 60,604.51 0.00 32,633.20 85,625.00 27,612.71
812828TWD 22165 TRC 13,000,000,00 10/31/2017 0.750 40,982.14 0.00 24,194 49 48,]"50.00 16,426.63
812828WH9 22170 TRC 12,000,000.00  05/15/2017 0.875 39,807,869 0.00 26,102.63 52,500.00 13,410.32
B12828WT3 22176 TRC 15,000,000.00  Q7/15/2017 0.875 27,764.42 0.00 32,812.50 0.00 60,676.92
912828XA3 22180 TRC 15,000,000.00 06/15/2018 1.000 56,866.13 0.00 37,289.48 75,000.00 19,157.61
9128288J0 22183 TRC 10,000,000.00  02/28/2017 0.875 7,608.70 0.00 21,637.23 0.00 20,245.93
912828049 22188 TRC 12,000,000.00  08M5/2017 0.875 13,269.23 0.00 26,250.00 0.00 39,519.23
912828P20 22192 TRC 15,000,000.00  01/31/2018 0.750 .00 27,197.80 16,780.22 0.00 46,978.02
Subtotal 214,000,000.00 484,310.39 27,197.80 470,198.89 437,934.78 543,772.30
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
I33ECMM3 22096 FAC 156,000,000.00  04/25/2017 0.600 39,000.00 0.00 22,500.00 45,000.00 16,500.00
3133ED458 22114 FAC 16,500,000.00  10M1/2018 0.760 37,187.50 0.00 19,687.50 39,375.00 17,500.00
3133EDE57 22128 FAC 14,000,000.00 09/23/2016 0.680 2,146.67 0.00 24,150.00 0.00 26,206.67
3133EEQMS 22155 FAC 11,000,000.00  02/20/2018 1.110 13,005.83 0.00 30,525.00 0.00 44,430.83
3133EGCA1 22197 FAC 14,000,000.00  06/03/2019 1.060 0.00 0.00 11,542.22 - 0.00 11,542.22
3133834R9 22098 FAC 0.00 06/24/2018 0.375 10,104.17 0.00 8,645.83 18.756.00 0.00
3133782N0 22148 FAC 12,000,000.00  03M10/2017 0.875 6,125.00 0.00 26,250.00 0.00 32,375.00
3130A4CY6 22154 FAC 14,500,000.00 02/21/2017 0.750 12,083.33 0.00 27,187.50 0.00 39,270.83
313380EC7 22180 FAC 14,000,000.00  09/08/2017 0.750 6,708.33 0.00 26,250.00 0.00 32,958.33
3130A42V7 22182 FAC 0.00 072872017 0.750 19,687.50 0.00 8,437.50 28,125.00 0.00
3130ABXG7 22178 FAC 15,000,000.00 12/28/2018 0.750 29,062.50 0.00 28,125,00 56,250.00 937.50
3130A7L37 22194 FAC 15,000,000.00  03/15/2019 1.250 0.00 29,166.67 25,000.00 0.00 54,166.67
3137EACWT 22080 FAC 16,000,000.00  08/25/2018 2.000 32,000.00 0.00 80,000.00 0.00 112,000.00
3134G44F2 22099 FAC 15,000,000.00 1172172017 0.800 43,333.33 0.00 30,000.00 60,000.00 13,333.33
3137EADNS 2177 FAC 15,000,000.00 01/12/2018 0.750 24,687.50 0.00 28,125.00 0.00 52,812.50
3134G8L98 22186 .FAC 17,000,000.,00  02/28/2018 1.050 17.354.17 0.00 44,625.00 0.00 61,979.17

* Beginning Accrued may not include investments that redeemed in the previous month that had outstanding accrued interest, Ending Accrued includes outstanding purchase

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35

Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35

43

Portfolic SCRZ

AC

Al (PRF_AI) 7.1.1
Report Ver, 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Accrued Interest

Sorted by Security Type - Fund

Page 2
Ad]usted Acc'd Int.
Security Par Maturity  Current * Beginning at Purchase Interest Interest ~ Ending
CusiP Investment#  Typa Value Date Rate Accrued Interest During Period Earned Raceived Accrued Intorest
Federal Agenicy Issues - Coupon
3134G8TKS 22189 FAC 10,000,000.00  03/28/2019 1.250 694.44 0.00 31,250.00 0.00 31,944.44
3138G04A6 22068 FAC 000 1172142017 1.000 54,166.67 0.00 20,833.33 75,000.00 0.00
3135GOCM3 22086 FAC 0.00  D9/28/2016 1.250 1,041.87 0.00 27,430.56 28,472.22 0.01
3135G0JA2 22135 FAC 15,000,000.00  04/27/2017 1.125 72,187.50 0.00 42,187.50 84,375.00 30,000.00
3136GO7ES 22143 FAC 12,000,000.00  11/28/2018 0.625 25,625.00 0.00 18,750.00 47,500.00 6,875.00
3135G0ZL0 22163 FAC 12,000,000.00  09/27/2017 1.000 1,333.33 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 31,333.33
3136G25X6 22472 FAC 17,000,000.00  11/28/2018 1.200 70,266.67 0.00 51,000.00 102,566,668 18,700.01
3138G3INAS 22146 FAC 15,000,000.00  05/23/2019 1.200 0.00 0.00 19,000.00 0.00 19,000.00
Subtotal 279,000,000.00 518,701.11 29,166.67 681,501.94 575,413.88 §53,955.84
Medium Term Notes
037833AH3 22161 MTN 0.00  05/03/2016 0.450 18,500.00 0.00 4,000.00 22,500.00 0.00
05253JAE1 22168 MTN 10,000,000.00  01/10/2017 1.250 28,125.00 0.00 31,250.00 0.00 59,375.00
084870BDS 22184 MTN 8,000,000.00  01/31/2017 1.900 25,755.56 0.00 38,000.00 0.00 63,755.56
478180BL7 22167 MTN 11,850,000.00  11/21/2017 1.125 48,546.88 0.00¢ 33,609.38 67,218.75 14,937.51
478160BR4. 22195 MTN 10,000,000.00  03/01/2019 1.125 0.00 24,062.50 13,437.50 0.00 37,500.00
63254AAG3 22150 MTN 12,000,000.00  07/25/2016 1.300 28,600.00 0.00 39,000.00 0.00 67,800.00
Subtotal 51,950,000.00 149,527.44 24,062.50 159,296.98 89,718.75 243,168.07
Negotiable CDs
85558LPNG 22190 NCB 25,000,000.00  0812/2016 0.600 0.00 0.00 32,500.00 0.00 32,500.00
86958DT51 22185 NCB 0.00  08/06/2018 0.580 14,388.89 0.00 26,666.87 40,055.56 0.00
89113E7M2 22193 NCB 20,000,000.00  08/22/2018 0.560 0.00 62222 17.422.22 0.00 18,044.44
94938EP28 22182 NCB 15,000,000.00  O7/01/2016 0.790 23,700.00 0.00 29,954.17 0.00 53,654.17
94988EN79 22181 NCB 10,000,000.00  07/14/2018 0.830 19,366.67 0.00 20,980.56 0.00 40,347.23
Subtotal 70,000,000.00 §7,455.56 ' 622.22 126,523.62 40,055.56 144,545.84
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan
SYS522198 22198 MC9 12,000,000.00  07/31/2016 0.500 0.00 0.00 164.38 0.00 164.38
Subtotal 12,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 164.38 0.00 164.38
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
5YS6501 8501 LA1 38,080,158.68 0.550 48,247.11 0.00 60,158.68 48,247.11 60,158.68
Subtotal 38,060,158.68 48,247.11 0.00 60,158.68 48,247.11 60,158.68
Union Bank Activity - Dividend
SYS21111 21111 PA3 0.00 0.260 711 0.00 16.80 2314 0.77
Subtotal -0.00 7.1 0.00 16.80 23.14 0.77
* Beginning Accrued may not include investments that redeemed in the previous month that had outstanding accrued interest. Ending Accrued includes outstanding purchase
Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 AC
Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35 44 Al (PRF_AI) 7.1.1

Report Ver. 7,3.2



Quarterly Reports
Accrued Interest

Sortod by Security Type - Fund

Page 3
Adjusted Acc'd Int.
Security . Par Maturity  Current * Beginning at Purchase Interost Interest . *Ending
cusip investment#  Type Value Date Rate Accrued Interest During Period Earned Received - Accrued Intorest
Supranationals
45905UVD3 22187 MC6 15,000,000.00  01/02/2019 1.040 12,566,67 0.00 39,000.00 0.00 51,566.67
459058FC2 22191 MCé 15,000,000.00  04/26/2019 1.250 0.00 0.00 33,854,17 0.00 33,854.17
Subtotal 30,000,000.00 12,566.67 0.00 72,854.17 0.00 85,420.84
Money Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21923 RRP 10,000,000.00 0.270 165.92 0.00 13,722.59 11,496.68 2,391.83
Subtotal 10,000,000.00 165.92 0.00 13,722.59 11,496.68 2,391.83
Total 705,010,158.68 1,270,981.31 81,049.19 1,564,437.95 1,202,889.90 1,733,578.55
* Beginning Accrued may not include investments that redeemed in the previous month that had outstanding accrued interest. Ending Accrued includes outstanding purchase
Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 AC

Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08;35

45

Al (PRF_AI)7.1.9
Report Ver, 7.3.2



INVESTMENT BY ALL TYPES REPORT /
PURCHASE PRICE

This report reflects the purchase price of each bond in the portfolio.
PURCHASE PRICE: This is the price at which the bond was purchased.

REMAINING COST: This is the dollar amount of the bond at the date of
purchase adjusted for any partial liquidations.

46



Santa Cruz County

Quarterly Reports
Investments by All Types
Active Investments

June 30, 2016 -

Purchase Current Maturity Call Call
CUSIP investment # Fund Issuer Par Value Price Remalning Cost Rate Date Date Price
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828VL1 22109 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000,00 99.4218750 14,913,281.25 0.625 07/15/2016
912828QX1 22108 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000.00 1021953125 15,329,266.88 1.500 07/31/2018
912828491 22144 100 US Treasury N/B 16,000,000.00  100.1562500 15,023,437.50 0.750 01/15/2017
912828SC5 22125 100 US Treasury N/B 17,000,000.00  100.0000000 17,000,000.00 0.875 0173172017
9128288J0 22183 100 US Treasury N/B 10,000,000.00  100.2734375 10,027,343.75 0.875 02/28/2017
912828WHS 22170 100 US Treasury N/B 12,000,000.00  100.2343750 12,028,125.00 0.875 05/15/2017
9128285Y7 22130 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000.00 ©9.0825000 14,859,375.00 0.825 05/31/2017
912828TH6 22132 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000.00 99.0078125 14,851,171.88 0.750 08/30/2017
912828WT3 22178 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000.00 99.8871875 14,980,078.13 0.875 07/15/2017
912828049 22188 100 US Treasury N/B 12,000,000.00  100.0039083 12,000,468.76 0.875 08/15/2017
912828TM2 22148 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000.00 98.8750000 14,831,250,00 0.625 08/31/2017
912828F54 22153 100 US Treasury N/B 15,000,000.00 99.9218750 14,988,281.25 0.875 10/15/2017
912828TWD 221685 100 US Treasury N/B 13,000,000.00 09.6662500 12,955,312.50 0.750 10/31/2017
912828P20 22192 100 US Treasury N/B 18,000,000.00 99.8908250 14,983,5983.75 0.750 01/31/2018
91282BXA3 22180 100 US Treasury N/B. 15,000,000.00 ©9.4843750 14,922,656.25 1.000 05/15/2018

Subtotal 214,000,000.00 213,693,671.89

Federai Agency Issues - Coupon
313TEACWY 22080 100 Fed.Home Loan Mtg.Corp 16,000,000.00  105.1500000 18,824,000.00 2.000 08/25/2016
3133EDES7 22128 100 Federal Farm Credit Bank 14,000,000.00 99.9790000 13,887,060.00 0.690 00/23/2016
3133ED4S8 22114 100 Federal Farm Credit Bank 10,500,000.00  100.0000000 10,500,000.00 0.750 101112018
3136GO7ES 22143 100 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 12,000,000.00 89.8900000 11,986,800.00 0.825 11/28/2016
3130ABXG7 22178 100 Federal Home Loan Bank 15,000,000.00  100.0000000 15,000,000.00 0.750 12/28/2016
3130A4CY6 22154 100 Federal Home Loan Bank 14,500,000.00  100.0000000 14,500,000.00 0.750 02/21/2017
3133782N0 22148 100 Federal Home Loan Bank 12,000,000.00  100.5500000 12,086,000.00 0.875 0310/2017
3133ECMM3 22096 100 Federal Farm Credit Bank 15,000,000.00  100.0200000 16,003,000.00 0.600 04/25/2017
3135G0JA2 22135 100 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 15,000,000.00  100.7770000 15,118,550.00 1.125 04/27/2017
313380ECT 22160 100 Federal Home Loan Bank 14,000,000.00  100.0000000 14,000,000.00 0.750 08/08/2017
3125G0ZL0 22163 100 Federal National Mort. Assoc, 12,000,000.00  100.4320000 12,052,680.00 1.000 08/27/2017
3134(44F2 22099 100 Fed.Home Loan Mlg.Cofp 15,000,000.00 $9.6250000 14,988,750.00 0.800 11/21/2017
3137EADNS 22177 100 Fed.Home Loan Mig.Corp 16,000,000.00 99,2850000 14,892,750.00 0.750 0111272018
3133EEQMS 22185 100 Federal Farm Credit Bank 11,000,000.00  100.0000000 11,000,000.00 1.110 02/20/2018
3134G3Lo8 22188 100 Fed.Home Loan Mig.Corp 17,000,000.00  100.0000000 17,000,000.00 1.050 02/26/2018  08/26/2016 100.0000000

Portfolio SCRZ
AC

AT {PRF_DT) 7.1.1
Report Ver. 7.3.2

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35
Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35

47



Quarterly. Reports
Investments by All Types Paga 2
June 30, 2016

Purchase Current Maturity Caill Calt
CUsIiP Investment # Fund lasuer Par Value Price Remaining Cost Rate Date Date Price

Federal Agency Issues - Coupon

3136G2SX8 22172 100 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 17,000,000.00  100.0000000 17,000,000.00 1.200 11/28/2018  11/28/2018  100.0000000
3130A7L37 22104 100 Federal Home Loan Bank 15,000,000.00  100.7770000 15,116,550.00 1.250 03/15/2019
3134GETKS 22189 100 Fed.Home Loan Mtg.Corp 10,000,000.00  100.0000000 10,000,000.00 1.250 03/29/2018  09/20/2016  100.0000000
3138G3NAS 22196 100 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 15,000,000.00  100.0000000 15,000,000.00 1.200 05/23/2019  11/23/2016  100.0000000
3133EGCA1 22197 100 Federal Farm Credit Bank 14,000,000.00 99.7350000 13,962,900.00 1.060 06/03/2019

Subtotal 279,000,000.00 280,007,040.00
Medium Term Notes
B3254AAG3 22150 100 Nat.Australia Bank 12,000,000.00  100.9740000 12,118,880.00 1.300 07/25/2018
05253JAE1 22168 100 Australia & New Zealand Bank 10,000,000.00  100.3540000 10,035,400.00 1.250 01/10/2017
084570BD9 22184 100 Berkshire Hathaway Inc 8,000,000.00  101.1030000 8,088,240.00 1.800 0173112017
478160BL7 22167 100 Johnson & Johnson 11,950,000.00  100.1700000 11,870,315.00 1.125 14/21/2017
478160BR4 22195 100 Johnson & Johnson 10,000,000.00  100.2850000 10,028,500.00 1.125 03/01/2019

- e

Subtotal ' §4,950,000.00 52,239,335.00
Negotiable CDs
94988EP28 22182 100 Wells Fargo Bank NA 15,000,000.00  100.0000000 15,000,000.00 0.790 07/01/2016
94988ENTY 22181 100 Wells Fargo Securities LLC 10,000,000.00  100.0000000 10,000,000.00 0.830 07/14/2016
65558LPNG 22180 100 Nordea Bank 25,000,000.00  100.0000000 25,000,000.00 0.800 08/12/2018
89113E7TM2 22193 100 Toronto Dominion Bank 20,000,000.00  100.0028889 20,000,597.99 0.560 087222018

Subtotal 70,000,000.00 70,000,597.99
Santa Cruz County Additor Loan
§YS22198 22198 100 Santa Cruz County Auditor 12,000,000.00  100.0000000 12,000,000.00 0,500 07/31/2016

Subtotal 12,000,000.00 12,000,000.00
Locai Agency investment Fund (LAIF)
SYS6501 6501 100 LAIF (General Fund) 38,080,158.68  100.0000000 38,080,158.68 0.550

Subtotal 38,060,158.68 38,060,158.68
Union Bank Activity - Dividend
SYS2111q 2111 100 Union Bank 0.00 100.0000000 0.00 0.260

Subtotal 0.00 0.00

Porifolio SCRZ’

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 AC

Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 0B:35 AT {PRF_DT)7.1.1

Report Ver. 7.3.2

48



Quarterly Reports

Investments by All Types Page 3
June 30, 2016
Purchase Current Maturity Call Can
cusip Investment # Fund Issuer Par Value Price Remaining Cost Rate Date Date Price
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing
912796HU8 22174 100 US Treasury Bill 15,000,000.00 95.2821111 14,892 316.67 0.710 12/08/2018
Subtotal 15,000,000.00 14,892,316.67
Supranationals
45905UvD3 22187 100 Int Bank of Recon & Redav 15,000,000.00 100.0000000 15,000,000.00 1.040 Q1/02/2019
458068FC2 22191 100 Int Bank of Recon & Redev 15,000,000.00 100.0000000 15,000,000.00 1.250 04/26/2019
Subtotal 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Money Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21923 100 Bank of the West 10,600,000.00 100.0000000 10,000,000.00 0.270
Subtotal 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Total 720,010,158.68 720,893,120.23
Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/15/2016 08:35 AC
Run Date: 07/15/2016 - 08:35 AT (PRF_DT)7.1.1
Report Ver. 7.3,2

49



DESCRIPTION OF INVESTMENT
INSTRUMENTS

The investment activities of County Treasurers are restricted by state law to a select
group of government securities and prime money market instruments. To reduce the risk
inherent in any one instrument, state law further limits the percentage of the county's portfolio
that can be invested in any one type of security.,

The types of securities available to the County Treasurer can be divided into three main
categories: 1) U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds. They are guaranteed by the U.S.
Government and are considered to have no credit risk. They also typically have the lowest
yield of the securities available for investing. 2) Securities issued by U.S. Government
Agencies and Instrumentalities. These securities consist mostly of notes and debentures of
agencies and government sponsored corporations. They are not guaranteed by the U.S.
government and therefore have some credit risk. Their yield is typically higher than U.S.
Treasury securities. 3) Prime money market securities. These consist of securities such as
bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, commercial paper and municipal bonds. The
yield is typically higher than the other types of securities in which the county invests but the
risk is also higher. Through diversification and purchasing only highly rated paper, the credit
risk is kept to an acceptable minimum, Each of the securities in these three categories is
subject to market risk if sold prior to maturity.

What follows is a brief description of the different securities used by the County
Treasurer:

U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds are long term obligations of the U.S. government,
which bear coupons. Interest is payable every six months at a rate of one-half the annual
coupon. -Treasury bonds and notes trading is conducted by the same securities dealers who
trade T bills. In the secondary market, prices are quoted in thirty-seconds of 1 percent. Except
for their maturities, notes and bonds are identical regardless of their label. Notes are issued for
original maturities of one to 10 years. Bonds are issued with original maturities of more than
10 years.

U.S. Treasury Bills are unusual instruments because they bear no specific interest rate.
Rather, they are issued originally at a discount from its ultimate maturity (par) value. Because
T Bills are issued and traded at a discount, investors receive their returns at maturity or on
subsequent resale, which ordinarily will be at prices higher than the original discount.

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) Discount Notes. FFCB is an instrumentality of the
U.S. Government. The notes are the consolidated obligations of the 37 Farm Credit Banks
issued on a discount basis with maturities of one year or less. Although not as risk free as
Treasury notes, most experts believe the U.S. government has a moral commitment to the

farm credit system.

50



Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) debentures are consolidated obligations of the 37
Farm Credit Banks issued with a fixed coupon rate with maturities ranging from 6 months to
20 years. A debenture is a bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Discount notes are consolidated obligations of 12
District banks issued with a fixed coupon rate with maturities ranging from one to ten years.
Although the FHLB operates under federal charter with government supervision, the
securities are not guaranteed by the U.S. government. However, the banks are required to
maintain a considerable reserve pledged against the outstanding debt. They are therefore
considered relatively risk free.

Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) Discount notes are
consolidations of government chartered private corporations issued on a discount basis with
maturities under one year. They are guaranteed by the corporations, but not by the U.S.
government. Many investors consider the securities a moral obligation of the U.S. government
and believe Congress would intervene before allowing default,

Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) debentures are obligations
issued by the Association with a fixed coupon rate and various maturities. A debenture is a
bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is the state sponsored investment fund. LAIF is
an excellent cash management tool to help meet most of the unexpected cash demands.
Currently the state limits the county's investment in this pool to $65,000,000.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) Participation Notes are
issues of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation representing undivided interests in
conventional mortgages underwritten and previously purchased by it. The corporation
guarantees the timely payment of interest at the certificate rate and full return of principal.
Participation Certificates have original final payment dates of 30 years. '

Government National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae) Pass Through are issues of
the wholly owned government corporation within the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Principal and interest payment collected on morigages in specified pools are
passed through to holders of GNMA Guaranteed certificates after deduction of servicing and
guaranty fees. GNMA''s have original stated maturities of 12 to 40 years. For Santa Cruz
County, these are used only as collateral for overnight repurchase agreements.

Municipal Securities (Notes and Bonds) Debt securities issued by state and local
governments and their agencies are referred to as municipal securities. Such securities can be
divided into two broad categories: bonds issued to finance capital projects and short term
notes sold in anticipation of the receipt of other funds, such as taxes or proceeds from a bond

issue.

51



Banker's Acceptances. Briefly stated, the function of the bankers' acceptance is as
follows: A borrower may, under certain circumstances, obtain short-term credit by arranging
for his bank to accept a time draft upon it. The bank stamps its official accepted across the
face of the draft and converts it into a bankers' acceptance. The instrument, now being a bank
obligation, may be sold to an acceptance dealer who, in turn, may sell it to an investor. Most
BAs arise out of transactions involving the trade of manufactured goods or commodities.
Maturities range from one to 180 days.

Commercial Paper is a short-term promissory note issued by a company to finance
current transactions. All commercial paper is negotiable, but most commercial paper sold to
investors is held to maturity. Commercial paper is issued not only by industrial and
manufacturing firms but also by finance companies. Notes are sold on a discount or interest-
bearing basis with maturities not exceeding 270 days.

Medium Term Notes are obligations that have maturities of less than 5 years and are
issued by corporations or depositories organized and operating in the U.S.

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (NCD). It is a receipt for deposit of a stated sum in
the bank on a given date, together with a promise to redeem this sum plus interest at the
indicated rate on a designated date. The instrument is negotiable because it is payable either to
bearer or to the order of the depositor.

Repurchase Agreements (RP or Repos). A holder of securities sells securities to an
investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date. Repurchase
agreements are usually for short periods of time (one to five days), when large sums are
received that will be needed in the next day or two. As a result, they are often called overnight
repos. From the point of view of investors, overnight repos offer several attractive features.
First, by rolling overnight repos, investors can keep surplus funds invested without losing
liquidity or incurring a price risk. Second, because repo transactions are secured by top quality
paper, investors expose themselves to little or no risk.

- Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC). This is a fixed income agreement offered by
insurance companies. GICs offer to pay a specific interest rate over a period of time. Some
GICs are eligible for early redemption, with or without penalty, which eliminates market risk
if interest rates rise. In Santa Cruz County it is only used for the investment of secured
indebtedness and only if the note documentation permits such an investment.

Money Market (Mutual) Fund. A money market mutual fund is a pooled fund that
invests in a number of money market vehicles (CD’s, CP, T-Bills, etc.). These funds are
designed to pay the investor interest, as well as provide full liquidity, Maturities of the
underlying investments are 13 months or less.

52



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Gifts and Donations
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Santa Cruz County Board of Education
ACTION REQUESTED:

Accept gifts and donations as follows:

Program Donor Value
Science Fair/STEM Plantronics $50,000.00

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None. An acknowledgement letter will be sent to the donor following Board Action.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

County Board of Education Policy P-3280, requires that all gifts and donations received by
programs conducted by the County Superintendent of Schools be accepted by the County Board
of Education.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

Gifts/Donations received will be utilized by the programs to which they were donated.

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Nehal Pfeiffer, Teacher, Science & Engineering Fair

August 16, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.5
53



P ———

Watsonville Prep School

Presentation

August 16, 2018
Santa Cruz County Board of Education

Loren W. Soukup
Senior Associate General Counsel
School & College Legal Services of California

Santa Cruz County
Ofiice of Education

MICHAEL £, WATKEINS, SUPERINTENDENT

54



N

Overview

e | egal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

e Santa Cruz County Office of Education Review Team Process
e Findings of Fact
e Memorandum of Understanding

e Resolutions
e Resolution to Conditionally Approve the Charter Petition

e Resolution to Deny the Charter Petition

55



“
-
Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

e Education Code (EC) section 47605, subdivision (j) provides that the County Board
shall review a charter petition submitted after denial by a school district under the
criteria in subdivision (b) — the same criteria that governs a school district’s initial
review of the petition.

e The County Board is to receive a complete copy of the Charter Petition as denied.
(Cal. Code Regs., Title 5, 811967, subd. (b) (1).) The County Board is also to
receive a copy of the District Board’s Findings on the petition, setting forth the
Board’s grounds for denial under EC 847605(b).

e The County Board is not limited to a review based solely on the reasons for denial
stated by the district, but must review the petition pursuant to the criteria in EC
847605(b).

56



— o
Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

e EC 847605(b) provides that in reviewing petitions for the establishment of charter
schools, the chartering authority shall be guided by the intent of the Legislature that
charter schools are and should become an integral part of the California educational
system and that establishment of charter schools should be encouraged.

e The County Board shall deny a petition for establishment of a charter school only if
the County Board makes written factual findings, specific to the particular petition,
setting forth facts to support one or more of six grounds for denial in EC 847605,
subdivision (b) (1)-(6).

57



C————

~— Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

Educational Code 847605 (b) (1)-(6)

1) The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be enrolled in the
charter school;

2) The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth in the
petition;

3) The petition does not contain the number of signatures required;
4) The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in EC §47605(d);

5) The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the fifteen listed
required elements: or

6) The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be deemed the
exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school for purposes of Chapter 10.7
(commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code.

58



C————

—
Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

15 Required Elements

1) A description of the educational program of the school, designed, among other things, to identify
those pupils whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an “educated person” in
the 215t century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in the educational program shall
include the objective of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners.

2) The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school.
3) The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be measured.

4) The governance structure of the school, including, but not limited to, the process to be followed by
the school ensure parental involvement.

5) The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the school.

59



—
Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

15 Required Elements
(Continued)

6) The procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of pupils and staff.

7) The means by which the school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among its pupils that is
reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the school district to
which the charter petition is submitted.

8) Admissions requirements, if applicable.

9) The manner in which annual, independent, financial audits shall be conducted, in accordance with
regulations established by the State Board of Education, and the manner in which audit exceptions
and deficiencies shall be resolved.

10) The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled.

60



C———

— Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions
15 Required Elements
(Continued)

11) The manner by which staff members of the charter school will be covered by the State Teachers’
Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement System or federal social security.

12) The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school district who choose
not to attend charter schools.

13) A description of the rights of any employee of the school district, upon leaving the employment of
the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the school district after
employment at a charter school.

14) The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the charter to resolve
disputes relating to provisions of the charter.

15) A description of the procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall ensure a
final audit of the school to determine the disposition of all assets and liabilities of the charter school,
including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the maintenance and transfer of pupil records.

61



—
Legal Requirements for the Review of Charter Petitions

The County Board’s review is based on three sources of information: Statute, State
Regulations and Staff Analysis.

1) EC 847605 provides the required elements of a petition.
2) State Regulations provide greater specificity on each of the requirements.

3) Staff team review and analysis of the required elements for formation of a new
charter school. Staff review team provides the County Board with its report and
findings. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 5, §11967.5 et seq.)

62



—— Review Team

Consistent with required elements and legal criteria, a team of Santa Cruz County Office of Education
staff members (representing all operational specialties) and assisted by legal counsel conducted an in-
depth review of the Petition and supporting documents.

COE Staff

Michael Watkins, County Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Faris Sabbah, Deputy Superintendent

Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Chief Business Officer

Mary Anne James, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services (Retired)
Jivan Dhaliwal, Associate Superintendent, Educational Services

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services

Kris Stanga, Senior Director, District Support and Leadership

Jessica Little, Senior Director, North County SELPA

Troy Cope, Senior Director, Human Resources

Sofia Sorenson, Multilingual Achievement Coordinator

Dr. Cristine Chopra, Executive Director, S4C 10

63



/ ]
Review Team Process

e The Review Team, in consultation with legal counsel, utilized a rubric developed by
the Charter Authorizers Regional Support Network (CARSNet) which examines 185
elements aligned to the required components of EC 847605 and other laws that
apply to charter schools.

e With the exception of four areas of concern, the Review Team concluded that the
Petition “met or exceeded” the requirements of the law for approval of the charter
school.

e |tis the opinion of the Review Team, that these areas of concern, can be
addressed through Conditional Approval, which includes the execution of a
Memorandum of Understanding between the Petitioners, the County
Superintendent and the County Board.

11

64



/
Additional Considerations

Additional considerations were discussed by the Review Team and have been properly addressed through
the proposed Memorandum of Understanding.

Transportation

The Review Team recognizes that the County Board cannot deny the Petition on the basis that the Charter
School does not plan to offer transportation to attending students, as such, concerns are not among the
enumerated grounds on which a charter petition can be denied (EC 847605(b) (1)-(6)). The Review Team
recommends the petitioner consider developing a transportation plan to provide access to students who
live in remote areas.

Conflict of Interest

To ensure transparency and minimize potential conflicts of interest, the Petitioners’ Governing Board shall
comply with Government Code 1090.

12

65



/
Additional Considerations

Financial Accounting

A thorough review was conducted of financial documents including cash flow, supply costs for
technology, start up costs, donation revenue and ADA projections. This documentation was deemed
satisfactory. To ensure fiscal transparency, the Petitioners will utilize the Standardized Account Code
Structure (SACS) account codes school identifier to maintain separate accounting of all budget
allocations and Actuals including revenues, encumbrances and expenditures. The Petitioner shall not
commingle funds between Watsonville Prep School (WPS) and other charter schools operated by
Navigator Schools for any purpose whatsoever.

ELL Assessments

The Petitioner will need to provide a plan for the use of interim assessment of English Learners in
acquiring English proficiency in reading, writing, listening and speaking.

13

66



——————

e

Findings of Fact
The Review Team identified four primary concerns in the Petition.

1) Local Parent/Community Involvement in Governance
2) Transitional Kindergarten
3) Services for English Language Learners

4) Facilities

14

67



C—————
— Findings of Fact (Continued)

Local Parent/Community Involvement in Governance

The Education Code requires the Petition to describe “the governance structure of the school, including,
but not limited to, the process to be followed by the school to ensure parental involvement” (EC
847605(b)(5)(D).) As set forth in the Regulations, the Petition should include “evidence that the
organizational and technical design of the governance structure reflect a seriousness of purpose necessary
to ensure that there will be active and effective representation of interested parties, including, but not
limited to parents (guardians) (5CCR 811967.5.1(f)(4)(B).)

Recommendation

It is recommended that the County Board approve the Petition with the condition that such approval be
contingent on the Petitioner’s modification of the structure of the Board of Directors to include a
designated position for a WPS parent. In addition, the Petitioners will have to hold their Board meetings
in a location convenient to WPS parents.

15

68



C———

— Findings of Fact (Continued)

Transitional Kindergarten (TK)

The Petition did not include a description of the program to address the needs of transitional kindergarten
students. EC 848000(d) defines “Transitional Kindergarten” as the first year of a two-year kindergarten
program that uses a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and developmentally appropriate. EC
848000 (c)(3)(A) “In the 2014-2015 school year, and each school year thereafter, a child who will have
his or her fifth birthday between September 2 and December 2 shall be admitted to a transitional
kindergarten program maintained by the school district or charter school.” EC 848000(f) states, “It is the
intent of the Legislature that transitional kindergarten curriculum align to the California Preschool
Learning Foundations developed by the department.”

Recommendation

It is recommended that the County Board approve the Petition with the condition that the Petitioners
describe the Transitional Kindergarten Program that they will offer, or secure an agreement from the
Pajaro Valley Unified School District that Transitional Kindergarten services will be offered by the School
District.

16

69



/
Findings of Fact (Continued)

Services for English Lanquage Learners

The Charter’s policy for redesignation of English Language Learners excludes the redesignation of
students in grades earlier than grade 4. The Education Code allows for students in any grade to
redesignate as Fluent Proficient. EC §313[f][1]; 5 CCR 811302, 11303.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the County Board approve the Petition and that such approval be contingent on the
Petitioners revising their criteria to allow English Learners to be redesignated as Fluent English Proficient
in any grade.

17

70



C———

/
Findings of Fact (Continued)

Facilities

Under Proposition 39 (EC 847614; Prop 39), a school district is obligated to provide facilities to each
charter school with at least 80 unites of ADA associated with the enroliment of students from that school
district. Specifically, EC 847614(b) states:

Each school district shall make available, to each charter school operating in the school district, facilities
sufficient for the charter school to accommodate all of the charter school’s in-district students in
conditions reasonably equivalent to those in which the students would be accommodated if they were
attending other public schools of the district. Facilities provided shall be contiguous, furnished and
equipped and shall remain the property of the school district. The school district shall make reasonable
efforts to provide the charter school with facilities near to where the charter school wishes to locate, and
shall not move the charter school unnecessarily. [EC 847614(b)]

18

71



g

e Findings of Fact (Continued)

Facilities (Continued)

In this case, the Review Team is concerned that adequate facilities to house the proposed school have not
yet been identified, and the Team is also concerned about the burden a Proposition 39 request could place
on the Pajaro Valley Unified School District. Nevertheless, the Review Team acknowledges that the
County Board cannot deny the Petition on the basis that adequate facilities will be difficult to secure or
burdensome for the District, as such concerns are not among the enumerated grounds on which a charter
petition can be denied (EC 847605(b)(1)-(6)).

However, pursuant to EC 847605(g), the Petition is required to provide the County Board with a
sufficient description of its facilities, including where the facilities are located. Petitioners did not provide
this information in the Petition. The Petitioners have also failed to include in their budget expense
amounts for the rental of facilities if the Petitioner chooses to waive their Proposition 39 rights.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the County Board approve the Petition and that such approval be contingent on the
Petitioners providing the Santa Cruz COE with a Facility Plan no later than October 1, 2018 which shall
include a detailed description of desired facilities, related costs and the Petitioner’s intention to pursue or
not a Proposition 39 request in accordance with EC 847605(qg).

19

72



‘v

— Resolution I — With MOU Approval

Conditional Approval

e Requires the Charter School to meet identified requirements by October 1, 2018,
which includes the approval of the proposed Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU).

e The County Board will conclude whether the requirements have been met at its
October 18, 2018 regularly scheduled meeting.

e |f the County Board determines that the requirements have not been met, the
Petition will be automatically denied.

e |f the County Board determines that the requirements have been met, the Petition
will be deemed approved with no conditions.

e |f the County Board supports Resolution | “Conditional Approval”, it is also voting
to approve the MOU.

20

73



— w‘/

/
Resolution Il (Denial) or No Action

Denial

The County Board denies the Petition based on the findings of fact as set forth in the
Staff Report.

No Action

The County Board also has the option to not take any action, which will default in a
denial. The Charter School may seek approval from the State Board of Education.

21

74



P

Questions?



EXHIBIT A

Santa Cruz County
Office of Education

MICHAEL C. WATKINS, SUPERINTENDENT

STAFF REPORT AND PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
OF THE WATSONVILLE PREP CHARTER SCHOOL PETITION

August 1, 2018

Prepared by the Charter School Review Team:

Michael Watkins, County Superintendent of Schools

Dr. Faris Sabbah, Deputy Superintendent

Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Chief Business Officer
Mary Anne James, Associate Superintendent

Jivan Dhaliwal, Associate Superintendent

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services

Kris Stanga, Senior Director, District Support and Leadership
Jessica Little, Senior Director, North County SELPA

Troy Cope, Senior Director, Human Resources

Sofia Sorensen, Multilingual Achievement Coordinator
Dr. Cristine Chopra, Executive Director, S4C

76



EXHIBIT A
Page 2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

On June 19, 2018, the Santa Cruz County Board of Education (“County Board”) received a charter
petition to form the Watsonville Prep School from Navigator Schools, Inc. (“Petitioners”), appealing
the May 23rd, 2018 denial of the Petition by the Pajaro Valley Unified School District (“District”).

Consistent with required elements and legal criteria, a team of Santa Cruz County Office of Education
(“SCCOE”) staff members representing all operational specialties and assisted by legal counsel
(collectively, the "Review Team") conducted an in-depth review of the Petition and supporting
documents. Recognizing that Education Code (“EC”) 47605(b) provides that in reviewing petitions
for the establishment of charter schools, the chartering authority shall be guided by the intent of the
Legislature. The Review Team worked to ensure its review was robust, unbiased, and accurate.

The Review Team, in consultation with legal counsel, looked at over 185 different elements aligned
to the required components of EC § 47605 and other laws that apply to Charter Schools. With the
exception of four areas, the review team concluded that the petition and related documents “met or
exceeded” the requirements of the law for approval of the charter school. It is the opinion of the
Review Team that these areas of concern can be addressed through conditional approval of the
Petition, which includes the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding between Petitioners, the
County Superintendent, and the County Board.

Based on its review of the Petition, the Review Team recommends that the County Board
conditionally approve the Petition subject to Petitioner meeting certain requirements, as further set

forth in the Conditional Approval Resolution, which addresses the following concerns:

1. Local Parent/Community Involvement in Governance

The Petition does not include parent representation of a Watsonville Prep School parent on the
Petitioner’s Board of Directors in accordance with EC § 47605(b)(5)(D). As set forth in the
Regulations, the Petition should include, “active and effective representation of interested
parties, including, but not limited to parents (guardians)” (5 CCR § 11967.5.1(f)(2).)

2. Transitional Kindergarten (TK)

The Petition does not include a description of the program to address the needs of transitional
kindergarten students as required in EC §48000(c)(3)(A) which states that "a child who will
have his or her fifth birthday between September 2 and December 2 shall be admitted to a
transitional kindergarten program maintained by the school district or charter school.”

3. Redesignation of English Lanquage Learners

The Petitioners’ policy for redesignation of English Language Learners excludes the
redesignation of students in grades earlier than grade 4 as required by EC § 313[f][1]; 5 CCR
§ 11302, 11303.

77



EXHIBIT A
Page 3

4. Facilities

The Petition does not provide a sufficient description of its facilities including where the
facilities will be located. Pursuant to EC § 47605(g) a description of the facilities to be used
by the Petitioner, including the location of the facilities, must be provided as part of the
Petition.

BACKGROUND

On June 19, 2018, the Santa Cruz County Board of Education received a charter petition to form
Watsonville Prep School (“Petition”) from Navigator Schools Inc. appealing the denial of the Petition
by the Pajaro Valley Unified School District on May 23, 2018. The County Board also received a
report entitled “Staff Report and Findings of Fact, Watsonville Prep School Charter Petition” adopted
by the District's Board of Trustees on its denial of the Petition.

Pursuant to Education Code section 47605, subdivision (j), if the governing board of a school district
denies a charter petition, the petitioner may submit the petition to a county board of education. If a
county board of education does not grant or deny the petition within 60 days of receipt, the petitioners
may submit the petition to the State Board of Education (“SBE”). If a county board grants the charter,
it becomes the chartering authority and oversight agency for the charter school. (EC §47605()),
47604.32 and 47604.33.) If the county board denies the petition, then petitioners may appeal to the
State Board of Education. (EC §47605, subdivision (j)(1).)

On July 19, 2018, the County Board held a public hearing concerning the Petition as required by
Education Code section 47605. The County Board of Education intends to make a decision at its
meeting on August 16, 2018.

REVIEW PROCESS

Education Code (EC) section 47605, subdivision (j) provides that the County Board shall review a
charter petition submitted after denial by a school district under the criteria in subdivision (b) — the
same criteria that governs a school district's initial review of the petition. The County Board is to
receive a complete copy of the petition as denied. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 5, §11967, subd. (b)(1).) The
County Board is also to receive a copy of the District Board's findings on the petition, setting forth the
board's grounds for denial under EC §47605(b). The County Board is not limited to a review based
solely on the reasons for denial stated by the district, but must review the petition pursuant to the
criteria in EC §47605(b). Essentially, this means that the County Board is to take account of the
District Board's action and findings, but the County Board is also to conduct a new, independent
review of the petition under the same legal criteria in EC §47605(b).

As broad guidance, EC §47605(b) provides that in reviewing petitions for the establishment of charter
schools, the chartering authority shall be guided by the intent of the Legislature that charter schools
are and should become an integral part of the California educational system and that establishment of
charter schools should be encouraged. EC §47605(h) further charges that in reviewing petitions for
the establishment of charter schools within the school district, the governing board of the school
district shall give preference to petitions that demonstrate the capability to provide comprehensive
learning experiences to pupils identified by the petitioner or petitioners as academically low achieving
pursuant to the standards established by the department under Section 54032, as that section read
before July 19, 2006.

78



EXHIBIT A
Page 4

The County Board shall deny a petition for establishment of a charter school only if the County Board
makes written factual findings, specific to the particular petition, setting forth facts to support one or
more of six grounds for denial in EC §47605, subdivision (b)(1)-(6). The six grounds for denial are:

1.

the charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be enrolled in
the charter school;

the petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set forth in
the petition;

the petition does not contain the number of signatures required;

the petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in EC
§47605(d); or

the petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the following
fifteen required elements:

A.

A description of the educational program of the school, designed, among other things,
to identify those pupils whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be
an "educated person" in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals
identified in the educational program shall include the objective of enabling pupils to
become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners.

The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school.

The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be
measured.

The governance structure of the school, including, but not limited to, the process to be
followed by the school to ensure parental involvement.

The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the school.

The procedures that the school will follow to ensure the health and safety of pupils and
staff.

The means by which the school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among its
pupils that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial
jurisdiction of the school district to which the charter petition is submitted.
Admissions requirements, if applicable.

The manner in which annual, independent, financial audits shall be conducted, in
accordance with regulations established by the State Board of Education, and the

manner in which audit exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved.

The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled.

79



EXHIBIT A
Page 5

K. The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by the State
Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal
social security.

L. The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school district
who choose not to attend charter schools.

M. A description of the rights of any employee of the school district upon leaving the
employment of the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return
to the school district after employment at a charter school.

N. The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the charter
to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter.

0. A description of the procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures
shall ensure a final audit of the school to determine the disposition of all assets and
liabilities of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for
the maintenance and transfer of pupil records.

6. The petition does not contain a declaration of whether or not the charter school shall be deemed
the exclusive public employer of the employees of the charter school for purposes of Chapter
10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title 1 of the Government Code.

The County Board’s review is based on three sources of information: statute, state regulations and
staff analysis. First, EC §47605 provides the required elements of a petition; second, state regulations
provide greater specificity on each of the requirements; and third, the staff team review and analysis
of the required elements for formation of a new charter school and provides the County Board with its
report and findings (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 5, §11967.5 et seq.) These regulations were developed for
the State Board of Education's review of petitions; however, they offer helpful guidance to county
boards and school districts, as well as the state board, on essential information for each of the criteria
in EC §47605(b), including the findings for denial and the fifteen elements.

Consistent with required elements and legal criteria, a team of SCCOE staff members representing all
operational specialties and assisted by legal counsel (collectively, the "Review Team") conducted an
in-depth review of the Petition and supporting documents. The Review Team spoke with the
Petitioners on July 13, 2018, to ask clarifying questions and to offer Petitioners an opportunity to
provide input for the team's consideration. Following this process, the Review Team compiled this
Staff Report and Proposed Findings of Fact regarding the Watsonville Prep School Charter Petition
(“Staff Report”).

In conducting its analysis, the Review Team, in consultation with legal counsel, utilized a rubric that
examines 185 elements aligned to the required components of EC § 47605 and other laws that apply
to Charter Schools. With the exception of four areas of concern, the Review Team concluded that the
Petition “met or exceeded” the requirements of the law for approval of the charter school. It is the
opinion of the Review Team that these areas of concern can be addressed through conditional approval,
which includes the execution of a Memorandum of Understanding between Petitioners, County
Superintendent, and the County Board.

80



EXHIBIT A
Page 6

The Review Team identified concerns in areas under Education Code Section 47605(b). Following
this introduction is a summary of the key findings that form the basis for the Review Team's
recommendation of approval.

FINDINGS

The Review Team identified four concerns in the Petition. The following findings establish the basis
for the Review Team’s recommendation.

I.

Local Parent/Community Involvement in Governance

The Education Code requires the Petition to describe “the governance structure of the school,
including, but not limited to, the process to be followed by the school to ensure parental
involvement” (Ed. Code §47605(b)(5)(D).) As set forth in the Regulations, the Petition should
include, “evidence that the organizational and technical designs of the governance structure
reflect a seriousness of purpose necessary to ensure that: there will be active and effective
representation of interested parties, including, but not limited to, parents (guardians); and the
educational program will be successful (5 CCR §11967.5.1(f)(4)(B).) The Petition does not
demonstrate adequate WPS parent representation.

Recommendation

If the County Board chooses to approve the Petition, we recommend that such approval be
contingent on the Petitioners modification of the structure of the Board of Directors to include
a designated position for a WPS parent. In addition, the Petition Petitioners will hold their

board meetings in a location convenient to WPS parents.

Transitional Kindergarten (TK)

The Petition did not include a description of the program to address the needs of transitional
kindergarten students. EC §48000(d) defines “Transitional Kindergarten” as the first year of
a two-year kindergarten program that uses a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age and
developmentally appropriate. EC §48000(c)(3)(A) "In the 2014—15 school year, and each
school year thereafter, a child who will have his or her fifth birthday between September 2 and
December 2 shall be admitted to a transitional kindergarten program maintained by the school
district or charter school.” EC §48000(f) states: “It is the intent of the Legislature that
transitional kindergarten curriculum align to the California Preschool Learning Foundations
developed by the department.”

Recommendation
If the County Board chooses to approve the Petition, we recommend that such approval be
contingent on the condition that the Petitioners describe the transitional kindergarten program

they will offer, or secure an agreement from Pajaro Valley Unified School District that
Transitional Kindergarten services will be offered by the School District.

81



EXHIBIT A
Page 7

Services for English Language Learners

The Charter’s policy for redesignation of English Language Learners excludes the
redesignation of students in grades earlier than grade 4. Education Code allows for students
in any grade to redesignate as Fluent Proficient. EC §313[f][1]; 5 CCR §11302, 11303.

Recommendation

If the County Board chooses to approve the Petition, we recommend that such approval be
contingent on the Petitioners revising their criteria to allow English Learners to be redesignated
as Fluent English Proficient in any grade.

Facilities

Securing adequate facilities for a new charter school can be very challenging. Under
Proposition 39 (Ed. Code §47614; “Prop 39), a school district is obligated to provide facilities
to each charter school with at least 80 units of ADA associated with the enrollment of students
from that school district. Specifically, EC §47614(b) states:

Each school district shall make available, to each charter school, operating in
the school district, facilities sufficient for the charter school to accommodate all
of the charter school’s in-district students in conditions reasonably equivalent
to those in which the students would be accommodated if they were attending
other public schools of the district. Facilities provided shall be contiguous,
furnished, and equipped, and shall remain the property of the school district.
The school district shall make reasonable efforts to provide the charter school
with facilities near to where the charter school wishes to locate, and shall not
move the charter school unnecessarily.

Meeting the burden of a Prop 39 request is often exceedingly difficult for a school district,
particularly where the district’s own facilities are at full capacity. If adequate facilities are not
readily available, both district and charter school students may suffer, as high quality facilities
are a cornerstone of the educational experience. Even if a Prop 39 request is not made, it is
also often difficult for a charter school to secure adequate commercial space to meet the needs
of its students. In this case, the Review Team is concerned that adequate facilities to house the
proposed school have not yet been identified, and it is also concerned about the burden a Prop
39 request could place on the Pajaro Valley Unified School District. Nevertheless, the Review
Team acknowledges that the County Board cannot deny the Petition on the basis that adequate
facilities will be difficult to secure or burdensome for the District, as such concerns are not
among the enumerated grounds on which a charter petition can be denied (Ed. Code
47605(b)(1)-(6)). However, pursuant to EC § 47605(g), the Petition is required to provide the
County Board with a sufficient description of its facilities including where the facilities are
located. The Petitioners did not provide this information in the Petition. The Petitioners have
also failed to include in their budget expense amounts for the rental of facilities.

82



EXHIBIT A
Page 8

Recommendation

If the County Board chooses to approve the Petition, we recommend that such approval be
contingent on the Petitioners providing the Santa Cruz COE with a Facility Plan no later than
October1, 2018, which shall include a detailed description of desired facilities, related costs,
and their intention to pursue or not pursue a Prop 39 request in accordance with Education
Code section 47605(g).

The Review Team recommends that the above conditions be fully addressed to the satisfaction of the
County Board on or before October 1, 2018.

ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

Transportation

School Districts may choose to provide for the transportation of pupils to and from school in
accordance with EC §39800(a). With the exception of certain students, i.e. students with disabilities,
school districts and charter schools are under no legal obligation to provide transportation to students.
Given PVUSD’s community reliance on District-provided transportation services to access schools
and related programs, the Review Team is concerned about the ability of all students to access the
Charter School and the possible limitations this may place on the Charter School’s enrollment. The
Review Team recognizes that the County Board cannot deny the Petition on the basis that the Charter
School does not plan to offer transportation to attending students, as such concerns are not among the
enumerated grounds on which a charter petition can be denied (Ed. Code 47605(b)(1)-(6)). The
Review Team recommends the petitioner consider developing a transportation plan to provide access
to students who live in remote areas.

Financial Plan

The Review Team conducted a thorough study of the financial documents included in the Petition.
The Team further reviewed materials addressed in the Petition, such as Gilroy and Hollister Local
Control and Accountability Plans (LCAPs), the El Dorado County SELPA Local Plan, Navigator
Schools, Inc. websites, and the Petition appendices. Based on this review, WPS’ supply costs,
especially for instructional technology items, appear to be adequate. The Charter has funds in more
than one expenditure line, totaling just over $111,000.00, which is approximately $600.00 per student
the first year. These expenditures have been verified in the Charter budget. The Charter Petition
included documentation in the Appendix regarding the donation revenue currently included in their
2018-19 and 2019-20 budgets. This documentation was deemed satisfactory. Concerns regarding cash
flow and other budget items were reviewed by the Team and documentation provided in the Petition
was deemed satisfactory. The Charter Petition included the revolving fund repayment schedule in the
cash flow statement and it also included start-up costs in the 2018-19 planning year. The Review Team
reviewed overall support staff FTE and it was deemed to be adequate. The Local Control Funding
Formula was recalculated by the Review Team and the variance is approximately 0.1% of the Charter
School’s calculation, which is well within an acceptable standard variance. Finally, adequate reserves
are projected in each year displayed in the multi-year projections and the proposed Memorandum of
Understanding requires the Charter School to utilize the Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS)
account codes school identifier to maintain separate accounting of all budget allocations and Actuals
including revenues, encumbrances, and expenditures. Navigator Schools shall not commingle funds
between WPS and other charter schools operated by Navigator Schools for any purpose whatsoever.

83



EXHIBIT A
Page 9

Likelihood for Success

The Review Team concluded that the recent 5 year charter renewals of Hollister Prep School and
Gilroy Prep School served as strong evidence of the operational stability of Navigator Schools, Inc.
The results of Navigator Schools, Inc.’s statewide achievement data and high performance levels in
English Language Arts and Mathematics further support the potential success and sustainability of the
educational plan for WPS. These assessment results were documented on the website for the
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP), the Smarter Balanced
Assessment (SBAC), and referenced in the LCAPs). Review of Navigator Schools LCAP documents
clearly demonstrates the significant funds to support ongoing, job-embedded professional learning and
coaching for teachers as well as a proven track record of in-house training of new staff. The Review
Team concurred with the LCAP planned Actions and Services to improve student’s socio-emotional
wellbeing, behavior, and safety through implementation of Positive Behavior Interventions and
Supports (PBIS) training. The Review Team concluded that the Petition’s well defined educational
plan (including the 5 Compass Points), the integrated curriculum, instruction, and assessment model,
and the Petitioners focus on continuous improvement combine to forge a likelihood of success at WPS.

Additional minor concerns raised by the Review Team, which are not contained herein, have
been properly addressed through the proposed Memorandum of Understanding.

84



EXHIBIT A
Page 10

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Based on its review of the Petition, the Review Team recommends that the Petition be conditionally
approved in conjunction with the attached proposed Memorandum of Understanding.

The Review Team recommends that the above conditions be fully addressed to the satisfaction of the
County Board on or before October 1, 2018.

ALTERNATIVE ACTION

If the County Board determines that identified concerns cannot be adequately addressed or otherwise
constitute grounds for denial of the Petition per Education Code Section 47605, subdivision (b), the
following conditions would constitute “written factual findings, specific to the particular petition,
setting forth specific facts to support one or more” grounds for denying the Petition. Should they vote
to deny the Petition, the County Board could adopt these final findings of fact as their own:

The Petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all required
elements of a Charter Petition set forth in Education Code 47605.6(b)(5)

Local Parent/Community Involvement in Governance

The Petition does not include parent representation of a Watsonville Prep School parent at the
governance council to ensure “active and effective representation” parent representation in
accordance with EC §47605(b)(5)(D).

Transitional Kindergarten (TK)

The Petition does not include a description of the program to address the needs of transitional
kindergarten students as required in EC §48000(c)(3)(A).

Services for English Language Learners

The Petitioners’ policy for redesignation of English Language Learners excludes the
redesignation of students in grades earlier than grade 4 as required by EC § 313[f][1]; 5 CCR
§11302, 11303.

Facilities

The Petition does not provide a sufficient description of its facilities including where the
facilities will be located. Pursuant to Education Code §47605(g) a description of the facilities
to be used by the Petitioner, including the location of the facilities, must be provided as part of
the Petition. The Petition does not include a budget which includes any expense amount for
the rental of facilities.

85



Charter School Memorandum of
Understanding

Between
Santa Cruz County Board of Education,

Santa Cruz County Superintendent of
Schools/Office of Education,

And
Navigator Schools
which operates

Watsonville Prep School

August 16, 2018 — June 30, 2023

86



Table of Contents

I. PURPOSE OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING.......cccccteeierieieeiereeeeenn 2
II. TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING .......ccccoviiiieiirieeeeeeeenee. 3
III. TERM, RENEWAL, AND REVOCATION OF CHARTER .....c.cceovvviirieieienne. 4
SECTION 1: GOVERNANCE AND ORGANIZATIONAL MANAGEMENT.............. 5
1.1 Or@aNIZAtION. ... .eeeiiiieeiieeeieeeeieeeeteeertteeestteeetaeessteeessseeessseeessseeesseeessseesnsnesssneens 5
1.2 Governing Board COmMPOSItION ........c.eeviieiieriieeiieiieeiieriieeteeieeeieenieesveeieeseaeens 6
1.3 Governing Board ACHVITIES .......coeevuiriiriiiiniesieeieetesie ettt 6
1.4 AAMINISTIATION ...oiiviiiiiieiieeie ettt ettt et et eebe et eesbeessaeesseessaeenseenens 12
1.5 Human Resources Management ............cccueeerieeeiiieeniieeniieeniieenieeesieeesiee e 15
SECTION 2: EDUCATIONAL PERFORMANCE ........cccoiieiiieieieeee e 18
2.1 Educational Program...........c.cccceeoiieniiiiieniieiie ettt s 18
2.2 Evaluation of Educational Programs..........c.cccceeeiieriieiienieeiienie e 18
2.3 School Accountability. Annual LCAP ......c..ccccoiiiiiiiiiiicceeeee 20
2.4 COTTECTIVE ACLION. ...eeiiiiiiieiieeiie ettt ettt ettt et st saae s 20
2.5 Updates to Santa Cruz County Board of Education ...........cccccvceeviiviiniiniinennene 21
2.6 Services for Students with Disabiliti€s...........cccveeeiiiieiiieeeiiieiieee e 21
SECTION 3: FISCAL OPERATIONS .....c.etiiiiiiiieieieeeee et 23
3oL FUNAING ..ottt ettt ettt e b e et e et ae e enseasnseenneas 23
3.2 FISCAL AZENT ..ottt ettt et 24
3.3 Student Attendance Accounting and Reporting............cccceeveevevienienciieneenneennen. 24
3.4 Financial RePOTTING......cccuveiuiiiiieiieeieeiieeee ettt 25
3.5 ANNUAL AUIE.....oiiiiiieiiie e e e e et eaaeas 27
3.6 Monitoring and OVerSIZt..........ccuveriiiiiierieeiieieeie ettt 27

3.7 State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)/Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) RePOTtING ......c.ueeiiiiiiiiieeiieeeeecee et 28
SECTION 4: FULFILLING CHARTER TERMS ......ocoiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeee e 28
4.1 Material Revisions t0 Charter ...........cccvieevieeciieeeiie et 28
4.2 State ASSESSIMENLS ....eeeiiiiiiiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt st e st st e e st e s e e 29
4.3 STEE VISIES 1.euteeteiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt be et sa et e e s bt et e e saee bt enne 29
4.4 RENEWALS .....viiieiieeeiee ettt ettt e e et e e s tae e e baeeeasaeesaseeesnneeennes 30
4.5 Notice to Cure and RevVOCAtION ...........eevuieiiiiiiiiiiieieeie et 31
4.6 CloSUTE PrOCEAUIES .....eoviriiiiiiiiiitesieete ettt 32
SECTION 5: MEDIATION ......coiiiiiiiieeiieieeie ettt ettt et ae st ee e sseensesssenseeneas 33
SECTION 6: SEVERABILITY ....ooiiiiiiiieiteeee ettt 33
SECTION 7: NON-ASSIGNMENT .....ccciiiiiiiiiiniiiienteneeeestee et 33
SECTION 8: WAIVER.......ooieiiieeeetee ettt sttt eneas 34
SECTION 9: PUPIL TRANSPORTATION.......coiiiiiieteieeeee e 34
SECTION 10: NOTIFICATION ...c.coiiiiiiiiiieniteieeeetesie ettt st 34
Attachment A: Additional SEIVICES .......cccuiiieiuiieeiiiecieeeee e e 36
Attachment B: Special Education Local Plan Assurances..............c...ooveviiiiiennennnn. 38
Attachment C: Timeline for 2018-2019........ciiiiiii e 39
Attachment D: The Charter Petition...............oooiiiiiiiiiiii e, 41

87



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into this 16™ day of
August, 2018 by, between, and among the Santa Cruz County Board of Education
(hereinafter “the County Board”), Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools/Office of
Education (hereinafter “the Santa Cruz COE”), and Navigator Schools which operates
Watsonville Prep School, (hereinafter referred to as “WPS” or “Charter School”).
Hereinafter, the County Board, the Santa Cruz COE, and WPS shall be collectively referred
to as “the parties.”

. PURPOSE OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

A. The State of California enacted the Charter Schools Act of 1992
(hereinafter “The Act”) authorizing the formation of charter schools with
the intent that the schools improve student learning through a variety of
means, including increased learning opportunities, innovative teaching
methods, performance-based accountability, and expanded choice for
parents within the public school system.

B. The Act authorizes the County Board to grant charter petitions under
specified circumstances. The County Board has approved a charter
petition for WPS for a five-year period beginning August 16, 2018
through June 30, 2023 (hereinafter the “Charter”).

C. WPS is operated by Navigator Schools, as a California non-profit public
benefit corporation in accordance with Education Code section 47604.
WPS and the Navigator Schools Board of Directors are responsible for the
Charter School’s compliance with the terms of the Charter and with this
MOU.

D. All parties agree that no single party to this MOU waives any of the rights,
responsibilities and privileges established by the Charter Schools Act of
1992 that may change from time to time during the Term of this MOU.

E. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the County Board has, by
agreement with the County Superintendent, delegated its obligations to
oversee the Charter School, whether arising at law, by the terms of Charter
School’s Charter, by this Agreement, or from any other source, to the
County Superintendent; and in connection with the said delegation, the
County Superintendent shall report periodically to the County Board.

F. The fundamental interest of the Santa Cruz COE and County Board is — on
a continuing basis — to be reasonably assured that WPS is:

88



° Implementing the provisions of the Charter as approved.

° Obeying all requirements of federal, state, and local law that apply
to the Charter School.

° Being operated prudently and soundly in all respects.
° Providing a sound education for all of the Charter School’s
students.

The parties recognize that there are a limited number of matters related to
the operation of this Charter School and the effective oversight of WPS,
which go beyond the provisions included in the Charter School’s Petition
or which need further clarification. Santa Cruz COE also acknowledges
that the operation of Charter School is to be solely carried out by WPS.
This MOU is intended to address those matters that have not been covered
in the Charter and to provide guidance on the oversight policies and
procedures of Santa Cruz COE. Further, this MOU is intended to outline
the parties’ agreements governing their respective fiscal and administrative
responsibilities and their legal relationships.

The parties recognize and agree that WPS shall not charge tuition, shall be
nonsectarian, and shall be open to all students regardless of the characteristics
listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender,
gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion,
sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition
of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including
immigration status or association with an individual who has any of the
aforementioned characteristics) and those provisions of non-discrimination
shall apply as well to employment.

1. TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

A.

This MOU shall commence on August 16, 2018, and end on June 30, 2023
(“Term”). This MOU between and among the Santa Cruz County Board
of Education, County Superintendent, and WPS shall include Attachment
A (Additional Services), Attachment B (Special Education Local Plan
Assurances), Attachment C (Timeline) and Attachment D (the Charter
Petition), and is subject to termination during this Term or during any
renewal of the Charter as specified by law or as otherwise set forth in this
MOU. Should the County Board deny the Petition, in the event the
conditions set forth in the Conditional Approval Resolution are not met,
this MOU shall automatically terminate.

Any modification of this MOU must be in writing and executed by duly
authorized representatives of all parties.

&9



1. The duly authorized representative of WPS are its Chief Executive
Officer, Principal, or designee.

2. The duly authorized representative of the County Board is the
President of the County Board of Education or designee. However,
this representative does not have authority to act on behalf of the
County Board without approval by a majority of the County
Board’s membership.

3. The duly authorized representative of the Santa Cruz COE is the
County Superintendent of Schools or designee. For purposes of
material amendments to the Charter, such amendments take effect
only if approved by WPS and the County Board.

Communication with the Santa Cruz COE regarding progress towards
resolution of the identified areas of concern as set forth in the Santa Cruz
COE Staff Report and Findings of Fact shall take place quarterly during
the 2018-19 school year and in accordance with specific timelines set forth
herein.

This MOU is for the term of the Charter and shall be reviewed at least
annually by the parties. Proposed revisions to the MOU will be submitted
by July 1 annually, or as may be requested by WPS, the County Board, or
the Santa Cruz COE. In the case of mid-year changes in applicable laws,
the Santa Cruz COE reserves the right to request mid-year modifications
to this MOU. Such modifications, if agreed upon, will be included as
addendums to the MOU. The approved MOU and addendums will
continue unless modified and agreed to in writing by all parties. This
MOU will automatically expire upon the expiration or revocation of the
Charter. However, the MOU will not expire pending any appeal of a
denied renewal or revocation.

11 TERM, RENEWAL, AND REVOCATION OF CHARTER

A.

WPS is a public charter school that shall be operated pursuant to the
charter petition (Attachment D).

The Charter School will operate with grades Transitional Kindergarten
(TK) through 5 and may grow to serve an approximate enrollment of up to
390 student enrollment growth during the chartered period. WPS shall be
responsible to provide a Transitional Kindergarten Program to students
eligible to attend WPS unless they are able to secure an agreement with
Pajaro Valley Unified School District to provide a TK program to WPS
students. WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE with a description of its TK
program or the written agreement with PVUSD to serve its TK students.

90



C. WPS shall be responsible for all the functions of the Charter School as a
public charter school subject to terms and conditions set forth in this
MOU, the Charter and applicable law.

D. The Charter School’s Petition shall have a five (5) year term and expire on
June 30, 2023. The parties acknowledge that the provisions of the Charter
and this MOU are not intended to conflict. However, in case of conflict
between the Charter and MOU, the parties agree to meet as soon as
possible to negotiate an amendment to the MOU (or Charter, if necessary
— which shall require County Board approval for material changes). In the
interim, however, this MOU shall control.

E. Future review and renewal of the Charter shall be in accordance with state
and federal law, and as described under Section 4.3 of this MOU. The
County Board reserves the right to approve amendments to the Charter
and/or revoke the Charter as specified in EC section 47607 and applicable
regulations, if any.

SECTION 1: GOVERNANCE AND ORGANIZATIONAL MANAGEMENT

The Charter School will operate consistent with EC Section 47604(a). Navigator
Schools is a separate legal entity and neither the County Board nor the Santa Cruz
COE is liable for the debts and obligations of WPS as per EC 47604(c).

The parties further recognize that consistent with the Charter approved by the
County Board, Navigator Schools has obtained and maintains during the term of
this MOU and Charter Petition status as a non-profit, public benefit corporation as
provided in EC 47604.

WPS will use all revenue received from state and federal sources only for the
educational services and related activities specified in the Charter and this MOU
for the benefit of the students enrolled and attending Charter School.

Other sources of funding must be used in accordance with applicable state and
federal statutes, and the terms or conditions, if any, of any grant or donation.

1.1  Organization
Prior to the effective date of the Charter, and at all times it is operational,
WPS will have the following information posted on its Internet site
(http://www.navigatorschools.org) and will update the posting as quickly

as possible whenever the information changes:

a) Contact information, including phone numbers and e-mail
addresses of the principal contacts for Charter School; and

91




1.2

1.3

b)

The Charter School’s management organization chart displaying
WPS’ governing board and listing of all the names and contact
information for the Charter School leadership.

WPS will provide Santa Cruz COE with written notice of any
change in the directors, officers, and administrators within twenty
(20) business days.

Governing Board Composition

Prior to the effective date of the Charter, and at all times it is operational,
WPS will have the following information posted on its Internet site
(http://www .navigatorschools.org) and will update the posting as quickly
as possible whenever the information changes:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Articles of Incorporation as filed with the California Secretary of
State.

Bylaws approved by Navigator Schools.

Notice of approval of federal 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status of
Navigator Schools.

Conflict of Interest policy applicable to Navigator Schools.
Roster of current Board of Directors of Navigator Schools.

Membership process for the Board of Directors of Navigator
Schools.

Governing Board Activities

a)

b)

Calendar

WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE an annual calendar of
governing board meetings for WPS including a description of how
parents of WPS students and community members will be notified
of the meetings. This calendar shall be posted on the Internet
(http://www.navigatorschools.org).

Brown Act Training

Prior to the effective date of the Charter, WPS shall provide
verification by letter to Santa Cruz COE that all members of the
governing board of Navigator Schools, administrative staff, and
any other staff relative to the Charter School deemed appropriate
by WPS have participated in Brown Act training.

92



d)

Governing Board Meetings

The governing board of Navigator Schools shall conduct public
meetings at such intervals as are necessary to ensure that the
governing board is providing sufficient direction to WPS through
implementation of effective policies and procedures. Governing
board meetings of Navigator Schools will be conducted in keeping
with the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government
Code sections 54950 — 54962).

1) All agendas shall be provided to the Santa Cruz COE
electronically at least 3 working days in advance of the
board meeting when posted and such posting shall be in a
conspicuous location and on the Internet in accordance with
the Brown Act ((http://www.navigatorschools.org).

2) Minutes of each meeting whether regular or special shall
also be made available to the Santa Cruz COE within ten
(10) working days of approval.

3) Approved Charter School Governing board meeting
agendas and minutes will be posted on the Internet
(http://www .navigatorschools.org)

4) Governing Board meeting agendas and minutes of WPS
shall be maintained and available for public inspection and

during site visits.

Governing Board Policies

The governing board will adopt policies and procedures to guide
the operation of WPS, and WPS will post the policies and
procedures on the Internet (http://www.navigatorschools.org)
updating the posting as quickly as possible following any change.
The policies and procedures will include, but not be limited to, the
following:

1) Conflicts of Interest

Navigator Schools’ Governing board shall: (1) adopt a
conflict of interest policy, including provisions related to
nepotism, for itself, for Charter School, and for Navigator
Schools’ employees and contractors, to ensure that no
action taken by an individual or organization covered by
the policy results in an actual or apparent conflict of
interest; and (2) provide Santa Cruz COE verification that

93



2)

3)

4)

5)

all Navigator Schools’ board members and employees
deemed appropriate by Navigator Schools’ have
participated in conflict of interest training. Navigator
Schools’ Governing Board shall comply with all
requirements of Government Code section 1090.

Representation of WPS Parents on Navigator Schools.
Navigator Schools Board

Navigator Schools will add a WPS parent voting position
on the Navigator Schools Board of Directors. Board
meetings will take place in a location convenient to all
charter schools operated by Navigator Schools, and rotate
board meetings among all schools.

Representation of WPS

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors, when acting on
behalf of WPS, shall make decisions in the best interest of
WPS. If the Navigator Schools Governing Board
determines that there may be potential competing interests
between WPS and other charter schools served by
Navigator Schools the Navigator Schools Governing Board
shall immediately disclose the potential competing interests
to the County Superintendent and the parties shall work
together to determine the appropriate remedy.

Internal Fiscal Controls

Navigator Schools will maintain internal fiscal control
policies governing all financial activities of Charter School.
Navigator Schools shall provide Santa Cruz COE a copy of
its internal fiscal control policies governing all financial
activities approved by Navigator School’s governing board
as policies are revised. Such policies and procedures are
subject to review during site visits to see that they are being
implemented.

Campus Supervision

WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE a copy of the
governing board policy of Navigator Schools relative to the
supervision of Charter School students before and after
school and while on campus, student field trips, student
pick-up, as well as a procedure for visitors to enter and
leave campus.

94



6)

7)

8)

Discipline Policies

WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE a copy of the governing
board policies of WPS relative to student discipline,
including a list of the offenses for which students may be
suspended or expelled, the procedures for suspension or
expulsion, procedures by which parents and students will be
informed about reasons for suspension or expulsion, and of
their due process rights in regard to either disciplinary
action. WPS’ student discipline policy shall be in
compliance with Education Code § 47605(b)(5)(J).

Parent/Student Handbook

WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE a copy of the
parent/student handbook for the Charter School. At a
minimum, the handbook shall include detailed expectations
for student attendance, behavior, and discipline, including
policies and consequences for bullying and harassment, due
process rights related to discipline (including suspension,
expulsion, and special education), and a description of both
informal and formal complaint procedures that parents may
pursue in the event of disagreements. WPS will provide an
electronic copy of the parent/student handbook to each
family in the language spoken at home at the beginning of
each year and will post a copy on the Internet in both
English and Spanish. Upon request, WPS will promptly
also provide a hardcopy of the parent/student handbook to
anyone requesting a copy.

Complaint Procedure

WPS shall address, respond, investigate, and take any and all
necessary action to respond to all complaints received under,
among other issues, the Charter School’s uniform complaint
procedure, including, but not limited to those complaints
involving Special Education and IDEA or 504/ADA
compliance. A copy of the Uniform Complaint Form and a
description of the complaint procedure will be included in
both the Parent/Student Handbook and the Employee
Handbook. Complaints filed with the Charter School, whether
formal or informal, and including complaints filed with any
governmental entity other than the Santa Cruz COE must be
provided to the Santa Cruz COE within three (3) working days
of receipt by the Charter School. Complaints regarding the
Charter School received by the Santa Cruz COE, whether

95



formal or informal, shall be communicated to the Charter
School within three (3) working days of the Santa Cruz COE’s
receipt of such complaints. If any such complaint raises an
issue or issues that may be grounds for revocation or non-
renewal of the charter, the Santa Cruz COE may request that
the Charter School report to the Santa Cruz COE on how such
complaints are being addressed, and the Charter School agrees
to provide such information upon the Santa Cruz COE’s
request. The Charter School shall make such information
available to the Santa Cruz COE for inspection and copying
upon request during regular business hours or, upon request,
the Charter School shall deliver to the Santa Cruz COE within
ten (10) business days a current copy of any requested records
or information. Under all circumstances, the Charter School
will cooperate fully in the release of information to the Santa
Cruz COE to assist in the Santa Cruz COE’s oversight
obligations.

Health and Safety Plan

At all times it is operational, WPS will have the following
information posted on the Internet (http://www.navigatorschools.org)
and will update the posting as quickly as possible whenever the
information changes:

1)

2)

3)

A copy of the health, safety, and emergency plan for
Charter School students and employees.

Certification that staff has been trained in health, safety,
and emergency procedures.

A Copy of the Charter School’s Emergency Preparedness
Plan

The health and safety plan shall address at a minimum, fire
emergencies, earthquakes and other natural disasters, civil
disorder, accidents, injuries, and other threats to the health and
safety of students and staff. WPS shall provide training for staff in
responding to emergencies and conduct emergency response drills
for its students. WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE a copy of the
annual calendar of emergency drills for students at the Charter
School.

96



f)

g)

h)

Notice to Parents/Guardians

1) Prior to the effective date of the Charter, and at all times it
is operational, WPS will have posted on the Internet
(http://www.navigatorschools.org) information concerning
the rights of parents and guardians under the applicable
provisions of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act
(ESSA) and the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
(FERPA), and will update the posting as quickly as
possible whenever the information changes. WPS will also
provide a hardcopy to families upon request.

2) If the Charter School receives Title I funding on behalf of
Charter School, parent notice shall provide information
regarding the federal Every Student Succeeds (ESSA) Act.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

WPS employees have a legitimate educational interest such that
they are entitled to access to education records under 20 U.S.C.A.
§ 1232g, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA).
The Charter School, its officers and employees shall comply with
FERPA at all times. In addition, it is agreed that the Santa Cruz
COE has a legitimate educational interest in the educational
records of Charter School’s students such that the Santa Cruz COE
shall have access to those records. Records shall, at a minimum,
include emergency contact information, health and immunization
data, attendance summaries, and academic performance data from
the statewide student assessments required pursuant to EC sections

60605 and 60851.

Criminal Records Summaries

At all times during the Term of the Charter, WPS employees who
will be performing services with Charter School students that are
not under the direct supervision of a certificated teacher, and onsite
vendors having unsupervised contact with Charter School students
will submit to background checks and fingerprinting in accordance
with EC Section 45125.1. WPS will provide certification to Santa
Cruz COE that all employees, and volunteers/vendors (as
applicable) have clear criminal records summaries prior to their
having any unsupervised contact with students. WPS shall
maintain on file and have available for inspection during site visits,
evidence that it has performed criminal background checks for all
employees and documentation certifying that vendors have
conducted required criminal background checks for their
employees prior to any unsupervised contact with students.

97



Administration

Prior to the effective date the Charter, and at all times it is operational,
WPS will have the following information posted on the Internet
(http://www.navigatorschools.org) and will update the posting as quickly
as possible whenever the information changes:

a) Enrollment and Admissions Documentation

1) Procedures for enrollment, admission, and the public
random drawing.

2) Descriptions of outreach and recruitment activities that
have been conducted to reach target population.

3) Evidence that enrollment preferences and random drawing
preferences are consistent with the Charter and applicable
law, including but not limited to Education Code §
47605(d).

4) A copy of the application and enrollment forms and
information provided to prospective families.

5) Process for exiting a student from WPS for other than
disciplinary reasons and communicating their dismissal to
the Santa Cruz COE.

By CBEDS date of each year, WPS shall also provide the Santa Cruz COE
with electronic documentation of enrollment, including each student’s

name.

b) Required Disclosures

WPS shall immediately notify Santa Cruz COE of any pending or
actual litigation and/or claim from any party or notice of potential
infraction, criminal or civil action against WPS, its officers or any
employee, agent or volunteer that may involve or affect WPS. In
addition, WPS shall immediately notify Santa Cruz COE of any
request for information by any governmental agency about WPS.
Santa Cruz COE shall immediately notify WPS of any pending or
actual litigation and/or claim from any party or notice of any
potential litigation and/or claim against Santa Cruz COE, the
County Board, or WPS, that may involve or affect WPS. In
addition, the Santa Cruz COE shall immediately notify WPS of
any request for information by any governmental entity about the
Charter School.

98



d)

School Accountability Report Card (SARC)

On or before February 1% of Charter School year, WPS shall post its
SARC on the WPS website (http://www.navigatorschools.org).

WPS will use the template developed by the California Department
of Education (CDE) as a guide which is available at
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa. WPS may add or delete elements of
the SARC in accordance with applicable law.

Inquiries or Requests for Information

WPS shall promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries by the
Santa Cruz COE, County Board, the Superintendent of Public
Instruction, and their respective designees, including but not
limited to the financial records of the Charter School and shall
consult with the County Superintendent or his/her designee
regarding any inquiries as per EC 47604.3 within 5 business days
of inquiry.

Insurance and Risk Management

WPS shall procure from an insurance carrier licensed to do
business in the State of California or a qualified JPA (joint powers
authority) registered with the California Department of Industrial
Relations, and keep in full force during the term of the Charter and
will provide annually a copy of the certificate of coverage, at least
the following insurance coverage concerning WPS:

1) Property Insurance

Covering damage, destruction or loss personal property
owned by WPS or located at premises occupied by WPS,
providing for replacement value and the loss of use of such
property, which will include all assets listed in the
applicable property inventory and consumables.

2) General Liability

At least $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate, in addition no less than $15,000,000 in total
general liability insurance or excess as deemed appropriate
per current insurer (NCR), providing coverage for
negligence, errors and omissions/educators legal liability,
abuse and molestation, and employment practices liability
of WPS, its governing board, officers, agents, employees,
or students of WPS. The deductible per occurrence for said

99



insurance shall not exceed $20,000 for any and all losses
resulting from negligence, errors and omissions of WPS, its
governing board, officers, agents, employees, or students of
WPS.

3) Workers” Compensation

In accordance with the provisions of the California Labor
Code, insurance adequate to protect WPS from claims
under Workers’ Compensation Acts which may arise from
its operation of WPS, with statutory limits.

4) Automobile Insurance

To the extent necessary and in amounts appropriate for the
type and use of any automobile.

WPS shall provide evidence of all applicable insurance coverage to Santa Cruz
COE prior to operation of WPS, but not later than June 30, 2019, and annually
thereafter and will instruct the insurance carrier(s) to inform the Santa Cruz COE
immediately if the coverage becomes inoperative for any reason. The County
Board and the County Superintendent and his office shall be named as also
insured on the above policies. If for any reason any of the above insurance
becomes inoperative, WPS shall provide a written explanation within 2 calendar
days and shall immediately cease operation unless otherwise agreed to by Santa
Cruz COE. All parties agree that the absence of any insurance listed above shall
be deemed sufficient reason for revocation of the Petition and immediate
cessation of operation of the Charter School. WPS shall have 10 working days to
provide the COE with proof of insurance.

WPS shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the County Board, Santa Cruz COE,
its officers, agents and employees, from every liability, claim, or demand which may
be made by reason of (1) any injury to volunteers; and (2) any injury to person or
property sustained by any person, firm, or corporation caused by any intentional or
negligent act or omission of WPS, its officers, employees or agents. In cases of such
liabilities, claims, or demands, WPS, at its own expense and risk, shall with legal
counsel satisfactory to Santa Cruz COE defend and indemnify the County Board,
Santa Cruz COE, its officers and employees, with their full cooperation, and shall
satisfy any resulting judgments up to the required amounts that may be rendered
against any of them. This indemnity and hold harmless provision shall exclude
actions brought by third persons against Santa Cruz COE or County Board arising
solely out of the negligence or intentional acts, errors, or omissions of the Santa Cruz
COE or the County Board, its directors, employees, officers and agents.

100



Santa Cruz COE and the County Board shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify
WPS, its officers, agents and employees, from every liability, claim, or demand
which may be made by reason of (1) any injury to volunteers; and (2) any injury to
person or property sustained by any person, firm, or corporation caused by any
intentional or negligent act or omission of Santa Cruz COE or the County Board, its
officers, employees or agents. In cases of such liabilities, claims, or demands, Santa
Cruz COE and/or County Board, at its own expense and risk, shall with legal counsel
satisfactory to WPS defend and indemnify WPS, its officers and employees, with
their full cooperation, and shall satisfy any resulting judgments up to the required
amounts that may be rendered against any of them. This indemnity and hold
harmless provision shall exclude actions brought by third persons against WPS
arising solely out of the negligence or intentional acts, errors, or omissions of WPS,
its directors, employees, officers and agents.

15 Human Resources Management

Navigator Schools is deemed the exclusive employer of the employees of
WPS for the purposes of the Educational Employee Relations Act (EERA)
under Government Code Section 3540, et. seq. Navigator Schools will
have sole responsibility for employment, management, dismissal, and
discipline of its employees.

a) Employee Handbook

Prior to the effective date of the Charter, and at all times it is
operational, WPS will have posted on the Internet

(http://www .navigatorschools.org) (and will update the posting as
quickly as possible whenever the information changes), a copy of
the employee handbook that will be distributed to employees at
WPS each year. At a minimum, the handbook shall include
detailed expectations for employee performance and behavior, due
process rights of employees related to disciplinary actions
(including termination), compensation and benefit information, and
a description of both informal and formal complaint procedures
that employees may pursue in the event of disagreements. WPS
may provide the Santa Cruz COE with an electronic copy of the
document in lieu of posting it on the Internet.

b) Employee Agreements

Prior to the effective date of the Charter, WPS will provide Santa
Cruz COE sample employee agreement(s) that, at a minimum, state
that Navigator Schools is the exclusive employer of employees and
has sole responsibility for employment, management, dismissal, and
discipline of its employees. WPS will provide Santa Cruz COE
with updated versions of the sample employee agreement(s) when
any changes are made to them during the Term of the Charter.

101



1.6

d)

Teacher Credentials and Requirements

By August 15" of each year thereafter, WPS shall provide the
Santa Cruz COE proof that all WPS teachers hold a Commission
on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document
equivalent to that which teachers in other public schools are
required to hold, except as otherwise exempted by the Charter
Schools Act. The certification will also cover the compliance with
WPS will have documentation on file (for inspection upon request)
of its teachers’ credentials.

ESSA and Education Code 47605(1)

The Charter School will be responsible for ensuring its staff is
compliant with all applicable provisions of the federal Every
Student Succeeds Acts (ESSA) and Education Code section
47605(1).

STRS & PERS Reporting Requirements

WPS shall accept and assume sole financial responsibility for all
STRS and PERS reporting fines and penalties resulting from
incomplete, inaccurate, or late reports and/or inadequate or late
deposits from any cause whatsoever, except the sole negligence of
the Santa Cruz COE. Such responsibility shall include but not be
limited to any and all reporting fines and/or penalties.

Facilities

It is understood and agreed that the County Board and/or the Santa Cruz
COE have no obligation to provide facilities to WPS. If WPS seeks
facilities from a school district in which it intends to locate under
Proposition 39, it shall follow applicable statute and regulations regarding
submission of such a request to a district. WPS shall provide a copy of
each Proposition 39 request to Santa Cruz COE at the time of submitting
its request to any school district.

a)

WPS shall provide the County Superintendent no later than
October 1, 2018 with a Facility Plan which includes a
description of desired facilities, related costs, and their
intention to pursue or not a Prop 39 request. In accordance
with Education Code section 47605(g), the Facility Plan shall
provide a detailed description of the facility that WPS will use
for the operation of its school.

102



b)

d)

g)

h)

If WPS requests facilities pursuant to Prop 39, WPS shall provide
the County Superintendent no later than July 15, 2019, with the
copies of any signed Facility Use Agreements.

To the extent that Charter School obtains its own site, Charter
School shall be responsible for the costs of maintenance,
operations and furnishing of its facilities. Such facilities shall meet
all applicable health and fire code requirements and shall be of
sufficient size to safely house anticipated enrollment.

Charter School recognizes that its facilities and programs must
conform with the Americans with Disabilities Act and any other
federal requirement that may be applicable to charter schools. The
cost of compliance is the sole responsibility of Charter School. If
during the term of this MOU, Charter School were to occupy
Pajaro Valley Unified School District buildings, the parties would
address responsibility for ADA compliance related to the
buildings.

Prior to entering into any contract for land or buildings, Charter
School shall review the proposed contract with the Santa Cruz
COE. Review by the Santa Cruz COE does not constitute approval
or liability for any debts incurred by Charter School under or
pursuant to the contract. Such review has as its sole purpose
monitoring information and ensuring compliance of the Charter
Petition.

The Charter School shall report any new or revised lease
agreements or facility purchases within 5 business days of
approval and will provide copies of any Facility Use Agreements.

In August of each year WPS shall provide a report to the Santa
Cruz COE on all of'its current or revised facility lease agreements.

Zoning and Occupancy: WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE a
certification that the Charter School’s facility is located in an area
that is properly zoned for operation of a school and that has been
cleared for student occupancy by all appropriate local authorities.
All facilities must meet all applicable health and fire code
requirements and zoning laws in accordance with Education Code
Section 47610. WPS will furnish the Santa Cruz COE, upon
request, with all local approvals (EC § 47610(d)) including
applicable fire marshal clearances, certificates of occupancy,
signed building permit inspections and approved zoning variances.
WPS cannot exempt itself from applicable local zoning or building
code ordinances without prior approval of the Santa Cruz COE,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

103



SECTION 2: EDUCATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Educational Program

By August 1*' of each year and at all times it is operational, WPS will have the
following information posted on the Internet (http://www.navigatorschools.org)
and will update the posting as quickly as possible whenever the information
changes:

a) Scope and sequence for all subjects to be offered by WPS.

b) The complete educational program for students to be served
including, but not limited to: (1) a description of the curriculum
and identification of the basic instructional materials to be used,

(2) plans for professional development of instructional personnel to
deliver the curriculum and use the instructional materials, (3)
identification of specific assessments that will be used in addition
to the results of the California Assessment of Student Performance
and Progress (CAASPP) program in evaluation of student
progress.

c) Annual calendar for the WPS school year that includes the number
of instructional days (must provide a minimum of 175 days or as
otherwise required by law), annual instructional minutes offered,
and the number of professional development days.

d) Daily bell schedule for site based programs.

Evaluation of Educational Programs

a) Annual Report of Activities

By November 30 of each year, WPS shall post on the Internet
(http://www.navigatorschools.org) and submit a report for WPS to
the Santa Cruz COE for the prior year that examines the following
(“Annual Report”):

1) CAASPP results both in aggregate and disaggregated by
numerically significant subgroups.

2) Progress made toward meeting LCAP student achievement
targets.
3) Progress made toward each of the educational goals and

student outcomes identified in the Charter including but not
limited to the statewide and local indicators in the
California School Dashboard.

104



b)

4) Results and analysis of any additional internal, interim
assessments used by WPS including but not limited to
STAR Reading and Math, NWEA MAP, and assessments
of progress of English Learners in English Language
Development.

5) The fulfillment of the school’s purposes and goals,
including plans to address areas, if any, that WPS has
identified as needing improvement by WPS.

6) Culture and climate of the school including attendance
patterns, parent satisfaction surveys, and community
participation.

7) Evidence that the Charter School is systematically
examining student data and using it to drive decisions

regarding curriculum and instruction.

Annual Plan Regarding ELs and other Special Needs Students

A continuing plan for the support of students requiring academic
assistance to meet school curriculum and assessment requirements,
including English Learners and those with identified special
education needs, as well as for students continuing to be unsuccessful
even with additional support, shall also be submitted to the Santa
Cruz COE in written form on or before October 30 of each year. The
plan shall include data regarding the number of English Learners in
any grade level redesignated during the prior year in accordance with
state and federal guidelines (EC §313[f][1]; 5 CCR §11302, 11303)
as well as the academic standing of Redesignated Fluent English
Proficient (RFEP) students for four years following redesignation.
The plan shall be reassessed, at a minimum, on an annual basis to
measure the effectiveness of the program to meet established goals
and WPS shall make revisions as required.

The Annual Report shall be used as a central area of focus for site
visits. WPS will provide specific evidence that the results, as
shown in the Annual Report, are targeting improvement in student
achievement and that WPS is financially sound. The report should
target any state indicator that are below the blue/green performance
levels on the California School Dashboard and describe plans for
addressing the areas in need of improvement.

105



2.3

2.4

C) The Transitional Kindergarten Program, whether operated by WPS
or another school district, shall have a developmentally appropriate
curriculum and assessment plan and such documents shall be
submitted to the County Superintendent for approval no later than
October 1, 2018 and once approved, shall become a part of the
Charter Petition. The curriculum and assessment plans shall meet
the requirements of EC Section 48000(g) and be aligned to the CA
Preschool Learning Foundations and the CA Preschool Curriculum
Frameworks per Senate Bill 858.

School Accountability. Annual LCAP

The Charter School shall comply with Education Code section 47606.5
and its implementing regulations, including any subsequent amendments.
The Charter School’s Local Control and Accountability Plan (“LCAP”),
and annual updates thereto as required by law, shall be annually provided
to the District by July 1, unless a different date is established by law. The
Charter School may utilize the State Board of Education’s template to
submit its LCAP pursuant to this section. To the extent practicable, the
Charter School shall report LCAP data in a manner consistent with how
information is reported on a School Accountability Report Card.

Corrective Action

Charter School will not be required to submit a Corrective Action Plan
should it meet all academic and fiscal goals. However, a Corrective
Action Plan shall be required should Charter School fail to meet goals,
including but not limited to insufficient academic progress in one or more
major subgroups for two consecutive years as reported in the California
School Dashboard; fail to generate sufficient reserves for economic
uncertainty after one year of operation; or receive one or more significant
independent audit findings. Should the Charter School require a
Corrective Action Plan, the Charter School must comply with the terms
and conditions specified in the Corrective Action Plan, as determined by
the Santa Cruz COE. Corrective Action Plans submitted to the Santa Cruz
COE shall be required to target goal, required actions, and anticipated
outcomes toward improvement in desired area of growth using clearly
defined objective measures.

a) Student Achievement Plan
Should a Student Achievement Plan be required, the Charter School

shall submit a draft plan to the Santa Cruz COE by October 1 and
submit a final plan by December 1.

106



2.5

2.6

b)

Fiscal Performance Improvement Plan: Should a Fiscal
Performance Improvement Plan be required, the Charter School
shall submit a draft plan to the Santa Cruz COE by October 1 and
submit a final plan by December 1.

Updates to Santa Cruz County Board of Education

At the request of Santa Cruz COE, WPS shall present updates and or reports
to the Santa Cruz County Board of Education during the year.

Services for Students with Disabilities

a)

b)

It is recognized that WPS is a member of the El Dorado County
Charters SELPA, that WPS shall be categorized as a local
education agency (LEA) for the purpose of providing special
education services to students of WPS. As set forth in Education
Code sections 47640, 47641 and 47644, WPS, serving as an LEA,
shall be responsible for complying with all provisions of 20
U.S.C., Chapter 33 and its implementing regulations as they relate
to LEAs. WPS shall provide a copy of the Local Plan and
approval of WPS as an LEA member of the El Dorado County
Charters SELPA if requested.

WPS shall assume all responsibility, including but not limited to
full financial responsibility, for the implementation and continuing
operation of all items identified in this Section, specifically any
and all costs associated with the provision of special education and
related services and accommodations under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act, for all students who are enrolled in WPS, over
and above any state or federal funding received for such purposes.

Special Education Staffing

WPS shall provide its own properly credentialed and fully
qualified coordinator for special education and shall be responsible
for referrals, identification, assessments, IEP and Section 504 team
meetings, implementation of Section 504 Plans and IEPs,
complaints, mediations, and due process hearings. WPS may
contract with any other school district for other services on behalf
of WPS, provided that such are available and are at no cost to the
County Board and/or Santa Cruz COE. Written agreements shall
be authored to specify such services and costs. It is further
recognized that WPS may contract with a SELPA, employ its own
staff and/or contract with other vendors to deliver services required
by the IEPs and/or Section 504 Plans of students enrolled in WPS
and as otherwise required by applicable state and federal laws.

107



d)

2

To the extent that the delivery of Section 504 and/or special
education services and adherence to Section 504 and special
education laws have costs in excess of revenue allocated to WPS
for such purposes, WPS shall be responsible for any and all such
costs related to students of WPS.

Requests For Information

WPS agrees to fully and promptly comply with any requests for
information made by the Santa Cruz COE with regard to special
education services and individual students within 2 business days
of the request. The Santa Cruz COE may establish regular
meetings with the Charter School’s coordinator for purposes of
reviewing special education and/or Section 504 compliance. The
Santa Cruz COE may also take action to monitor WPS to ensure
that special education and/or Section 504 services are being
provided as required by law and applicable SELPA policy.

Certification Requirements

WPS agrees to defend with legal counsel satisfactory to Santa Cruz
COE, approval of which will not be unreasonably withheld and to
hold harmless the County Board, the County Superintendent, the
Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and each of their officers,
directors, agents and employees, from and against any and all costs,
including attorney’s fees, and/or awards related to complaints, due
process hearings, mediations or any and all forms of litigation
relating to special education and/or Section 504 matters for WPS
students. WPS shall provide the Santa Cruz COE with annual
written certification that WPS has complied with its Section 504
and special education obligations as part of the Charter School’s
Annual Update Report. WPS acknowledges that its failure to
provide all Section 504 and/or special education services required in
student Section 504 Plans and IEPs may constitute a material
violation of the conditions, standards and procedures set forth in the
Charter, this MOU, as well as violation of applicable law sufficient
to support the County Board’s revocation of WPS’s Charter
pursuant to Education Code Section 47607.

Communication

WPS will develop a process for notifying a district of residence
when a special education student enrolls, becomes eligible,
ineligible, and/or leaves the school.

108



SECTION 3: FISCAL OPERATIONS

3.1

Funding

WPS will be directly funded in accordance with EC Section 47651. The
Charter School’s general purpose entitlement will be calculated in
accordance with applicable provisions of The Act including EC Section
47633 et seq. The parties recognize the authority of WPS to pursue
additional sources of funding.

a) The parties agree that the Charter School’s funding per ADA shall
not exceed enrollment capacity. The parties agree that the
maximum enrollment capacity of current Charter School facilities
shall be 420 (current estimated enrollment growth). Enrollment
capacity shall be revised, as necessary, once WPS identifies its
facilities as required by this MOU.

b) The parties specifically agree that it is not the responsibility of the
Santa Cruz COE (except as a distributing agent) to provide funding
in lieu of property taxes to WPS.

c) WPS shall establish a fiscal plan for repayment of any loans
received by WPS for the Charter School in advance of receipt of
such loans. It is agreed that all loans sought by WPS for the
Charter School shall be authorized in writing in advance by WPS
and shall be the sole responsibility of WPS. In no event shall the
County Board and/or the Santa Cruz COE have any obligation for
repayment of such loans. WPS shall provide advance written
notice to the County Board and the Santa Cruz COE specifying its
intent to apply for a loan for Charter School. WPS shall also
provide advance written notice of deposit of any sums which are
loans for the Charter School and the plan for repayment.

d) In general, the Santa Cruz COE shall not advance any funds to
WPS, except as a distributing agent and not from its own account.
In addition, the Santa Cruz COE shall not act or provide a line of
credit to WPS.

e) Navigator Schools shall utilize the Standardized Account Code
Structure (SACS) account codes school identifier to maintain
separate accounting of all budget allocations and Actuals including
revenues, encumbrances, and expenditures. Navigator Schools
shall not commingle funds between WPS and other charter schools
operated by Navigator Schools for any purpose whatsoever.

109




3.2

3.3

Fiscal Agent

a)

b)

The parties agree that neither the Santa Cruz COE nor the County
Board shall act as fiscal agent for Navigator Schools. It is agreed
that Navigator Schools shall be solely responsible for all fiscal
services for the Charter School such as payroll, purchasing,
attendance reporting, and completion and submission of state
budget forms, but may contract with the Santa Cruz COE for such
services to WPS by way of mutual agreement.

To the extent that WPS wishes to contract with the Santa Cruz
COE for any services to WPS beyond those specified in this
agreement, if any, a prior separate written contract with the Santa

Cruz COE shall be required and the costs of such services paid in
full by WPS.

Student Attendance Accounting and Reporting

a)

b)

WPS shall use commercially available attendance accounting
software (such as Power School, [lluminate, etc.) for student
attendance accounting at WPS. WPS shall submit enrollment and
attendance data as required to receive apportionment of funding
according to the following schedule:

1) First Principal Apportionment (attendance for all full
school months between July 1 and December 31) due one
week prior to the January date indicated by CDE.

2) Second Principal Apportionment (attendance for all full
school months between July 1 and April 15) due one week
prior to the May date indicated by CDE.

3) Annual Apportionment (attendance for school year) due
one week prior to the July date indicated by CDE.

In addition to submission of the electronic data files, WPS shall
make available for review to Santa Cruz COE upon request all
back up attendance documents that support the reported average
daily attendance (ADA). Santa Cruz COE staff will review and
certify the accuracy of WPS attendance data submitted by WPS
only when all documentation has been submitted and is accurate.
Attendance data submitted without the requisite detail will not be
processed and may result in a delay of funding to WPS. WPS is
responsible to assure that all reports are accurate and timely in
order to receive regular and timely apportionment payments. Santa
Cruz COE shall process and transfer to WPS all payments received
by the Santa Cruz COE for WPS in a timely fashion.

110



Weekly site-based attendance sheets, signed and dated by teachers,
and evidence of contact made with parents when students are
absent from School (e.g. parent contact log, absence log. etc.) shall
be maintained by WPS, and will be provided to and reviewed by
Santa Cruz COE during site visitations.

3.4  Financial Reporting

a)

b)

WPS is required by EC Section 47604.33 to submit periodic
financial reports of revenues, expenditures, and reserves. In order
to meet statutory timelines for financial reporting, WPS shall
submit such reports to Santa Cruz COE for review, using the state
software (SACS 20 ALL) or the Charter School Alternative
Reporting form, according to the following schedule:

1) Preliminary budget due one week prior to the July 1
deadline indicated by CDE.

(Note: Santa Cruz COE may request a revised budget to
address any concerns identified during the review of the
preliminary budget.)

2) Unaudited Actuals Report for the prior fiscal year due one
week prior to the September 15 deadline indicated by CDE.

3) First Interim Report (expenditures through 10/31) due one
week prior to the December 15 deadline indicated by CDE.

4) Second Interim Report (expenditures through 1/31) due one
week prior to the March 15 deadline indicated by CDE.

Any significant changes in the budget or interim reports from one
reporting period to the next must be explained in writing. The
following back up information shall be consistently provided for
each reporting period:

1) Multi-Year Projection (MYP) for current and two
subsequent years.

2) Assumptions used for budget year and two subsequent
years.
3) A written summary of any significant changes in the budget

or interim reports, by category, from one reporting period
to the next period.

111



d)

4) Enrollment projections/growth in average daily attendance
(ADA) by grade level for current and subsequent two fiscal
years, and the impact of the growth on liabilities, facilities,
etc.

5) Cost of Living Allowance (COLA), if applicable, and
deficit percentage, if any.

6) Calculation used for determining general purpose funding
and the calculation itself (in native format such as Excel).

7) Number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) for certificated and
classified employees for each year including an
organizational chart identifying all charter school positions
and respective salary information for each position.

8) Supplemental financial report showing the Charter School’s
budget to date and financial transactions and reconciliations,
i.e. Statement of Activities (Income & Expenditure
Account) and Statement of Financial Position (Balance
Sheet).

9) Statement of cash flow for the current and subsequent fiscal
year.

10)  Bank statements provided monthly.

The parties agree that maintenance of a sufficient level of funding
reserve is in the best interest of WPS and its successful operation.
Accordingly, WPS shall maintain reserves of no less than three
percent (3 %) for WPS based upon the total expenditures and other
uses of the Charter School’s Adopted Budget for the fiscal year.
An explanation of any projected drop in reserves below the three
percent level must be included in the assumptions.

The Santa Cruz COE may request additional information, as
necessary, to evaluate the fiscal condition of WPS.

Required notification: WPS will notify Santa Cruz COE of any
material budget changes including but not limited to any proposed
changes in enrollment that decrease the enrollment projected in the
charter petition by more than 20 percent in any given year.

112



3.5

3.6

Annual Audit

WPS shall submit an annual independent financial audit in accordance with
EC Section 47605(m), to the State Controller’s Office, the Santa Cruz
COE, and the California Department of Education no later than December
15 of each year. In order for WPS to receive a favorable recommendation
for renewal, corrective action plans shall have been implemented in a
timely manner to the satisfaction of the Santa Cruz COE for any findings or
exceptions identified in each annual audit, such that there are no continuing
prior year findings or deficiencies identified in the following year. The
audit shall be conducted by an auditor from the list approved by the State
Controller’s Office.

In addition to the Charter School’s financial statements, the audit shall
include, as applicable, but not be limited to contemporaneous records of
attendance and annual instructional minutes as required by the law for the
audit of charter schools.

Monitoring and Oversight

a) The County Board, by agreement with the Santa Cruz County
Superintendent, designates the Santa Cruz County Superintendent
and staff as the third party oversight agency to provide oversight
and monitoring of WPS on behalf of the County Board.

b) WPS shall be charged an annual oversight fee by Santa Cruz COE
for the cost of oversight, monitoring, and reporting concerning
WPS in accordance with EC Section 47613, with such fees capped
at 1% of Local Control Funding Formula revenue by WPS, in
accordance with EC 47613(f) (“CBG Revenue”). The oversight
fees shall be used to offset consultant and administrative costs
required for comprehensive oversight, which includes but is not
limited to the following categories:

1) Curriculum and instruction

2) Assessment and accountability

3) Teacher qualifications and credentials

4) School fiscal review

5) Governance and management operations review
6) Site visitations

113



3.7

7) Renewal evaluations

8) Attendance accounting certification
9) Communication & research & issue resolutions relative to
WPS

C) The oversight fees shall be invoiced quarterly by Santa Cruz COE,
with payment due and payable within 30 days of receipt.

State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)/Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) Reporting

If Navigator Schools offers employees of WPS the opportunity to
participate in STRS or PERS, WPS shall be responsible for contracting
with Santa Cruz COE for reporting purposes and for payment of costs to
Santa Cruz COE that are associated with such reporting. WPS may be
asked to submit preliminary reports to STRS for the purpose of clearing
errors prior to submission (i.e. F496 into S.E.W.).

SECTION 4: FULFILLING CHARTER TERMS

4.1

Material Revisions to Charter

Changes to the Charter deemed to be material revisions may not be made
without prior approval from the County Board per EC 47607. Amendments
to the Charter considered to be material revisions include, but are not limited
to, the following:

a) Changes to the educational program (including the addition or
deletion of an educational program), mission, or vision of the
Charter School.

b) Adding a classroom-based program/facility.

c) Proposed changes in enrollment that increase or decrease the
enrollment originally projected in the Charter Petition by more
than 20 percent in any given year.

d) Addition or deletion of grades or grade levels to be served.

e) Changes to location of facilities, including school sites, resource
centers, library/computer labs, meeting space, or other satellite
facility including the opening of a new facility. Temporary
locations rented for annual student testing purposes shall be
exempt from this provision.

114



4.2

4.3

f) Changes to admission requirements, lottery preferences, and
procedures.

g) Changes to the governance structure, including but not limited to:
the dissolution of the corporation holding the charter.

State Assessments

WPS shall comply with and adhere to the state requirements for
participation and administration of all state mandated tests for charter
schools, and shall include but not be limited to:

a) Smarter Balanced Assessments (SBAC)

b) California Alternate Assessments (CAA)

C) Standards-based Tests in Spanish (STS)

d) California Physical Fitness Test (PFT)

e) California Science Tests (CAST)

f) English Language Proficiency Assessments for California Test
(ELPAC)
Site Visits

The Santa Cruz COE will conduct at least one visit to WPS annually in
accordance with the Act. The information gathered will be used to assess
the Charter School’s progress in governance and organizational
management, educational performance, fiscal operations and fulfillment of
the terms of the Charter and this MOU. A school site visit may include
review of the facility, review of records maintained by WPS, interviews
with the Principal of WPS, employees working at WPS including the site
principal, and WPS students/parents, as well as observation of instruction
in the classroom(s). Any deficiencies will be reviewed with the Charter
School’s Principal and an opportunity provided for comment, explanation
and\or correction. The evaluations for each year will be used, in addition
to other information and reports, to determine a renewal decision. The
Santa Cruz COE reserves the right to make unannounced visits to WPS.

115



4.4 Renewals

a)

b)

WPS may seek renewal of the Charter School’s Charter prior to
expiration of the term of the Charter in accordance with statutory
provisions. WPS shall submit its renewal petition for the next
charter term along with a copy of the most recent Annual Report
and Student Achievement Plan (if applicable) to Santa Cruz COE,
no sooner than October 15 of the fiscal year in which WPS would
cease operations without renewal.

Santa Cruz COE shall review the charter petition, academic and
financial performance, audit reports, annual visitation reports, and
may conduct a renewal site visit prior to scheduling the renewal
request for consideration by the County Board. To the extent
required, the charter renewal petition shall be revised in accordance
with current statutes and regulations.

WPS may seek earlier renewal of the Charter School’s Charter if it
meets all of the following conditions:

1) Has been in existence for at least three years, or has
completed three years of a subsequent term of renewal.

2) Has not qualified for Differentiated Assistance based on
results of state and local indicators on the CA School
Dashboard.

3) Has submitted accurate and timely budgets, interim fiscal

reports, and student attendance data to Santa Cruz COE.

4) Independent financial audits for all three years have been
free of audit exceptions and/or deficiencies (minor findings
corrected in the year of the audit through a corrective action
plan are allowable under this provision).

5) Has received no health and safety code violations from
local authorities.

6) Has demonstrated that a majority of parents, students, and
staff are satisfied with performance of WPS.

7) Has met the requirements for any then pending correction
action set by Santa Cruz COE in a written correspondence
(see 4.5 a below), if any; and

8) Has met applicable additional requirements for such
renewal, if any, in the law.

116



4.5

Notice to Cure and Revocation

a)

b)

The County Board shall have the right to revoke the Charter in
accordance with EC 47607 or other statute or regulations expressly
applicable to the revocation of a charter thereunder. The County
Board may consider the following progression of corrective action
as a result of violation(s) of EC 47607(c):

1) Direct contact with WPS specifying the concerns with
WPS, followed by written Correspondence #1.

2) Written Correspondence #2 — (Restatement of Concerns) If
there has been little or no response by WPS to
Correspondence #1, and a request for a response from WPS
informing the Santa Cruz COE about steps WPS is taking to
address the concerns noted in Correspondence #1; the Santa
Cruz COE may conduct a site visit.

3) Written Correspondence #3 (Notice of Concern) —
restatement of concerns and direction to WPS to take
corrective action by a specified reasonable date.

4) Written Correspondence #4 (Notice to Cure or Face
Revocation) — letter, approved by the County Board,
identifying history of failure to correct or address the
concerns and directing WPS to take specific enumerated
actions or submit documentation by a specified date.
Failure to do so will result in the institution of revocation
proceedings in accordance with EC 47607 and applicable
regulations, if any.

5) Revocation — schedule an agenda item for the County
Board to hold a public hearing and consider revocation of
the Charter in accordance with EC 47607 and applicable
regulations, if any.

The exception to the above process is under circumstances where
the County Board determines in writing that there is a severe and
imminent threat to the health or safety of students and/or staff of
WPS per EC 47607(d). The County Board will be apprised in
writing of the situation by Santa Cruz COE and immediate action
may be taken by the County Board to assure the safety and well-
being of the students, staff, and community. Such immediate action
as deemed appropriate by the County Board in its reasonable
discretion, may include but is not limited to closure of WPS and/or
revocation of its Charter in accordance with EC 47607(d) and/or (e)

117



and shall be in accordance with Title 5, California Code of
Regulation Section 11968.5.3. Should WPS cease to be operated by
a non-profit public corporate, the parties agree that such condition
may constitute cause for the revocation of the Petition.

During the period prior to revocation, WPS shall have the
opportunity to work collaboratively with the Santa Cruz COE or its
designee to address the concerns and develop a plan to remediate
all areas to the reasonable satisfaction of the Santa Cruz COE.
During this period WPS shall attempt to resolve the concerns and
complete remediation. This provision may also require a charter
amendment to be discussed.

4.6 Closure Procedures

a)

WPS shall provide Santa Cruz COE updates as are reasonably
necessary from time to time to the description of the procedures to
be used in the event WPS closes as described in the Charter. The
categories that must be addressed in such procedures are each of
the following:

1) Identification of a responsible person(s) —This provision
shall include a process to ensure that it is updated no less
than annually or when any change is made.

2) Notification of students and families of school closure.
3) Security of student and business records.

4) Processing of final employee payroll and benefits.

5) Identification of all assets and liabilities and plan for

transfer as detailed in the Charter.
6) Final WPS close-out audit to be paid for by WPS.

7) Identification of a source of funding to be used for closeout
expenses including the final audit.

8) If applicable, dissolution of the nonprofit corporation for
WPS.

118



b) If WPS is to close for any reason (i.e., voluntary surrender, non-
renewal, or revocation), the Santa Cruz COE on behalf of the
County Board shall serve written notice on WPS that the closure
procedures have been invoked. WPS will immediately identify to
the Santa Cruz COE the specific individual who is responsible for
coordinating the close out activities for WPS. Santa Cruz COE will
identify a staff person WPS can report to regarding the close out
activities concerning WPS. WPS expressly acknowledges the right
of the Santa Cruz COE, on behalf of the County Superintendent of
Schools (pursuant to EC Section 47604.4), to gain full access and
copies of all WPS student and business records at any time after the
County Board gives written notice that it is invoking the closure
procedures of WPS.

SECTION 5: MEDIATION

In the event that a dispute between WPS and the Santa Cruz COE and\or the
County Board relating to the Charter or this MOU, which does not involve
revocation, and is not resolved through the procedures contained in the Charter’s
"Dispute Resolution" section within 90 calendar days of the date notice is given
by the complaining party to the other parties, prior to commencing legal action or
arbitration, the parties shall undertake a process of non-binding mediation,
according to the following timeline:

a) No later than ten calendar days from and after the request for mediation
unless agreed otherwise by the parties in writing, the parties shall choose a
mutually acceptable mediator from a list obtained from the State Mediation
and Conciliation Service.

b) Within ten calendar days after the mediator is selected, the parties shall
choose a mutually agreeable date and site for the mediation.

C) The costs of the mediator shall be borne 50-50 by Santa Cruz COE and
WPS.

SECTION 6: SEVERABILITY

If any provision or any part of this MOU is for any reason held to be invalid and
or unenforceable or contrary to public policy, or statute, the remainder of this
MOU shall not be affected thereby and shall remain valid and fully enforceable.

SECTION 7: NON-ASSIGNMENT

No portion of this MOU or the Charter Petition approved by the County Board

may be assigned to another entity without the prior written approval of the County
Board and WPS.

119




SECTION 8: WAIVER

A waiver of any provision or term of this MOU must be in writing and signed by
all parties. Any such waiver shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision
of this MOU. All parties agree that no party to this MOU waives any of the
rights, responsibilities, and privileges established by the Charter Schools Act of
1992 as may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 9: PUPIL TRANSPORTATION

WPS shall be responsible for any and all transportation offered to students who
enroll in WPS, including but not limited to any and all transportation required in
any student IEP or otherwise required by state and/or federal law.

SECTION 10: NOTIFICATION

All notices, requests, and other communications under this MOU shall be in
writing and mailed to the proper addresses as follows:

To the County Board at:

Santa Cruz County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street

Santa Cruz CA, 95060

Attn: Bruce Van Allen, Board President

To the Santa Cruz COE at:

Charter Schools Office

Santa Cruz County Office of Education

400 Encinal Street

Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Attn: Michael Watkins, County Superintendent of Schools

To Charter School at:

Watsonville Prep School

Navigator Schools

650 San Benito St. Suite 230

Hollister, CA 95023

Attn: Kevin Sved, Chief Executive Officer

120




To Charter School at:

Board Chair

Navigator Schools Board of Directors

650 San Benito St. Suite 230

Hollister, CA 95023

Attn: Kevin Sved, Chief Executive Officer

This document contains the entire Memorandum of Understanding of the parties with
respect to the matters covered hereby, and supersedes any oral or written understandings,
agreements or MOUs between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this MOU
(with the exception of the Charter). No person or party is authorized to make any
representations or warranties except as set forth herein. No MOU, statement,
representation or promise by any party hereto which is not contained herein shall be valid
or binding. The undersigned acknowledges that she/he has not relied upon any warranties,
representations, statements or promises by any of the parties herein or any of their agents
or consultants except as may be expressly set forth in this MOU. The parties agree that
any legal action to enforce the terms of this MOU shall be brought in the appropriate court
in Santa Cruz County, California, and no other place. The parties further recognize that
this MOU shall only be modified in writing by the mutual agreement of the parties
indicating intent to modify this MOU.

Date Chief Executive Officer, Board President or Designee, Charter School
Date President, Santa Cruz County Board of Education
Date County Superintendent or Designee, Santa Cruz County Office of Education

121



Attachment A: Additional Services

In accordance with Section 3.2 of the Memorandum of Understanding, WPS may opt to
contract with SANTA CRUZ COE for specified services, at a mutually agreed-upon
method of compensation to SANTA CRUZ COE.

A.

Fee Determination

WPS agrees to reimburse the SANTA CRUZ COE for all costs associated with
providing required services under this Memorandum of Understanding. The
SANTA CRUZ COE shall notify WPS of the expected fees for the next fiscal
year on or before June 1. The SANTA CRUZ COE may opt to charge WPS a
fixed percentage of the estimated WPS gross revenues from public sources, or on
a time and materials basis.

In the case that the SANTA CRUZ COE sets a percentage reimbursement fee
schedule, the fee shall be paid on a quarterly basis, with adjustments due to
reconciling to actual revenues from public sources no later than September 30
following the close of the most recent fiscal year.

In the case that the SANTA CRUZ COE requires WPS to pay for services on a
time and material basis, the SANTA CRUZ COE shall provide WPS with a fee
schedule in advance of the fiscal year, and submit monthly billings to WPS. All
billings shall be paid within thirty (30) days. Any disputes in billing will be
resolved via the Dispute Resolution Process as prescribed in the charter.
Optional Services Provided

Annual Minimal Requirements. Minimal Service Requirements shall include but
not be limited to the following, except as otherwise agreed to by the SANTA
CRUZ COE during the term of this agreement.

1. Credential Processing

2. Payroll Services

a) Payroll Processing/Retirement Reporting (PERS/STRS/Social
Security)

b) Wage Garnishments
c) TSA Processing
d) Deferred Compensation

e) Payroll Tax Report Preparation of W-2’s

122



3. Accounting and Financial Monitoring Services

a) Review Annual Budget

b) Review Annual Audit

c) Review year-to-date Budget/expenses with Treasurer (monthly)

d) Apportion funds to WPS accounts

e) Provide Accounts Payable Services

4. General Services

a) Assist WPS in procuring insurance (liability, property), etc. as
needed.

b) Consult with legal counsel on an as-needed and available basis to
provide guidelines to WPS in matters related to the operations of
the school, except in such cases that doing so would put the
SANTA CRUZ COE and/or the County Board of Education in
conflict with other required duties.

C) Assist WPS in issues relative to facility needs.

d) Permit Staff of WPS to attend SANTA CRUZ COE
workshops/meetings on the same basis as staff from any other
school and/or district in the county.

e) Make available SANTA CRUZ COE staff person to be direct point
of contact to assist WPS in coordinating requests for services to be
provided by the SANTA CRUZ COE.

f) Assist WPS in preparation of required reports.

WPS agrees to not terminate such services during the fiscal year. WPS may agree
to terminate any optional service agreements with the SANTA CRUZ COE by
giving notice prior to May 1 that the optional services provided will not be
requested for the next fiscal year.

Discontinuing payroll services would require a separate negotiation with the
SANTA CRUZ COE due to the STRS and PERS reporting requirements and
additional costs associated with those processes.

123



Attachment B: Special Education Local Plan Assurances

Provide assurances that all eligible individuals with disabilities (ages birth to 22)
shall have access to appropriate special education programs and services,
including transportation.

Provide assurances of an understanding and knowledge of applicable special
education laws and regulations.

Provide assurances that each certificated employee is appropriately credentialed to
serve in his/her assignment.

Provide necessary staff required to meet state and federal mandates.

Follow all requirements of the SELPA Local Plan.

Utilize SELPA forms.

Provide all required SELPA required information/data including Maintenance of
Effort (MOE) data required by the Federal Government.

Provide transportation as indicated in students’ IEPs.

Provide assurances that the charter school has the sole legal and financial
responsibility to provide appropriate services to eligible students and will provide
search and serve to identify students who may qualify for and require special
education and related services.

Provide assurance that the charter will comply with all requirements of the Every
Student Succeeds Act.

Provide assurance that the charter will be responsible for all costs incurred in the
provision of special education services to students enrolled in the charter school.
These costs may include, but are not limited to, instruction, related services,
transportation, nonpublic school/agency placements, inter/intra SELPA placements,
due process proceedings, complaints and attorney fees.

Provide assurance that the charter will document that all state and federal special
education funds apportioned to the charter school are used for the sole purpose of
providing special education instruction and/or related services for students with
eligible disabilities.

124



Attachment C: Timeline for 2018-2019

Date Documentation Means
August 16,2018 | e Memorandum of Understanding Send via email
October 1, 2018 ° Governance Board Bylaws that identify a | Send via email
designated slot for a WPS parent
° Plan to serve Transitional Kinder
students
° Modified Redesignation criteria for
English Learner students
° Facilities Plan
July 15,2019 ° Facilities Use Plan Send via email

Annual Timeline commencing 2019

and Other Special Needs Students

Date Documentation Means
August 1 ° Annual calendar of regular board Send via email
meetings
° Annual calendar of emergency drills
° Verification that all teachers hold a CTC
certificate, permit or equivalent
documentation.
° Verification that all teachers hold
required EL certification
Calendar of instructional days
New Board of Director members &
confirmation of Brown Act and Conflict
of Interest Training
° Report on any new or revised lease
agreements or facility purchase
September 15 ° Unaudited Actual Budget Electronic/hard copy
of certification
October 2 ° Provide electronic documentation of Electronic
CBEDS enrollment, including student names
October 30 ° Submit Annual Plan of Support for EL | Send via email

125




November 30 Submit Annual Report Written Report
Board Presentation
December 15 First Interim Budget Electronic
February 1 Post SARC on website Email
March 15 Second Interim Budget Electronic
July 1 Submit Local Control Accountability Electronic
Plan for review Submission

Preliminary Annual Budget
Deadline for proposed MOU revisions
by either party

126




Attachment D: The Charter Petition

Charting a new course in education

A
<E\lovigo’ror Schools
¥

NAVIGATOR SCHOOLS/
WATSONVILLEPREPSCHOOL
CHARTERPETITION2019-2024

Mission

Navigator Schools equips studentsto belearnersandleadersin high school, college, and beyond. We develop top-
tierteams of educators who continuously improve and innovate schools that deliver phenomenal outcomes for all
students, regardless of their circumstances.

127



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep School CharterPetition
2019-2024

Table of Contents

Charter School Intent & Charter Requirements 3
Affirmations and Declaration 4
Navigator Schools Background and Accomplishments 7
Element 1: Educational Philosophy and Program 11
Element2: Measurable Student Outcomes 63
Element 3: Methodsof Assessment 75
Element 4: Governance Structure 79
Element 5: Employee Qualifications 85
Element 6: Health & Safety Procedures 94
Element 7: Racial & Ethnic Balance 98
Element 8: Admission Requirements 100
Element 9: Annual Financial Audit 104
Element 10: Suspension & Expulsion Procedures 105
Element 11: Retirement Systems 124
Element 12: Public School Attendance Alternatives 125
Element 13: EmployeeReturn Rights 126
Element 14: Dispute Resolution Process 127
Element 15: School Closure Procedures 129
Miscellaneous Charter Provisions 131

128 Page20f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

CHARTER SCHOOL INTENT AND CHARTER REQUIREMENTS

Itisthe intentofthe California Legislature, in enacting the Charter Schools Actof 1992, to
provide opportunities for teachers, parents, pupils, and community members to establish and
maintainschoolsthatoperateindependentlyfromthe existingschooldistrictstructure,asa
method to accomplish all the following:

A. Improve pupil learning.

B. Increase learning opportunities for all pupils, with special emphasis on expanded
learning experiences for pupils who are identified as academically low achieving.

C. Encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods.

D. Create new professional opportunities for teachers, including the opportunity to be
responsible for the learning program at the school site.

E. Provide parents and pupils with expanded choices in the types of educational
opportunities that are available within the public school system.

F. Holdthe schools established under this part accountable for meeting measurable pupil
outcomes, and provide the schools with a method to change from rule-based to
performance-based accountability systems.

G. Provide vigorous competition within the public school system to stimulate continual
improvements in all public schools.

- California Education Code Section 47601(a)-(g)

Navigator plans to accomplish these goals with a unique academic program and environment
developed based on research and best practices. Details of this program and environment are
articulated throughout thischarter.

In reviewing petitions for the establishment of charter schools, the chartering authority shall be
guidedbytheintentofthe Legislaturethatcharterschoolsareandshouldbecomeanintegral
partofthe Californiaeducational systemandthatestablishmentofcharterschools shouldbe
encouraged.

Pursuantto Ed. Code section47605(a)(1)(A), this charter petition has been signed by seven
meaningfully interested teachers, which is more than half of the seven teachers needed in year
one of the charter. Signatures for the petition are found in Appendix A.

129 Page 30f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Affirmations and Declaration

Asthe authorized lead petitioner, I, Kevin Sved, hereby certify that the information submitted
in this petition for a California public charter school to be named Watsonville Prep School
(hereinafter “Charter” or “Charter School”), andto be located within or near the boundaries of
the Pajaro Valley Unified School District (“PVUSD” or “District”), and o be authorized by
the Santa Cruz County Board of Education (“SCCBOE” or the “County Board”) with
oversight from the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (“SCCOE” or the “County
Office”) (collectively referred to herein as the “County”) is true to the best of my knowledge
and belief; | also certify that this petition does not constitute the conversion of a private
school to the status of a public charter school; and further, | understand that if awarded a
charter, Navigator Schools, operating Watsonville Prep School (“WPS” or “Charter School”)
will follow any and all federal, state, and local laws and regulations that apply to the Charter
School, including, but not limited to:

o  WPS will meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments required,
pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other statewide standards
authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable to students in non-charter
public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(1)]

o Navigator Schools declares that it shall be deemed the exclusive public school employer
of the employees of WPS for the purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act
Chapter 10.7 (commencing with Section 3540) of Division 4 of Title | of the Government
Code. Ed. Code §47605(b)(5)(0)A

o  WPS will be nonsectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices,
and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]

o WPS will not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]

o  WPSwilladmitall students who wish to attend the Charter School, unless the Charter
School receives a greater number of applications than there are spaces for students, in
which case it will hold a public random drawing to determine admission. Except as
required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2), admission to WPS shall not be
determined according to the place of residence of the student or his or her parents
withinthe state. Preferenceinthe publicrandomdrawing, shallbe givenasrequired by
Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B)(i)-(iv). In the event of a drawing, the chartering
authority shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of the Charter
School and shall not take any action to impede the Charter School from expanding
enrollment to meet pupil demand in accordance with Education Code Section
47605(d)(2)(C). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(A)-(C)]

¢ \WPS will notdiscriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code
130 Page40f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender expression, gender identity,

131 Page 50f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that
is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal
Code, including immigration status, or association with an individual who has any of the
aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education Code Section47605(d)(1)]

o  WPS will adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities
including, but not limited to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act
0f2004, Section 504 ofthe Rehabilitation Actof 1973, and Title Il of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of1990.

o  WPS will meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable provisions of law,
including, but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of
Regulations Section 11967.5.1(f)(5)(C)]

o  WPS will ensure that teachers in the Charter School hold a Commission on Teacher
Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalentto that which ateacher
in other publicschoolsisrequired to hold. As allowed by statute, flexibility will be given
to non-core, non-college preparatory teachers. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(1)]

o  WPSwill, atalltimes, maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage.

o WPS will, for eachfiscal year, offer ata minimum the number of minutes of instruction
pergrade level asrequired by Education Code Section47612.5(a)(1)(A)-(D).

o Ifapupilisexpelledorleavesthe Charter School withoutgraduating or completing the
school year for any reason, the Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the
school district of the pupil’s lastknown address within 30 days, and will, upon request,
provide that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including
reportcardsoratranscript,andhealthinformation. Ifthe pupilis subsequently expelled
or leaves the school district without graduating or completing the school year for any
reason, the schooldistrictshall provide thisinformationto the Charter School within 30
daysifthe Charter Schooldemonstratesthatthe pupilhad beenenrolledinthe Charter
School. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(3)]

o The Charter School may encourage parental involvement, but shall notify the parents
and guardians of applicant pupils and currently enrolled pupils that parental
involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the
Charter School. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(n)]

o  WPS will maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that document all
pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection. [Ref.

132 Page60f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)]

o  WPS will, on aregular basis, consult with its parents and teachers regarding the Charter
School’s educational programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)]

o  WPS will comply with any applicable jurisdictional limitations to the locations of its
facilities. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605 and 47605.1]

o WPS will comply with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum age for public
school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Section 47612(b)and 47610]

o WPSwill comply with all applicable portions of the Elementary and Secondary Education
Act(“ESEA”),asreauthorizedandamendedbythe Every StudentSucceeds Act(“ESSA”).

o WPS will comply with the Public Records Act.
o WPS will comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.
o WPS will comply with the Ralph M. Brown Act.

o WPS will meet or exceed the legally required minimum number of school days. [Ref.
Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960].

S Sy EDERS

Signature Date

Appeal Signature Date

133 Page70f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Navigator Schools Background & Accomplishments

Firstopeningin 2011, Navigator Schools, (“Navigator”) a not-for-profit charter management
organization, currently operates two college prep K-8 schools in the Northern Central Coast
region of California. With its focus on eliminating the achievement gap for all students,
Navigator Schools offers daily assessment opportunities, blended learning teaching strategies,
and highly skilled and trained educators to ensure all students have a chance to succeed. At the
startofthe 2017/18 school year, Navigator Schools was serving 960 students in grades K-8.
With consistently high scores on the California Assessment of Student Performance and
Progress (“CAASPP”) Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium (“SBAC”) tests every year,
Gilroy Prep School (GPS)is consideredthe top performing schoolin Gilroyand one ofthe best
in Santa Clara County, with Hollister Prep School (HPS) scores at or near the top of San Benito
County. Asoutlinedin the mission, Navigator focuses on the development of staff members,
providing them with coaching, professional development, and tools needed to produce
phenomenal student results. The culture of dedication and commitment to excellence found at
Gilroy and Hollister Prep Schools has led to years of positive growth and success, including
significant impacts on the efforts to eliminate the achievement gap. Navigator Schools wants to
continue this level of service to the students of Pajaro Valley Unified School District with the
opening of Watsonville Prep School.

Founding Team: (Additionalinformation foundin Appendix B )
Kevin Sved, Chief Executive Officer, Navigator Schools
James Dent, Chief Academic Officer and Navigator Schools Co-Founder
Sharon Waller, Director of Student Services and Navigator Schools Co-Founder
Kirsten Carr, Director of Community Outreach, Navigator Schools
Rita Castaneda, Community Engagement Facilitator, Navigator Schools
Andrea Hernandez, Founding Principal, Watsonville Prep School
Founding Parent team:

Maria Luisa Hernandez-Vega

Alba Rivas

Sonia Grimaldo

Rosa Soaverda

Guadalupe Isela Gallardo

Marcela Salas-Ibarra

Track Record of Success
Navigator Schools was founded when a group of educators answered two basic questions:
1. "Who (is going to make necessary changes)?”
2. “When (will thathappen)?”
Those questions were answered with “Us” and “Now” and Navigator has continued to not
accept the status quo as good enough. That drive and relentless pursuit of excellence in
education has translated into years of top academic performance and recognition. Since its

134 Page 80f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

inception Navigator Schools has been recognized for its academic success by:

Innovate Public Schools - Gilroy Prep School
Great Schools - GPS and HPS rankings of 10/10
Silicon Schools Fund

Christensen Institute/Public Impact

The academic achievements of students at both Gilroy and Hollister Prep are products of a
concentrated effort to create an educational model that can be easily replicable and
personalized to meet the needs of the community being served. The model, with its
commitmentto eliminatingthe achievementgap, hasbeen instrumentalin changing thelives
of hundreds of students in both Gilroy and Hollister.

The ability forthe school sites tofocus ontheinstructional needs of studentsis directly related
to the structure and support provided by the Navigator Schools Charter Management
Organization support office. In order to grow responsibly, Navigator instituted a rigorous
greenlighting process which included a focus on key areas:
o Finance
o Strength of Reserves
o Ability to operate existing schools without support from outside funders
o Operations
o Organizational health
o Systems and structures
o School model
o Model is codified
o Model isreplicable

With numerous metrics associated with each goal, supporting evidence included the success of
Navigator’'sfirstschoolandreplicated secondschool, theretentionrate of staff,and the strong
financial standing ofthe organization. Afterstrongreview ofthe greenlighting measures, staff
andthe Navigator Schools Board of Directors again answered those two original questions of
“Who” and “When” with “Us” and “Now”. The difference now is Navigator has a track record
of achievement to prove it can and will make a positive difference in the community of
Watsonville and the students of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District.

To see the functionality and structure of the Navigator Schools Support Office, please find,
attached as Appendix C, an Organizational Chart for Navigator Schools.

As illustrated in the following charts, both GPS and HPS have shown both success and growth in
the firstthree years of participating in the CAASPP. Underscoring the organization’s mission and
focus is the performance of the students in the identified subgroups.

135 Page90f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

SBAC Results — Gilroy & Hollister Prep Schools

Gilroy Prep SBAC Proficiency Growth

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%
CAELA CA Math GPS ELA GPS Math

A
~{(Novigotor Schools. B 2015 [ 2016 2017 Source: CDE Website 2017 SBAC Data

Hollister Prep SBAC Proficiency Growth

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

CAELA CA Math HPS ELA HPS Math

A
Do
Q\lcwgu'ofm Schools B 2015 [ 2016 o 2017 Source: CDE Website 2017 SBAC Data

136 Page100f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

GPS SBAC Significant Subgroups: Percent Proficient 2015-2017

88

78 78 79 80
75 70 74 70

I 59 59

Math Math Math

56

20
10

) &8 8
1
I 2

Economically

Economically
Disadvantaged

Disadvantaged
Economically
Economically

Disadvantaged
Economically

Hispanic/Latno

Hispanic/Latno

Hispanic/Latno

Hispanic/Latno

Hispanic/Latno

Hispanic/Latno

m
3
m
3
m
3
=
(]
g
g 8
o -
=
%]
=
m
3
m
3
m
3

2017 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

N
o
[t
~
N
o
—
w

2015 2016

HPS SBAC Significant Subgroups: Percent Proficient 2015-2017

74 71 75
I 46

Math Math Math

68

38

10

c6B88888388
[
I
[
I =

Economically
Economically

Disadvantaged
Economically

Disadvantaged
Economically
Disadvantaged
Economically

Disadvantaged
Economically

°
3
S
c
£
2
o

Hispanic/Latno
Hispanic/Latho
Hispanic/Latho
Hispanic/Latno
Hispanic/Latno
Hispanic/Latno

2
3
3

ELA ELA ELA Math Math Math
2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017 2015 2016 2017

The ability of Navigator Schools to reach students in typically underserved communities will
benefit the community of Watsonville and the greater PVUSD. The proven success of the
model combined with the excitement for sharing best practices equals a commitment to
providing an educational choice for the students of Watsonville. The need and interest of
families throughout Watsonville is described in further detail in Element 1.

137 Page110f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 1: Educational Philosophy and Program

“The educational program of the charter school, designed, among other things, to identify those
whom the charter schoolis attempting to educate, whatitmeansto be an ‘educated person’in
the 21 century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall
include the objective of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong
learners.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(i)

“The annual goalsforthe charterschoolforall pupils andforeach subgroup of pupilsidentified
pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d)
of Section 52060, thatapply forthe grade levels served, orthe nature ofthe program operated,
by the charter school, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may
identify additional school priorities, the goals for the school priorities, and the specific annual
actions to achieve those goals.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii)

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

MISSION

Navigator Schools equips students to be learners and leaders in high school, college, and
beyond. We develop top-tier teams of educators who continuously improve and innovate
schools that deliver phenomenal outcomes for all students, regardless of their circumstances.

VISION
Navigator Schools is improving our communities through education.

COMMITMENTS AND BELIEFS

Navigator Schools is committed to:

Eliminating the academic achievementgap forthe underserved students of Watsonville.

Providing high quality teachers trained and coached on the latest best practices.

Instilling a culture of excellence among students and staff.

Operating a full inclusion model of education to offer a well-rounded educational

experience for allstudents.

o Engaging ourfamilies in helping their children achieve at their highest potential.

o Blended learning opportunities for all students, including one-to-one technology.

o Using data-driven instruction to effectively educate all students and to identify their
greatest areas ofneed.

o Working collaboratively with our colleagues in authorizing districts to share our

knowledge, strategies, and techniques to benefit all students.

138 Page120f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Navigator Schools believes:

o Thefoundationofagreateducationliesinensuringallourstudentsbecomeproficient
readers, writers, communicators, collaborators, leaders, and mathematicians. These
fundamental skills ensure students are primed to succeed throughout their educational
career.

There is no excuse for student failure.

Higher education for career and life success is the goal for all students.
Leadership and staff constantly improve.

Student learning increases when student behavior is exemplary.

All staff are united around our common mission.

Academic excellence is the driving force in every decision we make.

Navigator is dedicated to inspiring and educating all students to take advantage of every
opportunity a high quality education can offer them. Navigator is committed to helping
students make it to, and through, college and to become successful leaders in our community.
Navigatorpromisestoactwithintegritywithevery schooldistrictpartner, educator,and parent
to continue Navigator students’ record of phenomenal achievement.

STUDENTS TO BE SERVED

Navigator Schools was founded in 2011 to educate the underserved students of Gilroy, focusing
on the neighborhoods surrounding its current location. Hollister Prep School opened two years
later on the campus of R.O. Hardin Elementary School. Navigator focuses on providing
educational opportunities to underserved students in the Northern Central Coast region of
California. Navigator strives to locate schools in areas where a large percentage of students are
socio-economically disadvantaged with the intent to eliminate the achievement gap. It is
inherent to the mission and vision of Navigator Schools for its demographics to reflect the
communities being served.

Enrollment Projections
Navigator has based its forecasting for WPS on anticipated attendance and projected waitlists.
Basedonthelevel ofinterest, WPS anticipates an enrolimentlottery atevery grade level.

Student Diversity, and Watsonville Prep School Enroliment and Growth Plan

Watsonville Prep is a proposed public charter school (grades K-8) for-to operate within the
Pajaro Valley Unified School District. It will open in the fall of 2019 with 180 students in grades
K, 1, and 2. Future yearsanticipated enrollmentareillustratedin the table below. WPS does
not plan to operate a Transitional Kindergarten program, however, will do so if the charter
authorizersorequires.

139 Page130f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Anticipated Enroliment Plan 2019 to 2024

Grade | 2019-2020 |2020-2021 | 2021-2022 | 2022-2023 | 2023-2024

Level
K 60 60 60 60 60
1 60 60 60 60 60
2 60 60 60 60 60
3 60 60 60 60
4 60 60 60
5 60 60
6 60
7
8

Total 180 240 300 360 420

Navigatoraimstoserve astudentbodythatis representative ofthe diversity of studentsand
familiesresidinginthe Pajaro Valley Unified School District. Navigatorbelieves creating
schoolsthatarediversebydesignisinthe bestinterests of both studentsand the community
and that WPS should be open to students who most often are marginalized or left out of
innovative educational opportunities. As such, Navigator holds sacred the goal of enrolling ata
minimum the same percentages as PVUSD schools who have disabilities, students who are
EnglishLearners, studentswhoidentifyas homeless orfosteryouth,and studentswhoare
identified as low-income or at-risk as the districts .

Average Daily Attendance

At GPS and HPS, average daily attendance exceeds 96% and similar attendance averages are
expectedatWPS. Additionally, based on currentlevel ofinterest, fullenrolimentis anticipated
with any vacant seats being filled within two weeks. Based on these assumptions, average daily
attendance is projected at the rate of 95%.

140 Page140f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

COMMUNITY NEED FOR PROPOSED CHARTER SCHOOL

Navigator will contribute to the work of the County- Pajare-Valley Unified Schosl District by

creating a uniquely different model of education for students still struggling in the existing
public school options in Watsonville. Navigator shares the curriculum, pedagogy and
organizational processes that celebrate diverse students and learning styles, and hopes to
be of service to the larger Santa Cruz CountyPVJSE educational community through this
sharing and collaboration. In addition, Navigator intends to share best practices regarding
developing studentagency and self-directed learning. Data from Navigator’s existing schools
illustrate their approach offers a different way for students to receive a high-quality
education, especially for those students who struggle in more traditional school models. The
Navigatorapproach will fillthe following community needs:

1. Rigorous college-preparatory academics
Navigator Schools has been recognized by Innovate Public Schools and the Silicon
Schools Fund for its academic performance, especially as it relates to English learners
and students who qualify forfree andreducedlunch. Eliminatingthe achievementgap
drives every decision Navigator makes. The chart below captures a snapshot of just one
class at HPS versus some of the most affluent districts in the Bay Area.

141 Page150f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Town/District Household Income
Hillsborough = $263,000

Student performance on the state
assessment (3" grade ELA, 2016-17)

Woodside = $246,000
Las Lomitas = $222,000

Portola Valley = $180,000

100 - 93% 92% 89% . Hollister = $66,000
90 85%

State of CA = $67,000

% proficient
(9]
o
1

While that chart shows an impressive comparison for a cohort of students at HPS,
Navigator as a whole, is also succeeding across the board. The students at both sites are
outperforming their peers across the state, with significant differences when compared
to students inPVUSD.

2017 SBAC Scores for sampling of Watsonville area schools and Navigator Schools

School %Metorexceeded %Metorexceeded
proficiencyinELA proficiency inMath
Amesti Elementary 14 12
Calabasas Elementary 16 13
E.A. Hall Middle 15 7
Linscott Charter 40 30

142 Page160f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024
Mintie White Elementary 13 11
Radcliff Elementary 15 18
Gilroy Prep School 83 75
Hollister PrepSchool 91 75

The following charts illustrate, by school, Distance From Level 3 (DF3), the average number of
points by which students are above or below proficiency in English Language Arts (ELA)and
mathematics as reported in the CA School Dashboard.

CA Dashboard: F2017 SBA ELA DF3: All Students

Gilroy USD Gilroy Prep - 74.3 I 6.8 Status Color
Hollister SD Hollister Prep - s2.2 13.2 m1
PajaroValley USD Linscott Charter -15.7 0 751 m?2

Mintie White ES  -81.0 [N 9.71 m5

Radcliff ES -81.0 N 10.7

Amesti ES -87.9 N 5.41

Calabasas ES -88.8 N 891

E. A. Hall MS -90.0 [6.5

DF3 Change

CA Dashboard: F2017 SBA Math DF3: All Students

Gilroy USD Gilroy Prep -478 .183 Status Color
Hollister SD Hollister Prep 446 -0.6| ]
Pajaro Valley USD Linscott Charter -42.6 B0 -19.2 10 2
Radcliff ES -74.8 8.7 3
Mintie White ES -81.6 4.8 S
Calabasas ES -89.7 851
Amesti ES -91.8 2.4
E. A. Hall MS -132.2 . -3.8]
DF3 Change

These results demonstrate the proven efficacy and immense promise of the Navigator
modelas we strive toimprove educational optionsinthe Watsonville community. Fora
more in-depth comparison of schools inthe Northern Central Coast Region, including
subgroup detail, see Appendix D.

2. 21st Century Instructionalmodels

143 Page170f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

In a 2006 employer survey, the Bureau of Labor Statistics found that five ‘applied’
skills— critical thinking/problem solving, oral communications, written communications,
teamwork/collaboration, and the ability to productively navigate diversity—were
ranked consistently higher than content knowledge or expertise. ("Are They Really
Ready To Work? Employers’ Perspectives on the Basic Knowledge and Applied Skills of
New Entrants to the 21st Century U.S. Workforce." Partnerships for 21st Century
Learning,2006.Web.10Sept.2015.http://www.p21.org/storage/documents/FINAL REPO
RT PDF09-29-06.pdf) Subsequent research has produced similar findings. In September
2015, for example, a public private consortium found that the “4 C's”— creativity,
critical thinking, communication, and collaboration—are the mostimportant priorities
for student readiness in the modern workplace. (P21 Research Briefs on 4Cs llluminate
Classroom Interventions to Boost Creativity, Critical Thinking, Communication, and
Collaboration - Partnership for 21st Century Learning, 1 September 15. Web 1 Oct.
2015) The model of instruction as utilized in Navigator Schools—one empowering
students of different cultures, heritages, and academic identities to learn from and
alongside one another in the same school—will help equip all graduates to work
successfully with diverse teams in a collaborative, 21st century workplace.

The CountyPVUED serves a diverse array of students, many of whom require additional
academic and economic support. A small school with an innovative and inclusive model
for serving all students could benefit district schools as they seek new ways to meet
the needs of their local populations. Navigator Schools believes that students’ wide
range of lived experiences can become a powerful asset in preparing students for the
21st century workplace, and has built a model that intentionally plans to bring this
diversityintodaily learning interactions.

3. Aschoolthatis preparing students to be learners and leaders in high school, college, and
beyond
From the college themed classrooms to the inspirational chants and structured focus on
early literacy and math and gradual shift to agency and student independence,
Navigator Schools provides a solid foundation for students to build on throughout their
educational career. Navigator is continually striving forimprovement and instills this
perseverance and drive in their students.

4. A school which will share best practices from around the country
Navigator Schools believes every child deserves access to the besteducational practices
available and is committed to sharing its findings and teachings with educators from
authorizing and neighboring districts, from across the state, and throughout the nation.
The CountyPVUJED, as a potential authorizer, could benefit from a partnership
where Navigator shares, models, or helps develop all educators using the tools and
techniques which

144 Page180f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

have proven to be successful in both of the current schools. The need for additional
resources is evident, and Navigator is committed to helping bridge the gap between
desire and success. In the recent past, Navigator has toured and shared best practices
with dozens of educators and organizations including:

Alpha Public Schools

Aspire Public Schools

California State Board of Education

Gilroy Unified School District (Rod Kelley Elementary & South Valley Middle
School)

Healdsburg Unified SchoolDistrict

Henry County, Georgia

Hollister School District (Calaveras, Ladd Lane, R.O. Hardin)

Innovate Public Schools

Next-Gen LEAP Innovations

Pajaro Valley Unified School District

Schools that Can, Milwaukee

Teach for China

Wonderful Prep

As with its two current authorizers, Navigator’s goal is to partner with the County district by
providing a new type of learning environment focused on coaching, personalization,
innovation and student leadership.

Community Engagement and Feedback from Parents

Several members of the Navigator founding team have deep roots in Watsonville, as natives, as
former educators in PVUSD, and as products of Watsonville schools, and have been committed
to providing a local quality educational option since the inception of the organization. Their
commitment to providing a Navigator education to the students of Watsonville has only
increased since working side by side withthe parents and community membersin their efforts
to bring WPS to PVUSD s boundaries.

Watsonville Prep parents, like all parents, want the best educational experience for their
children. While they appreciate the hard work ofindividuals atthe local elementary schools
they wantadditional quality educational choices for their children. Their ultimate goalis to
ensuretheirchildrenare preparedforcollegeandcareersandthattheywillbeabletocompete
forthe bestand mostimpactful jobs locally and beyond. The over 200 intentto enroll forms
received by interested parents illustrates their interest and commitmentin WPS. These forms
can be found in Appendix Y.

In ordertotruly getto know future WPS families and hear their voices, concerns, and dreams
for their children, Navigator staff has spent hundreds of hours building relationships with them.

145 Page190f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Thisincludes countless one to one meetings, community events, developing partnerships with

local libraries and community centers, and most recently holding information sessions about
Watsonville Prep. Establishing WPS respondstocommunity needs as expressed by Watsonville
parents.

The chart below details the ways in which parents have been engaged and attempts to quantify
this work in approximate hours.

TYPES OF MEETINGS DESCRIPTION HOURS OF
ENGAGEMENT
1 to 1 Parent Meetings Personal meetings with families 57 Hours
Information Nights: Local Navigator staff sharing information about Navigator schools, 39 Hours
Churches & Community the model, the process for opening a charter school, and
Centers about charter schools, in general. This hasincluded tours of

Navigator schools for theparents.

Parent Leader Meetings Watsonville Prep parent leader meetings 28 Hours

Info Sessions & Other Events | Events held throughoutthe community (i.e. Farmers Market, 46 hours
Cabrillo College information sessions, indoor soccer)

Presentations at Local Presentations atlocal preschools who were interested in the 31 Hours
Preschools WPS Options for Fall of 2019

TOTAL 201 Hours

EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY AND WHAT IT MEANS IT MEANS TO BE AN EDUCATED PERSON IN
THE 21ST CENTURY

WPS will provide a fully inclusive, standards-based education to prepare all students for the
needs of a 21% century world. The focus on Culture, Data-Driven Instruction, Coaching, Equity,
and Technology ensures WPS students will be consistently engaged in highly productive
learning experiences. With an emphasis on critical thinking and rigor, students achieve high
levels of academic success. As students progress through the grades, they are expected to
demonstrate more independence and ownership of their academic growth, social-emotional
skills development, and pursuit of knowledge. WPS students become competent in all areas of
academics and social skills due to their highly structured school setting which reinforces high
standards for behavior, communication skills, collaborative student work, and leadership
development.

146 Page200f135




NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

What it means to be an educated person in the 21% century

Preparationfor college and the workplace has become increasinglyimportantinthe complex
global community in which we live. Navigator students learn basic ideas, theories, vocabulary,
and facts in subject areas including the humanities, social sciences, and natural sciences. The
opportunity to lead a fulfilling life and become a contributing member of society in the 21°
century is greatly increased for one who has a deep and thorough understanding of all
academic disciplines and is armed with the skills and capabilities to provide strong leadership in
a changing world. Students will be an active part of the WPS community for valuable and
impressionable years of their lives. Itis imperative students continually practice behaviors and
skills that characterize educated people: to think logically, read critically, write and speak
clearly, solve problems creatively, organize time, space, and materials effectively, develop
compassion and empathy for others and to make choices that willimprove the course of their
lives. WPS will help students develop and internalize these habits to allow for a lifetime of
learning and an ability to adaptand function effectively in the workplace of the 21st century.

Itis the goal of WPS to enable students to become self-motivated, competent, lifelong learners.
An educated person in the 21% century should possess the academic and life skills listed below:

Academic Skills
o Students will read at or above grade level.
o Studentswilldevelop both calculation abilities and a conceptual understanding of math.
o Students will be inspired to be inquisitive and self-motivated, lifelong learners.
o Students will communicate effectively through excellent listening, speaking, and writing

skills.

o Students will develop creative, logical, and critical thinking skills enhanced through art,
science, and technology.

o Students willcomprehend and use technology as atool forlearningand communication.

o Students will have confidence in adapting to new situations and be receptive to
learning.

o Students will be eager to synthesize and act upon new information.

o Students will find, select, evaluate, organize, and use information from various sources
anddisciplines ofthoughtincluding the framework of science and social studies. They
will be able to make logical connections among these sources.

Life Skills
o Studentswilldevelopleadership andteamwork skillsthatwillhelpthem succeedinthe
21st century workplace.
o Students will exhibit healthy social-emotional skills and self-esteem by making positive
choices for oneself and in interpersonal relationships
o Students will accept responsibility for personal decisions and actions.
o Students will gain self-confidence and a willingness to take risks in a safe learning

147 Page 210135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

environment.

o Students will learn concentration, perseverance, and independent working skills by
setting personal goals and by self-assessment.

o Students will acquire an appreciation for the richness of shared knowledge that flows
from the culturally diverse environments of California.

o Students will be inspired to have empathy and courtesy for others.

o Students will be able to work both cooperatively and independently.

Civics

o Students willhave a grasp and an appreciation of history and the fundamental processes
of American democracy.

o Studentswilldevelop anunderstanding and awareness of publicand community issues.

o Students will have the ability to obtain information, think critically, and enter into
dialogue among others with different perspectives.

o Studentswill participate intheirschool community and have the skills, knowledge, and
commitment needed to accomplish public purposes, such as group problem solving,
public speaking, andvoting.

o Studentswilldevelop moraland civicvirtues suchas concernfortherightsand welfare
of others, social responsibility, and tolerance.

148 Page220f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

HOW LEARNING BEST OCCURS: KEY EDUCATIONAL ELEMENTS
OF WPS

CULTUR

OF EXCELLENCE

DATA DRIVE

INSTRUCTION

Navigator

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

EQUIT

MULTI-TIERED SUPPORTS

TECHNOLOGY

FOR TOMORROW

WPS will work with students continuously from kindergarten through 8th grade serving
students in a small, community-based school setting. This structure will allow for deep and
meaningful relationships with students and parents and will ensure that staffis well-informed
of the individual needs of each student. The design of WPS has been impacted significantly by
high-performing schools across the Bay Area and the nation who are leveraging structures
similar to those described below to attain excellent educational outcomes for students.
Current Navigator Schools, Gilroy Prep and Hollister Prep, illustrate the success of the model
and will serve as resources for success at WPS.

From K through 8th grade the following key elements will define a student’s experience at WPS.
While each element will look and feel different over the course of each student’s years at the
Charter School, the following elements illustrate the essence of the WPS educational
experience.

Navigator believes learning best occurs when the following elements are in place at a school:
+ Astrong culture of excellence
+ Data-driven instruction

149 Page230f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

+ Consistent coaching and feedback for all staff
+ Robust multiple tiers of support for academics and behavior
+ State of the art technology to prepare students for the future

CompassPoint#1:Learningbestoccurswhenthe schoolhasastrongculture ofexcellencethat
includes staff andstudents.

Navigatorbelieves the backbone of a strong culture is having high expectations foracademic
achievement and student behavior. A culture of excellence occurs when students feel
connected and challenged. As such, students at WPS will be surrounded by caring, skilled, and
highly-motivated staff who will work relentlessly to build relationships with students.
Incorporating celebrations into the school day will allow for the recognition of growth in all
areas, so all students have time to shine. Consistency in school routines and expectations builds
trustbetween students and staff. A culture of error ensures students know thatlearning often
occurs through mistakes. Keeping students challenged by meeting them at their appropriate
academic level keeps them engaged and driven. Students will know the adults on campus have
their bestinterests at heart and will strive to make their learning fun and meaningful.

The culture of WPS is dependent on the overall health of the organization which starts with
meeting the needs of staff members. Building a staff of mission aligned educators is crucial to a
positive staffculture. The coachingmodelatWPShasbeendesignedtovaluethe hardwork of
the education team and to provide them with the support they need. With a mindset of
continuous improvement, celebrations and recognition for hard work and accomplishments is
incorporated into eachday.

Compass Point #2: Learning best occurs when the instructional model is data driven.

Every teacher and leader at Navigator understands that in order to make significant academic
gains with their students, it is critical to utilize the data-driven instruction cycle.

The use ofacademicdataempowers the teachertomake instructional adjustmentstoensure
all students achieve their potential. Daily informal assessments as well as monthly formal
assessment results are analyzed to identify students who are failing to make adequate progress
on Common Core State Standards (“CCSS”) mastery. Foreach studentin this category, aflexible
tiered-intervention program is implemented. Teachers use ongoing classroom assessments to
determine ifa skill or standard needs furtherinstruction, at which time whole class instruction
canbedifferentiated to meetthe needs ofindividual students. AtNavigator Schools, teachers
so frequently check for understanding that “CFU” is common language. The graphic below
illustrates the data cycle used at Navigator schools to drive an instructional program that meets
student needs.

150 Page 24 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Data Cycle

Our organizational goals are 80 ficiericy. on all
assessments and CFUs

SBAC Goals:
75% Math
75% ELA
ANALYZE & ADJUST
a most recent data / Plan Highest Leverage Lessons:
ork $amples: O Unpack standafd(s;
2 Analyze $tudgnt work to determine misconceptions O Create / review asgessment
using lowkmed¢high student samples 3 Create exemplar gf CFU/Assessment
O Adjust instiyctidpal slides as needed O Anticipate stdent error
gs &plan for reteach (intervention or O Develop Gontepit with student needs in mind

:‘)’j:;{je’!f” b " y.of the During Instructional Lesson:
5 o O Collect in the moment data using aggressive
Q  Rubrics (Wm'f]g) monitoring
g gg::afsffzra i haRE ) O Show call exemplar students to highlight key
. q focus strategies, or key misconceptions.
g __Unit assessment

AtWPS, the following key elements to data driven instruction will exist to ensure all students
achieve their potential:

Set goals

Plan instruction
Instruct and adapt
Assess

Analyze and Adjust

Eachofthevariedlearning experiences WPS students will participate in, fromthe content of
academiccenters,tofullclassdirectinstruction, toscienceandsocial studies projectswillbe
backwards mappedto ensure alignmenttothe Common Core State Standards, the Next
Generation Science Standards (“NGSS”),andthe California History and Social Science Content
Standards, EnglishLanguage Development(“ELD”) Standards,andanyotherapplicable
California content standards (hereinafter, collectively the “State Standards”). Teachersat WPS
will receive extensive support to develop a deep understanding of the academic standards for
the grade level and content area they teach and will be enabled to choose and create academic
materials that are mapped to these standards.

151 Page250f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

CompassPoint#3:Learningbestoccurswhenleadersandinstructional staffare continually
developed through coaching.

“By receiving weekly observations and feedback, a teacher develops as much in one year as
most teachers do in twenty.” (Leverage Leadership, Paul Bambrick-Santoyo, Jossey-Bass 2012)

Navigator Schools believes one of the strongest components of student success is a well-trained
and highly competent teacher. WPS instructional staff will be observed daily and coached
weekly by a member of the administrative leadership team on their focus areas (including
classroom management, rigor, and leadership) to provide them with the support they needto
further develop as educators. Navigator uses observation and feedback, three-way coaching,
lesson planning support, and live coaching as ways to accelerate instructional development.
The purpose of coaching is not to judge the teacher’s abilities, but rather to identify the most
effective way to coach themin orderto maximize studentlearning (Bambrick-Santoyo).

Teachers are also provided with extensive professional development before the school year
begins and then numerous times during the year. The two weeks of professional development
prior to the beginning of the school year are essential in ensuring the Navigator mission, school
culture, and instructional best practices are reinforced and upheld by all staff members. Weekly
and day-long PD throughout the school year is utilized to support differentiated, ongoing
development strategically focused on our five compass points. Please see Appendix E:
Coaching Rubric, for more information.

Navigator Schools learns from other top-quality schools. By studying academically successful
schools, Navigator has and will continue toimprove teaching skills, learn new programs, and
increase student performance. Navigator's coaching model is strongly influenced by the Relay
Graduate School of Education based in New York. Allteacher coaches atNavigator Schools
receive training provided by the Relay Graduate School of Education.

Compass Point#4: Learning bestoccurs whenthe instructionalmodelis personalized through a
multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS) to ensure equity for all students.

The MTSS framework, including Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS), Response
to Intervention (RTI), and Universal Design for Learning (UDL) provides resources leading to a
systematic coordination of services and supports students who need additional assistance in
academics, social emotional skills or behavior.

Navigator’s beliefs and practices align with the Report of California’s Statewide Task Force on
Special Education, March 2015. The report proves the use of research-based, tiered supports
forstudents, beforetheyfallfarbelowgradelevelinacademicsorrequireintensive behavioral
interventions, can lead to reduced special education referrals.

152 Page 26 0f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

EducatorsatWPS willrelyona MTSS framework to ensure curriculum, technology, teaching
strategies and behavioral interventions are intentionally designed and used to support
academic achievement and positive behavioral and social emotional skills for all students. The
tiers of supports embedded in the instructional design ensures that the school culture is one
where equity and access, regardless of ability, socio-economic status, gender or ethnicity is
pervasive and transparent.

Compass Point #5: Learning best occurs when technology is leveraged for student success

Technology in the Navigator classroom has become an essential tool for both student learning
andteachers’modeofinstruction. AtWPS, teacherswillutilize technologytoreceiverealtime
feedback on how their students are performing and where they need to be supported and
celebrated. Students will utilize technology tolearn new skills, teach one another, and towork
to their full potential. The use of technology at WPS will also help leverage teacher-led small
group instructional time so that all students receive individual attention.

The Navigator model employs one-to-one technology in all classrooms, providing students with
educationally valuable and adaptive software. Adaptive software, which adjusts the sequence
ofinstruction based on student performance levels, serves to support classroom learning by
providing students of all abilities with opportunities to practice at their level in areas of math
andlanguage arts. Software programs currently in use at Navigator schools include:

Fast Math

Read Naturally

ST Math

IXL

Accelerated Reader
Lexia

Reading A-Z

Khan Academy
Reading Plus
ALEKS

THE WPS SCHOOL MODEL

WPSwillreplicatethe same successfulmodelimplemented atboth Gilroy PrepandHollister
Prepschools. Asseeninthe dataabove, the school modelhasledto very strongacademic
results and we expectto see the same levels of performance at WPS. The model creates several
dynamic learning opportunities throughout the day with students flexing between whole group
andsmallgroupinstructionseveraltimesthroughouttheday. Thelowstudent-teacherratio of

153 Page 27 of135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

small groups allows instructors to hone in on student Common Core reading writing,
mathematics and languageneeds.

K's I nstru ctio nal . Homogeneous Centers . Collaborative Discussions/ Groups
M od el \_ Heterogeneous Instruction u Independent Practice
Humanities STEM

Reading Centers Whole Class Instruction Math Centers Whole Class Instruction

Direct
Instruction &
Guided Practice

Standards Based
Instruction

Guided Reading

(Writing, History
Reading)

Phonics
Real World

- ‘ ’ Guided Practice

|
|

| |

*Accelerated Reader, PE, designated ELD and enrichment blocks vary by grade

K-5 Humanities

Reading is at the foundation of college and career success. Navigator believes reading
instruction should be rigorous, engaging, and reflective of the shifts required by the Common
Core State Standards. Reading programs should offer diverse learning opportunities, including
heterogenous and homogenous reading groups, as well as a balance of socialand independent
practice. WPS will ensure a rich and rigorous approach to literacy developmentin every grade
and atevery lexile. Below is an overview of how literacy will be cultivated in the Kto 5th
instructional model.

Reading Center Overview

Students at WPS will regularly have theirreading levels and skills assessed so that the teacher
canprovide data-driven small group instruction. Students will rotate through three orfour
centersperweek,includingacenterledbyateacher,acenterledbyasmallgroupinstructor,
and one or two independent centers depending on the grade.

Guided Reading Center- Guided readingis the focus of the teacher-led centerin grades K-5.
Duringguidedreading, theteachermeetsdaily withasmallgroup of studentswhoarereading

154 Page 28 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

atasimilarLexilelevelorwhoneed help developingacommon skill orconcept. Studentsread
from the same text and participate in collaborative, teacher-guided skill development related to
thetexttheyarereadingasagroup. Wewillbase ourguided reading instruction on the highly-
acclaimed book by Paul Bambrick-Santoyo, Great Habits Great Readers. In grades K-1 the focus
of the teacher center is on phonics and fluency, and in grades 2-5 the focus shifts to reading
comprehension.

Phonics Center - At the phonics center, students will receive additional, personalized attention
with a highly trained paraprofessional. In grades K-3 this will be a systematic, scripted phonics
program such as Corrective Reading or Horizons. When homogeneous groups reach the
targeted lexile level, the focus of this center will change from the direct instruction of phonics
to guided practice with reading comprehension and language conventions.

Response to Literature Center - Teachers in grades 2-5 who utilize the four-station rotation will
have an independent center where students will independently respond to reading
comprehension questions. The work produced at this center will provide students with
opportunities to practice independent thinking and writing and will serve as a check-for-
understanding data pointthatthe teachercanusetoguidefuturelessonsanddiscussions.

Blended Learning Center- Allhumanities rotationsinclude ablendedlearningcomponent. In
grades K-3 Navigator uses Lexia adaptive reading software to meet students at their individual
learning level and Reading Plus software for grades 3-8. Leveraging smart technology allows for
meaningful independent practice during station rotations. Every student has weekly program
goals, and performance data is reviewed to ensure that students are on track to meet their
end-of-year goal. The software also equips the teacher with an additional data point to help
personalize instruction andintervention.

Materials Selection for Centers

Navigator believes in a balanced literacy program that combines literature that is engaging,
informational text, and interacting with text in multiple ways. Leveled texts are culturally
relevanttothe communitieswe serve, andtheyare alignedtothe California Historyand Social
Science Standards. These attributes promote a balanced, engaging, and personalized reading
program.

Whole Class Humanities Instruction Overview

The second humanities block is heterogeneous, whole-class instruction. During this block
students will have the opportunity to learn Common Core reading, writing, speaking and
listening, language, and social studies standards through grade-level text selections. Navigator
teachers use the whole-class block to directly instruct the standards, collaboratively discuss
topics, and guide practice. Additional time is used for independent or collaborative work.
Independent practice encompasses brief writes, essay writing, current standard practice

155 Page290f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

questions, and spiral review questions. Collaborative practice includes social studies projects,
book reviews, debates, Socratic seminars, and a variety of other group activities.

K-5 STEM

Math Center Overview

Students at WPS will regularly have their math levels and skills assessed so that the teacher can
provide data-driven small group instruction. Students rotate through three centers which
include direct instruction or guided practice led by a teacher, guided orindependent practice
led by a small group instructor (SGI), and a blended learning center.

Standards Based Instruction - Direct instruction is the focus of the teacher-led center in grades
K-5. Teachers implement Common Core math standards with appropriate scaffolds for each
homogenous group. Using standards based quizzes, teachers use the Navigator Data Cycle to
create personalized lessons backwards-planned from the intended learning outcomes.
Comprehensive instructional presentations are rigorous and offer multiple models to support
student understanding of both the how and why behind math. Additional open-ended slides
offer teachers the flexibility to adjust their instruction to each group to help ensure each
student gets exactly the practice they need to master the standard. Daily check for
understanding data allows teachers to pivot quickly and address misconceptions with almost no
lag time.

Real World Practice-The SGI centeris anadditional centerwhere students will getadditional
personalized attention with a highly-trained paraprofessional. In this math center students are
able to practice their new skills by applying them to a real-world situation in the form of word
problems or performance tasks. This practice can be guided or independent depending on how
new the standard or task is to the student. Teacher uses data to provide SGI with targeted
practice for eachgroup.

Blended Learning Center - All math rotations include a blended learning component. In grades
K-5 Navigator uses ST Math as the primary learning software and further personalizes this
centerbyincorporating othertargeted programs such as IXL and Khan Academy. As with our
humanities centers, leveraging smart technology for math allows for meaningful independent
practice during their station rotations. Every student has weekly program goals, and the data is
used to ensure students are on track to meet their end-of-year goal. The data also gives the
teacher additional insight to help personalize instruction and intervention.

Whole Class STEM Instruction

The second STEM block is heterogeneous instruction of math and science. During this block
teachers mayintroduce anew math standardto the whole class, practice mathfluency, leada
whole-class reteach, or explicitly teach any related academic or domain specific vocabulary. Itis

156 Page 300f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

most efficient to perform these activities and lessons with the whole class. Center timeis
preserved for the personalized deep dive into the concepts. The whole-class time is also used
for direct instruction of the Next Generation Science Standards using Mystery Science and TCI.
All science lessons follow best practices in science instruction, including inquiry and
investigation, to help students think deeply about answering questions and solving problems.
Proof of proficiency in science is demonstrated through student-created instructional videos,
live demonstrations, and technical writing. The whole-group instructional blocks include PE,
library and designatedELD.

Transitional Kindergarten

Navigator Schools does interpret state laws regarding Transitional Kindergarten (TK) as
requiring charter schools to provide TK, but recognizes some charter authorizers interpret state
law differently. As such, WPS does not planto operate a Transitional Kindergarten program,
however, will do so if the charter authorizer so requires. If required to operate TK, WPS will
ensure TK curriculum aligns with California Preschool Learning Foundations and corresponding
kindergarten standards from the California Common Core State Standards, and that all teacher
credentialing requirements are met, including 24 units in early childhood education.

Instructional Model for Grades 6-8
The graphic below illustrates how the instructional model is designed for grades 6-8.

Ll
6'8 I n St ru Ctlo n a I . Homogeneous Centers . Collaborative Discussions/ Groups
Heterogeneous Instruction Independent Practice
Model S Heteroe B Indep
Humanities STEM

Reading Centers Whole Class Instruction Math Centers Whole Class Instruction

Direct
Instruction &
Guided Practice
(Writing, History Science

Reading) Student - led Groups
Instruction
Groups

Standards Based

Literature Instruction

Discussion

Proof of
Proficiency

*Accelerated Reader, PE, designated ELD and enrichment blocks vary by Erade

157 Page 310f135




NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

6-8 Humanities

Reading Centers Overview

By the time students enter the 6th grade, they will be well prepared to move to the next stage
of guided reading. Students no longer rotate through centers with the teacher as the primary
group leader. Instead, they are assigned to a center for the duration of a leveled book study
and students are explicitly taught how to facilitate their own literature discussions. Through a
well-developed leadership training program, students learn how to create standards-based
questions and use discussion prompts to manage rigorous literature discussions.

Following the discussions students do an independent response to literature such as a blog post
or a written exit ticket, and then they will move directly into their blended learning programs.
Additionally, students complete several short essays and one full length paperin each of the
three writing genres.

Navigatoruses a number of different computer-based programs in the middle school grades.
Teachers determine which programs should be prescribed to each student and for how long
based on the students’ personalized needs. Reading Plus, No Red Ink, NewsELA, and
Accelerated Readerare some ofthe programs our Navigatorteachers useingrades 6-8.

During this independent work time, designated ELD groups will meet daily. The number of
groups that meet will be determined by the number of ELs, theirlevels, and cross-grade level
grouping options. As ELL numbers vary across grade level, WPS will create either leveled
classrooms or leveled small groups to ensure each middle school student receives designated
language development daily. Teachers will use their qualitative and formative data to
determine oral and written language gaps for specific skill instruction. Understanding the
language gaps of each group along with the Common Core helps teachers develop tailored
instruction aligned with the standards being taught. For example, if students are learning to
compare and contrast in reading, the aligned ELD lesson could include interacting with the
academic vocabulary necessary to be able to access that grade level content later in the week.
Teachers could use sentence strips, songs, realia, Thinking Maps, and various other ELD
strategies to help students exchange ideas or offer opinions through written and oral language
practice. These personalized lessons will continue to develop as student needs evolve. For
example, if data indicate that EL students are struggling with voice in their middle school
narrative writing, the designated lesson might focus explicitly on distinguishing how different
words with similar meaning produce different effects on the audience.

Navigator teachers spend professional development time deconstructing the ELD standards,
just as they do with the Common Core standards. Their ongoing collection of student data,
deep understanding of the ELD standards, and open-ended instructional presentations allows
forthe samelevelof personalizationindesignated ELD asisofferedintheleveledreadingand

158 Page 320135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

math instruction. This personalized approach is one of the key components to Navigator
student success.

Whole Class Humanities Instruction Overview

Similar to K-5, the second humanities block is heterogeneous, whole-class instruction. During
this block students willhave the opportunity tolearn Common Corereading, writing, speaking
and listening, language, and history standards through grade level text selections; however,
there is an emphasis on student facilitated discussions and collaborative proof of proficiency
projects. Proof of proficiency projects are an exhibition of understanding through several
multimedia options. These options could include producing an instructional video using Explain
Everything, PowToons or other publication application; a live demonstration; or an essay.
Teachers will also balance this group work with independent practice time which could include
briefwrites, blog posts, essay writing, current standard practice questions, and spiral review
questions.

6-8 STEM

Math Center Overview

Students at WPS will regularly have their math levels and skills assessed so that the teacher can
provide data-driven small group instruction. Students rotate through three centers which
include direct instruction or guided practice led by a teacher, guided orindependent practice
led by student leaders, and a blended learning center. Centers occur at least twice a week.
Additional days are used for whole-class direct instruction, assessment, or proof of proficiency
projects.

Standards Based Instruction - Direct instruction is the focus of the teacher-led center in grades
6-8. Teachersimplement Common Core math standards with appropriate scaffolds foreach
homogenous group. Using standards-based quizzes, Teachers use the Navigator Data Cycle to
create personalized lessons that are backwards-planned from the intended learning outcomes.
Comprehensive instructional presentations are rigorous and offer multiple models to support
student understanding of both the how and why behind math. Additional open-ended
instructional slides offerteachers the flexibility to adjust their instruction to each group to help
ensure each student gets exactly the practice he or she needs to master the standard. The
collection of daily check-for-understanding data allows teachers to pivot quickly and address
misconceptions with almost no lag time. Introducing the middle school student
discussion/facilitation model to elementary school students allows them to grapple with the
concepts in productive struggle in preparation for deeper conversations in middle school. The
teacher is there to ensure that the collaborative discussions are leading to deep understanding
of the concepts.

159 Page 330f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Student-led Instructional Groups - The focus of the student-led centeris guided practice and
proof of proficiency projects. Students are given activities to practice the standard, including
real-world word problems, practice problems, and performance tasks. When students have
received the appropriate amount of practice based on the data, they can begin a proofof
proficiency project, including the option of an instructional screencasting that demonstrates
their understanding of the standard.

Blended Learning Center - All math rotations include a blended learning component. In grades
6-8 Navigator uses ALEKS as the primary learning software and further personalizes this center
by incorporating other targeted programs such as IXL and Khan Academy. Every student has
weekly program goals, and a review of data is used to help ensure students are on track to
meet their end-of-year goal. The data also gives the teacher an additional data point to help
personalize instruction andintervention.

Whole Class STEM Instruction

The second STEM block is heterogeneous instruction of science. A primary resource is
Discovery Techbook, a curriculum which promotes best practices for teaching Next Generation
Science Standards. Thisresource utilizesthe SE model (Engage, Explore, Explain, Elaborate with
STEM, and Evaluate), and itincorporates Discovery Channel’s vast media library. Students and
teachers participate in real-world science concepts in the Earth, life, and physical sciences. The
program utilizes real-time data, hands-on labs, and countless interactive tools throughaweb
browser to inspire students.

Students most often work in groups, practicing their collaboration and leadership skills as they
worktodeeply understand the how and why behind science. Students will spend up toaweek
diving deeply into each concept such as plate tectonics, conservation of energy, or
photosynthesis. Each concept culminates in a student-created proof of proficiency project that
includes multimedia, live demonstrations, and technical writing.

WPS Instructional Vision

Watsonville Prep School will prepare students for educational success in high-performing high
schools and colleges using a rigorous standards-based curriculum which also prepares them for
the workplace. All students at WPS will have access to a world-class instructional program.
Rigorous, data-driven instruction that is aligned to the Common Core State Standards, the
California History and Social Science Standards, and the Next Generation Science Standards is
the foundation for the program. WPS will choose core curriculum materials that combine
traditional classroom curriculum with online, self-directed, and adaptive learning programs. Our
classroom teachers will be encouraged to use their professional discretion to supplement
standard materials with a variety of texts and other materials, depending on the needs of their
students. An overview of our approach to curriculum development and instructional
methodologies is providedbelow.

160 Page 340f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

WPS Curriculum

The Navigator Schools academic leadership team carefully reviews curricular material for each
subject and grade level to determine what is appropriately rigorous, engaging, and personalized
for our student population. In reviewing curricula, the following questions are used:

o Isitaligned with Common Core State Standards, Next Generation Science Standards
(“NGSS”) or California History / Social Studies Standards?

o Isthereresearch thatshows the curriculais successful for our student population?

o Isthis curriculum used in other high-performing schools?

o Does the curriculum emphasize our core academic beliefs? Is it challenging,
personalized, engaging, and conducive to continuous improvement?

Navigator leadership is continually looking for new curriculum that can improve the educational
experience for our students, as well as the professional experience for our teachers. Aswe
pilot new curriculum, we shall closely and continually evaluate its effectiveness and focus on
what works.

WPS will use a wide range of materials to support the mastery of standards. Students are
expected to not only meet the standards but to exceed them. Teachers and the academic
leadership team work together to design a pacing guide and curriculum map which enables this
goal.

Navigator began online spreadsheets known as our Scope and Sequence Greenlighting for
English Language Arts (ELA)and Social Studies, Math, and Science. These documents areliving
documents that are updated weekly and contain all our necessary curriculum housed within
one source in each of the content areas. WPS teachers will be released for planning days at
leastfourtimes ayearto collaborate with their colleagues from Hollister Prep and Gilroy Prep.
During the release days throughout the year, the teachers will meet with Navigator's Data
Analyst and Curriculum Specialist to continue developing and updating the most current
resources into thesedocuments.

Following is a list of tasks that teachers complete on those release days as they update these
greenlighting documents:
o Verify pacing for the year, and adjust as needed.
¢ Break down their standards and identify objectives.
e Evaluate current assessments in place and adjust as needed.
¢ Linkallteacherand student materials, along with exemplars into the Scope and
Sequence.

161 Page 350f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

¢ Resources are collected and added based on the needs of either site.
e BreakdownELD standardsandupdateinstructionalslidesincludingdesignated
ELD language spiral.

These documents will be updated constantly throughoutthe year. To view these documents
please navigate to this link:

https://www.navigatorschools.org/apps/pages/curriculum maps

Duetothe nature of spreadsheets, thereisnoeasywaytoprintthese documents. Theyarean
internal digital resource that WPS teachers will use daily. These spreadsheets serve as a pacing
and assessmentguide, a curricularresource warehouse and adata trackingdocument.

English Language Arts
Developing strong literacy skills is the leading component of students’ academic success and
WPS has created a comprehensive ELA program to provide students with the tools they need to
guide them through their academic careers. The majority of the materials used are teacher-
created PowerPoint slides that address ELA standards. Examples of other curricula used in the
program are:

o SRA Reading Mastery builds phonemic awareness skills, letter-sound fluency, and
decoding skills in early readers.
SRA Horizons builds specific decoding and comprehension skills in early readers.
SRA Corrective Reading increases reading fluency.
Write From the Beginning
Thinking Maps
Reading Plus
Lexia
ReadWorks
NewsEla
Reading A toZ
CCSS Exemplar Texts
Ready Common Core

Mathematics:
Student’s understanding of mathematics application, algorithms, theory and visualizations is
teacher-curated. In addition, the following curricula are used:

o Envision

o ST Math

o [ast Math

o LearnZillion
o ALEKS

162 Page 36 0f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

o Khan Academy
o Ready Common Core
o Go Math

History/Social Studies:
Watsonville Prep School will utilize the TCI curriculum for History/Social Studies.

Science:
Watsonville Prep School will utilize the TCl curriculum and Mystery Science in grades K-5and
plans to use Discovery Techbook in grades 6-8.

WPS Teaching Methodologies

A description of the many of the most common strategies and/or methodologies, all of which
are designed to accelerate English language development for our ELL students, are found
below:

Direct Instruction (“DI”) - Explicit teaching of standards through a variety of strategies including
“l do, we do, you do”, demonstrations, and lectures. Specific DI programs in use include:
Reading Mastery, Horizons, Corrective Reading, and ReadWorks.

Adaptive or Leveled Software - The use of adaptive or leveled software such as Lexia, Reading
Plus, ST Math, STAR Reading, STAR Math, Aleks, and Read Naturally, allows students multiple
practice opportunities at an appropriate level for building skills, enhancing skills, filling in
learning gaps, and learning advanced skills.

Leveled small group or Centers Model (K-5) - Centers allow teachers and instructors to engage
infocused instruction with small groups. Using data from formative and interim assessments
allows students to be grouped by level and to rotate through centers in both guided reading
and math instruction. Center rotations include:

o Teacherled

o Small Group Instructor (“SGI”) led

o Blended Learning and/orindependent

Systematic phonics instruction - Every kindergarten through second grade student receives
systematic phonics instruction using specifically designed programs including Reading Mastery
and Horizons. Students of all subgroups benefit from the use of systematic phonics and
phonemic awareness instruction. Students in the older grades receive phonics instruction as
needed using Corrective Reading.

Literacy Development - Emphasis on fluency, decoding, and comprehension occurs through
literature and informational texts in Navigator classrooms within all subject areas. Teachers

163 Page 37 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

provide multiple practice opportunities for fluency and decoding through independent reading
times and choral reading exercises. Guided reading and teacher read-alouds are key
components to building comprehension skills.

Prove/Disprove - A creative strategy to increase the rigor of multiple-choice questions in which
students are expected to solve each question using their proving and disproving skills. For each
incorrect answer, students must explain what the error was that led to that possible answer.
Foreachcorrectanswer, students must prove itwith a solution and awritten explanationasto
whytheanswerisright. Teachersmake surethereisaclearstrategytosolvethe problemanda
thoughtful explanation of why the other answers would not be possible.

Chris Biffle’s Whole Brain Teaching Strategies - Whole Brain Teaching (WBT) instructional
techniques are a vital part of the WPS educational model. Following are key components of
WBT:

o Teach-Okay: Researchindicates students learn the mostwhen they are engaged
in teaching others. By emphasizing energetic, instructional gesturing, students
engage five of students’ most powerful brain areas: visual cortex (seeing
gestures), motor cortex (making gestures), Broca’s area (verbalizing a lesson),
Wernicke’s area (hearing a lesson), and the limbic system (giving emotional
content to alesson).

o Mirror: Many brain scientists believe students learn by mirroring the gestures
and activities of others. They have identified mirror neurons scattered
throughout the brain which are activated by mimicking the behavior we observe.
WPS teachers believe when a class mirrors a teacher’s gesture and repeats their
words, a powerfullearning bond is created between students and teachers.

Teach Like a Champion techniques-Doug Lemov’s book, Teach Like a Champion 2.0,names 62
techniques which masterteachers use to place students on the path to college success. Key
techniques include:

o No Opt Out. Accepting “I don’t know” to a question is not an option for a
teacher. Teachers coach astudenttoarrive atthe correctanswerthrough peer
supportor by providing scaffolded cues to help the student arrive at the correct
answer.

o Circulate: Within the first five minutes, a teacher must “break the plane” by
moving away from the front of the classroom and delivering instruction at
strategic points around the room. The teacher moves systematically and
without pattern, engaging with students both verbally and nonverbally as he or
she circulates.

o Cold Call: Teachers call on students regardless of whether or not they have their
handsraised. Someteachersuse popsicle stickstorandomize studentresponses,
while other teachers may choose to use a student response app. Cold call

164 Page 38 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

increases student accountability and is always used in a positive manner and is
never berating or used to “catch” students who might be off task. Supportive
scaffolding described above in No Opt Out is used when studentdoesn’tknow
the answer to help students develop confidence and knowledge.

o Do Now: When students first enter the classroom, they immediately put their
pencil to paper with a three to five-minute independent activity that is either a
preview of the day’s lesson or a review of a recent lesson.

o AtBats: Usingmultiple formats andvariations, students have the opportunity to
practice a given skill until they are able to do itindependently. Once a student
has mastered a given skill, the teacher will extend the challenge by moving to the
next level with a bonus problem.

o Exit Ticket. Thefinal “AtBat” comes in the form of an exit ticket. Exit tickets are
quick (onetothreequestions)designedtoyielddata,andmakegreatDoNows.

Daily Spiral Review of CCSS - Daily instruction includes a series of spiral review slides covering
material students have already been directly taught. Afast-paced, high-energy review of the
standards on a daily basis is pivotal to the retention and mastery of the standards.

Intervention blocks to reteach standards - The daily schedule reflects times where teachers are
expected to provide additional instruction to those students who have not mastered standards.

Thinking Maps - Thinking Maps is a language of eight visual patterns each based on a
fundamental thinking process. These research-based maps are highly effective at helping ELs
and all other subgroups of students improve their literacy skills through writing, discussing, and
presentation of their thinking. The maps are based on cognitive thinking skills: defining in
context, describing qualities, comparing and contrasting, classifying, part-whole, sequencing,
cause and effect, and seeing analogies. These maps can be used individually or in combination
across grade levels and subject areas. Thinking Maps teach students to internalize visual
strategies for interpreting text structures.

Cooperative Learning - Navigator Schools has pioneered several new forms of student-led
collaboration including squad-based learning (teams of three). This system allows true
heterogeneous groupings that permit all students in the team ample practice opportunities
because of the small group size. Additionally, teachers continue to use more traditional
strategies such as think-pair-share, jigsaw, and round robin to expand the student’s ability to
increase positive interdependence, social skills, and master of concepts. Students will partner
read, analyze text, and ask questions, eventually leading guided reading discussions, and
serving as teachers in both math and ELA classrooms.

Systematic vocabulary instruction - All students benefit from systematic vocabulary instruction

165 Page 390f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

toadvanceinthe area ofliteracy. WPS willuse various strategies to ensure students develop
the required language skills to succeed in mastering the CCSS. Current Navigator practices
include: direct instruction of vocabulary prior to encountering them in context, ensuring that
words are utilized in context multiple times, associating an image with the new word, and
selecting words that are critical to understanding the key ideas of new content.

Progress monitoring data accessible to students and parents - All WPS classrooms display data
charts that document student progress towards meeting various academic goals. Research has
proven student effort and learning increase when their progress is tracked and they have some
responsibility in measuring their own progress.

Math manipulatives and visual modeling - Effective instruction includes the use of various
manipulatives which have been proven to supportthe deeperunderstanding of mathematics
for students of all subgroups. In addition, WPS students will create pictorial models of
mathematics problems on a daily basis.

Oral language sentence frames and stems - Oral language frames are embedded in all
standards-based teaching slides and are utilized throughout the instructional day. The frames
are based on Integrated ELD acquisition levels: beginning, intermediate, and advanced. This
instructional practice is supported by the leading practitioners of language development,
including the work of Kate Kinsella and Susana Dutro. When a standard is being taught, the
teacher first models the sentence frames and the students respond chorally. Then students
pair-share and use the open-ended sentence frames to practice the targeted skill. The teacher
then calls on students to use the frames in front of the whole class. Classmates havethe
opportunity to agree, disagree, and add on to the student’s comments. After adequate oral
language practice using the sentence frames, students use the frames to construct written
responses to a standards-based question asked by the teacher.

Chants and rhymes - Choral response in the form of chants and rhymes for timestables,
algorithms, grammar mechanics rules, and desired personal character qualities are utilized to
increase mastery of skills and promote student engagement. A sample of chants can be found
in Appendix F.

Proof of proficiency video - Students create multimedia presentations to demonstrate mastery
of standards and application of skills. Students utilize a variety of software programs, including
Explain Everything, PowToons, Google Slides and Prezi. For examples, see POP Videos (YouTube
- The Making of POPs, James Dent, https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h-ZgGQCyjUo&t=165s)

RACE/BASE - To ensure that students are able to demonstrate their comprehension of short
reading passages and word problems through writing, the use of RACE and BASE provides
students with the steps to take. The acronym for RACE refers to Restate question, Answer

166 Page400f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

question, Cite evidence, and Explain evidence. BASE refers to Box problems, Analyze the
question, Show and Solve the problem, and Explain the answer.

Frequent Assessments - WPS employs a comprehensive standards-based assessment plan which
includes daily skills assessments and interim assessments six times per year. Interim
assessments address the following areas: reading fluency, reading comprehension, CCSS based
on a year-long instructional map, math facts fluency, and several technology based
assessments, including: Lexia, ST Math, STAR Reading, and STAR Math. Staff will use interim
assessmentresults to adjust classroom intervention groups, and to increase spiral review of
areas of weakness.

Enrichment - In addition to CCSS instruction, students participate in a wide range of enrichment
courses, including art, chess, coding, dance, Lego Robotics, music, and sports.

Student and Staff Culture
To create a culture of excellence with staff and students, Navigator uses a combination of the
systems, structures, and strategies listed below:

Staff Morning Huddle - Every morning the staff will meet five minutes before greeting the
students to go over announcements, confirm data goals for the week, review staff outages,
promote staff initiatives, celebrate teacher success, develop SEL skills, and strengthen
interpersonal connections.

Morning Opener - All students, staff, and interested family members will begin every school day
by assembling for the morning opener. Morning opener is a student-led community meeting
during the first 10 minutes of each school day. Participants gather to engage in community
building activities, such as reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, singing the Navigator school song,
celebrating student growth, and sharing important announcements.

Weekly Character Conversations - Students will participate in weekly, systematic character
development activities with theirhomeroomteacher. Teachers will utilize a social-emotional
learning program to support student development of communication tools and coping
strategies. Navigatoris currently piloting the PATHS program at GPS and HPS.

Dress Code - The Navigator dress code is a strong component of school culture. It provides
students with a sense of belonging and equality. The dress code eliminates distractions and
contributes to our culture of excellence.

Aspirational Banners - Aspirational banners will be hung in classrooms as around the school
campus so students are surrounded with positive messages, instilling the beliefthat they can
and will succeed in life.

167 Page410f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

College-Named Classrooms - Each classroom will be assigned a college name for the year. This
will help distinguish between the two classes ateach gradelevel, anditwill reinforce the belief
that all WPS students have access to college because they feel as if they already belong to one.

PBIS - WPS willimplement Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports. Navigatoruses a
variety of incentives based on points students earn by demonstrating desired behavior or
improvement. These points will be used to earn both classroom and school-wide rewards on a
regular basis.

TLAC-WPSwilluse DougLemov’s Teach Like a Champion 2.0to guide coaching. Thisresource
offers classroom management, student engagement, and instructional strategies to help
educators improve and refine the craft of teaching very quickly. The strategies promote
positive culture for both students and staff.

Bell Schedule
WPS proposes a school day of 8:00-3:15 with extended time added for students who need
additional instructional time. Current Kindergarten runs from 8:00-2:30. The number of
instructional minutes offered for all grades meets or exceeds the State’s requirements in
Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(1). The charter school will have at least 175 days of
instruction and will, for each fiscal year, offer, at a minimum, the following number of minutes
of instruction:

A. To pupilsin kindergarten, 36,000 minutes

B. Topupilsingrades 1to 3, inclusive, 50,400 minutes

C. Topupilsingrades4to 8, inclusive, 54,000 minutes
The proposed bell schedule for 2019/20 and master schedule is listed in Appendix G. A sample
calendar from 2017-18 is included in Appendix H.

Professional Development

Ongoing feedback on best instructional practices is the cornerstone of continuous improvement
in classrooms. Navigator uses observation and feedback, three-way coaching, live coaching,
data meetings, and staff development to accelerate instructional development.

Observation and Feedback - Navigator’s teaching methodology is supported through an
extensive, continuous observation/feedback cycle. The site leadership team oversees this cycle
utilizing the Navigator Schools Observation and Feedback checklist. The checklist has three
major phases: classroom management, instructional rigor, and differentiation/special projects.
Each phase is further divided into action steps delineated by date of expected mastery.

Academic coaches play akeyrole in the observation/feedback cycle. The assigned coach begins
each weekly meeting with praise for the educator’s current and ongoing strengths. After
identifying the strengths, the coach encourages the educator to self-evaluate, identifying areas

168 Page420f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

forimprovement through probing questions that guide the educator toward the action items.
One or two action steps are assigned. Action steps must be measurable, high impact, and bite-
sized. Theseactionitemsare practiced withthe coach during the feedback meeting. Thefinal
step of the weekly meeting is to schedule a time for the coach to view the action steps within
the classroom.

The weekly evaluations are saved, charted, and available for future reference. The academic
coaches and principals must effectively balance evaluating the educator’s overall success with
identifying the specific action steps for the educatorto master. The emphasis throughout the
process is always on strengthening classroominstruction by developing the educator.

Because academic coachingis so criticalinateacher’s development, Navigator has taken great
painstodevelopaculture ofimprovementthatbeginsasearlyasthefirstinterview. Duringthe
hiring process, new instructors are given the opportunity toteach alessonto students and
immediately receive feedback from one of the site’s academic coaches.

Three-way coaching - Three-way coaching is part of the Navigator commitment to excellence. In
the eventthatan educatoris struggling withimplementing a new action step, orinorderto see
a new technique in action, the coach will initiate three-way coaching. The classroom teacher is
released by a substitute to observe a colleague along with their coach. The observing teacheris
asked to focus on specific instructional or classroom management strategies as an area of focus
forthe observation. The coachfacilitatesadiscussionwiththe observingteachertodevelopa
plan to implement the strategies in the teacher’s classroom. At Navigator, three-way coaching
has been shown to be one of the most efficient manners of helping accelerate a teacher’s
implementation of newtechniquesinthe classroom. Mostthree-way coaching sessionstake
less than thirty minutes to implement.

Live coaching - This technique leads to an immediate change in instructional practice due to its
“inthe moment” nature. Live coaching occurs when the coach becomes an active participant
during the teacher’s instruction, preferably using the least invasive method of support. To help
supporttheimplementation ofanewaction step ornewinstructionaltechnique, the coachcan
use a series of increasing levels of support to help redirect the teacher during instruction. Some
of these live coaching support strategies could include the use of hands signals or other visible
indicators to remind the teacherto use the technique, orthe coach may take overthe class for
15 to 30 seconds and demonstrate the new technique for the teacher. The teacher understands
the modeling is for their development, and the students most often do not realize that live
coaching is occurring.

Data meetings - A variation of the weekly observation and feedback meeting is the data
meeting. Inthese meetings the educatoris coached on analyzing studentachievementdata.

Page 43 0f1
169 age430f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The outcome from this meeting is to develop a re-teaching plan to help support students that
did notmeet satisfactory levels ofachievement. These meetings happen weekly during after
school professional development time, but can also take place at the discretion of the coach
based on daily check-for-understanding (CFU) results or formative quizzes. Ultimately, the
teacherleavesthe meetingwithaclearplanforstudents needingadditionalinstruction. Adata
meeting template is included in Appendix I.

Instructional Planning

Navigator teachers are released quarterly to work on unit planning. With the support of the
Data and Curriculum Specialist, teachers use backwards design to plan their upcoming
instructional units. The team begins by unpacking each Common Core standard and determines
what students need to know and do in order to achieve mastery. Teachers discuss common
misconceptions that may prevent students from mastering the standard and share strategies
that may be used to address these misconceptions. Teachers then write objectives for each
standard and determine how they will measure student proficiency using formal and informal
assessments. Exemplars are created for all assessments. These exemplars will be used before,
during, and after instruction as a “roadmap for rigor.” Student work will be compared to the
teacher exemplar in order to analyze gaps in understanding and to plan appropriate next steps
for student mastery. Once standards are unpacked, objectives are written, assessments and
exemplars are created, and teachers proceed to plan their daily lessons. Teachers use “double
planning” when creating theirdaily lessons; notonly do they plan whatthe teacherwillsay and
do during each lesson, but also what the students will say and do. This allows the teacherto
further anticipate student error and to identify strategies that may be used for necessary in-
the-moment adjustments.

Navi 101 & Navi 201

Differentiated professional development for all staff members takes place before the start of
each school year. New Navigator staff members participate in Navi 101, aone week training
period designed to introduce them to common vocabulary, common procedures, and common
expectations that are essential components of Navigator culture. New and returning teachers
participate in Navi201, a one week training on areas of focus for the coming year. Prior Navi
201 topics have included personalized learning, writing, student agency, response to
intervention (RTI), and full inclusion. The Navi 101/201 series is designed by the Academic
Leadership Team, and itis taught by Navigator coaches and mentor teachers. Sample Navi 101
and 201 schedules are included in Appendix J.

General Assurance of LCAP Compliance

The school will comply with all requirements pursuant to California Education Code and
47605(b)(5)(ii), including the development of schoolwide goals for all subgroups as applicable
tothe eight state priority areasidentified in Education Code 52060(d). The schoolwill comply

170 Page440f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

with all elements of the Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), including the adoption of any
templates required by the State Board of Education.

Plan for Meeting the Needs of Diverse Learners

The WPS instructional model is designed to meet the needs of the diverse learners that will
comprise the student body of WPS, including English learners, (migrant students, students with
special needs, foster youths, socio-economically disadvantaged students, students below grade
level, and students performing above grade level. The model follows the comprehensive Multi-
tiered System of Supports (MTSS) framework and Response to Intervention (RTI) process, as
provided by the CDE.

Accordingtothe CDE, “MTSSis anintegrated, comprehensive framework thatfocuseson CCSS,
core instruction, differentiated learning, student-centered learning, individualized student
needs, and the alignment of systems necessary for all students’ academic, behavioral, and
social success.” California has a long history of providing numerous systems of support. These
include the interventions within the Rtl2 processes, supports for special education, Title I, Title
[, support services for English Learners, American-Indian students, and those in gifted and
talented programs. MTSS offers the potential to create needed systematic change through
intentional design and redesign of services and supports that quickly identify and match the
needs of all students.” (Definition of MTSS, California Department of Education,
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/cr/ri/mtsscomprti2.asp)

In addition, “RTI is a systematic, data-driven approach to instruction that benefits every
student. RTI integrates resources from general education, categorical programs, and special
education through a comprehensive system of core instruction and tiered levels of
interventions to benefit every student.” (California Philosophy & Definition - RTI California
Department of Education. 13 May 2016. Web. 10 March 2017)

Plan for students who are academically low achieving

WPSwillfollowthe RTlprocesstoprovide focusedinterventiontolow achieving students with
the purpose of mitigating the underlying academic, social emotional or behavioral issuesthey
might present. WPS educators will identify all students at risk of having any difficulties that
interfere with learning. Students will be identified for intervention through regular data
monitoring by WPS staff that utilizes state test results, formative and summative assessments,
and teacher data.

171 Page450f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The RTI model at WPS will be based on the following tiers of support:

Intensive Individual
Intervention

Targeted Small Group
Tiet 2 Instruction

Core Classroom
Instruction

RTI (Response To Intervention)

3 Tiers of Support

Image source: http://www.rcps.info/departments/instructional department/virginia tiered_systems_of supports_rti_

The chartbelow summarizes the purpose of each level of RTI support and illustrates possible
interventions WPS will utilize to best support students.

Intervention Overview Possible Types of Intervention TimeofSchoolDay
Provided

Tier 1 supports are provided e Standards-aligned instruction Throughout

in the general education e Personalized and differentiation of instructional time,

classroom and are accessible instruction across all parts of

to all students. Supports are e Gradualrelease model ofinstructionto | the school day

both academic and foster student mastery of content (i.e.

behavioral. | do, we do)

e Use of graphic organizers, thinking
maps, sentence stems, and other
accommodations used to foster student
understanding

e Frequentcheck-insfromteacherson
progress

e Seat changes

e Whiteboard configuration to clearly
stateobjectivesandlearningagenda

e Use of class jobs, classroom
management systems, and other
structures to invest students in the
classroom environment.

172 Page460f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Tier 2 supports are provided
when there is data to
demonstrate Tier 1 supports
are not enough to ensure
student success. Tier 2
Supports are provided to
students via small group
interventions. With a full
inclusion model, most Tier 2
supports will be provided to
small groups of students
within the general education
classroom.

Tier 2 interventions will be provided to small
groups of students (2-6 students typically).
Interventions are research based and assigned
basedonstudentassessmentdata. Examples
include:
e Targeted fluency/decoding support
e Reading comprehension strategy
support
e Supportto access the text/finding
textual evidence
e Numeracy & fluency support
e Mathematicsproblemsolvingstrategies
Tier 2 behavioral supports may include:
e Socio-emotional strategy/affinitygroups
e Behavior trackers/incentive plans
e Small group check ins with teacher

Academic rotations,
extended day
support

When students continue to
struggle after consistent
provision of Tier 2 supports,
they may be eligible to
receive Tier 3 supports.
These supports are the most
intensive.

Interventions are research based and assigned
basedonstudentassessmentdata. Examples
include:
e Targeted fluency, decoding support
e Reading comprehension strategy
support
e Supportto access the text/finding
textual evidence
e Numeracy & fluency support
e Mathematicsproblemsolving strategies
Tier 3 behavioral supports may include:
e Socio-emotional strategy/affinitygroups
e Behavior trackers/incentive plans
e Small group check ins with teacher
e Referral for counseling and/orindividual
behavior support sessions.

Academic rotations,
extended day
support

Teams of teachers will meet to review students’ progress as supports are provided.
Parents and students are informed as students move through these levels of tiered
support. Ifastudentneedstobe movedfromLevel 2to Level 3, anintervention meeting
is scheduled with teachers, support staff who work with the student, and the parents.
This meeting will also include the student when appropriate.

This process of reviewing student needs and then scaffolding supports for the student
continues untilthe student succeeds. The process is overseen by a WPS staff member
who works closely with the student, and is supported by the student’s teachers.

173

Page470f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Asnotedabove, WPS will provide extensive supporttoallstudentsinLevel 1,2,and 3.
Wedeeply believe that, when studentslearninaschool environmentthatis physically
and emotionally safe and provides them access to world-class instruction, all students can
be successful. By providing an exceptionally-high level of quality teaching to every
studentinevery classroom, and by offeringthe array of supports described above, we
feel confident that all students at WPS will experience success.

Student Success Team and Response to Intervention

Ifthe supports outlined above do notlead to sufficient progressinthe student’s achievement
level for academic, behavioral or social emotional concerns, WPS will convene a Student
Success Team (SST) to consider additional or alternative supports to meet the child’s specific
needs. Thisteamwillbe comprised ofthe key people responsible forthe child’slearningand
success, including the student’s teachers, parents, special education teachers, and
administration. The team will collect data, discuss observed student strengths and areas of
concern, and brainstorm interventions to address the student’s needs. The team will evaluate
the students plans every eight weeks to monitor progress and evaluate the effectiveness of
the intervention. If the student’s achievement has not improved sufficiently, the team will
request parent consent for a referral to a special education evaluation in the areas of
suspected disability.

Plan for students who are academically high-achieving

The instructional model in WPS classrooms supports the academically high-achieving student
population through leveled reading groups, adaptive software, student-led discussiongroups,
andindependentlearning projects. Students areidentified by statetestresults, formativeand
summative assessments, and teacher observations. Every month parents are notified when
students demonstrate highachievementin mathandreading. Inaddition, parents are notified
when students meet blended learning goals. Studentwho meet or exceed proficiency on the
SBAC are publicly recognized at an assembly in August. Students who received a perfect score
on the SBAC are recognized ata NS board of directors meeting in September.

Leveled reading instruction allows academically high-achieving students to engageadvanced
levels of literature through the use of audio books, literature circles, and guided reading
opportunities. Twice a year, in October and April, parent conferences also provide
opportunities for parents to be informed about their child’s performance.

Adaptive software allows our academically high-achieving students to learn and be challenged
on a daily basis. These programs place students at their individual academic levels in math and
language arts. This software allows advanced students to progress as quickly as they can, unlike
traditional classroom instruction that typically focuses on grade-level content.

174 Page 480f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Opportunities will be provided for high-achieving students to lead inquiry-based small group
discussions within language arts and STEM rotations. Leadership skills and higher-level thinking
skills such as synthesizing, perspective-taking, and application will be the focus of student-led
discussions. At the existing Navigator Schools, student-led discussions have led to students
learning basic teaching management strategies, presentation skills using technology, ways to
scaffold information for different learners, and increased student agency.

Independent learning projects will allow high-achieving students to demonstrate the
acquisition, application, and expansion of skills. Through projects that incorporate components
of art, media, writing and design, students have creative opportunities to channel learning at
higher levels.

Plan for English Learners

The charter school will meet all applicable legal requirements for English learners as they
pertain to annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program options, EL
and core content instruction, teacher qualifications and training, reclassification to fluent
English proficient status, monitoring and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized
testing requirements. WPS will implement policies to protect the rights of students and parents
and to assure proper placement, evaluation, and communication regarding English language
learners. An English Learner Advisory Committee (ELAC) will be formed when there are more
than 21 EL students at the school.

In accordance with CA ELD Standards, Navigator Schools is dedicated to providing EL students
with an effective instructional program that will equip them to attain proficiency in English.
Englishlearners atWPS willhave fullaccess to English language arts, mathematics, science, and
social studies content, as well as other subjects, at the same time that they are progressing
through the ELD-level continuum. Within the growth expectations of the State of California, EL
students will develop skills and confidence in English listening, speaking, reading, and writing.
These components are atthe core of achievement, inside and outside of the classroom.

The Navigator instructional model provides developmental access to the core curriculum
through instructional modifications designed to make instruction comprehensible to an English
learner at any point on the continuum. The model is designed to build academic English
language proficiency in tandem with mastering the content standards adopted by the California
State Board of Education. Navigator classrooms implementintegrated and designated ELD, and
students who are English learners participate in both ELD instructional segments until they have
met all reclassification criteria and are redesignated fluent English proficient (RFEP). Educators
meet frequently to discuss student needs and to change flexible groupings. Teams of educators
also meet quarterly to monitor English learner progress and to determine reclassification
candidates.

175 Page 490135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The WPS ELD program includes the following key components:

o Implementation of the 2012 California ELD standards in alignment with the CCSS and
NGSS

o Designated ELD is data-driven and personalized as teachers identify specific language
gaps through ELD formative assessments

o Designated ELD is scheduled during the day at a protected time utilizing the CAELD
standards as the focal standards

o IntegratedELDisusedbyallteacherswith EL studentsintheirclassroomusingthe CA
ELD Standardsintandemwiththe CACCSS for ELA/Literacy and othercontentstandards

o The ELD planincludes a process for measuring the effectiveness of the charter school’s
program for English learners and the results of this process will be used toimprove the
program

o Englishlearnersare groupedfordesignated ELD by English language proficiency level

o Teachers hold appropriate certification for instructing English learners

o Core instruction is taught in English using Specially Designed Academic Instruction in
English (SDAIE) strategies with an emphasis on academic language and vocabulary

o Instruction addresses the ELD standards through speaking, listening, reading, and
writing domains

o Instruction develops proficiency in formal, academic English

o Instruction provides access to the core curriculum through rigorous lessons, using
scaffolding as needed

Integrated ELD

The ELA/ELD Framework “uses the term integrated ELD to refer to ELD throughout the day and
acrossthedisciplines. Allteachers with ELs in their classrooms should use the CAELD Standards
in addition to their focal CA CCSS for ELA/Literacy and other content standards to support their
ELs’ linguistic and academic progress. The goal section of each set of grade-level and grade-
span CA ELD Standards specifies that in California schools, ELs should engage in activities in
which they listen to, read, analyze, interpret, discuss, and create a variety of literary and
informational text types. Through these experiences, they develop an understanding of how
language is a complex and dynamic resource for making meaning, and they develop language
awareness, including an appreciation for their primary language as a valuable resource inits
own right and for learning English.” (Ch. 2, p. 81)

The Navigator educational model was designed to accelerate English language development.
The constantintegration of ELD strategies across the instructional program and in all subject
areas has led to the Navigator English language learner populations excelling on the SBAC, far
outperforming their subgroup averages across the state.

176 Page 50 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Designated ELD

Designated ELD is protected time during the regular school day when teachers use the CA ELD
Standardsasthefocalstandardsinwaysthatbuildintoand from contentinstructioninorderto
develop critical English language skills, knowledge, and abilities needed for content learning in
English, an opportunity during the regular school day to support ELs to develop the discourse
practices, grammatical structures, and vocabulary necessary for successful participation in
academic tasks across the content areas. The master schedule provides an example of the
specifictimeduringeachinstructionaldaythatdesignated ELD instruction willbe provided.

Assessment and Identification
o HomelLanguage Survey-The Home Language Survey (HLS)is administered upon every
student’s initial enroliment into the Charter School as part of Navigator’s standard
enrollment form completionprocess.

o English Language Proficiency Testing - WPS will administer the English Language
Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC), described in more detail below. All
students who indicate theirhome language is otherthan English willbe ELPAC tested
withinthirty (30) days of initial enrolimentand atleastannually thereafter between July
1st and October 31st until reclassified as fluent English proficient.

o WPSwillnotify all parents of its responsibility for ELPAC testing and of ELPAC results
withinthirty (30)days ofreceiving results fromthe publisher. The ELPAC shallbe used
to fulfill the requirements under the Every Student Succeeds Act for annual English
proficiency testing.

English Language Proficiency Assessment

All students who indicate their home language is other than English will be tested with the
ELPAC. The ELPAC has four proficiency levels (Level 4: well developed; Level 3: moderately
developed; Level 2: somewhat developed; and Level 1: minimally developed) andis aligned
with the 2012 California ELD Standards.

The ELPAC consists of two separate assessments:

o Initial Assessment (lA)
The ELPAC IAis used to identify students as either an English learner, or as fluent in
English. The IA is administered once during a student’s time in the California public
school system based upon the results of the home language survey. The locally scored
IA will be the official score. The |Ais given to students in grades K-12 whose primary
language is not English to determine their English proficiency status.

o Summative Assessment(SA)
ELs will take the SA every year until they are reclassified as fluent English proficient. The
ELPAC SAis only given to students who have previously been identified as an EL based

177 Page 510f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

upon the IA results, in order to measure how well they are progressing with English
developmentineach ofthe fourdomains. Theresults are used as one of four criteriato
determine if the studentis ready to be reclassified as fluent English proficient, to help
inform proper educational placement, and to report progress for accountability.

Boththe ELPACIAand SAarepaper-and-pencilassessmentsadministeredinsevengrade spans
-K,1,2,3-5,6-8,9-10,and 11-12. Inkindergarten and grade 1, alldomains are administered
individually. Ingrades 2-12, the testis administered in groups, exclusive of speaking, whichis
administered individually.

Testing times will vary depending upon the grade level, domain, and individual student. Both
the ELPACIAand SAare givenintwo separate testingwindows through the school year.

The IA testing window will be year-round (July 1-June 30). Any student whose primary
language is otherthan English as determined by the home language survey and who has not
previously been identified as an English Learner by a California public school or for whom there
is no record of results from an administration of an English language proficiency test, shall be
assessed for English language proficiency within 30 calendar days after the date of first
enrollment in a California public school, or within 60 calendar days before the date of first
enrollment, but not before July 1 of that school year.

The SAtestingwindowwillbe afour-monthwindow after January 1 (February1-May31). The
English language proficiency of all currently enrolled English Learners shall be assessed by
administering the test during the annual assessment window.

Assessment, Monitoring, and Reclassification Process

Each English Learner will be monitored daily, weekly, and monthly on both CA ELD standards as
well as the ELA Common Core State Standards. Assessments and progress monitoring tools
include:

o ELPAC

¢ SBAC

o Daily ELA assessments (Checks for Understanding)
o Unit interimassessments

o Software assessments

A student is reclassified as fluent English proficient using criteria consistent with legal
requirements, including
o CurrentELPAC Scores Overall (heedtobe 4 or5, nomore than one subscore canbe a 3)
o ELASBAC Previous Year Mustbe a3 or4
o Teacher and administration meeting regarding approval on overall performance with an
emphasis on writing.

178 Page 520f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

o Consultation with parents

Education Code Section 313(f) specifies that multiple measures be used to reclassify ELsbut
measures must include all four of the following criteria:

1) Assessmentoflanguage proficiency usinganobjective assessmentinstrumentincluding,
but not limited to, the ELPAC;

2) Participation of the pupil’s classroom teachers and any other certificated staff with
direct responsibility for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate the
pupil’s curriculum mastery;

3) Parental opinionand consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians of
the language reclassification and placement including a description of the
reclassification process and the parents’ opportunity to participate, and encouragement
of the participation of parents or guardians in the reclassification procedure including
seeking their opinion and consultation during the reclassification process; and

4) Comparison of the student’s performance in basic skills against an empirically
established range of performance in basic skills based on the performance of English
proficient students of the same age that demonstrate to others that the pupil is
sufficiently proficient in English to participate effectively in a curriculum designed for
pupils of the same age whose native language is English.

Reclassified students are monitored for atleast four years to ensure their continued ability to
achieve mastery of CCSS English Language Arts standards and to provide additional support, if
needed.

Materials
1. Navigator-adopted and supplemental materials are used for all core subjects
2. Navigator-adopted and supplemental materials are used for ELD instruction

ELD Professional Development

Watsonville Prep will provide professional development to improve instruction for English
learners and all students. Trainings will be ongoing atthe network and site levels. Information
regarding conferences and out-of-district trainings will also be available.

Examples of Professional Development Topics & Conferences Attended and/or Utilized
Unpacking the 2012 ELD standards

2014 ELA/ELD Framework

Training and support for administration and site leadership

EL program options and reclassification criteria

Current EL assessments, research and policy

English Language Advisory Committee training and support

California Charter School Association (CCSA) annual conference

179 Page 530f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Designated ELD instruction

Lesson planning and online resources

Integrated ELD training for core subjects

Supporting English learners in the mathematics classroom
Project-Based Learning (PBL)

Thinking Maps

Guided reading

Effective instruction and best practices refreshers

Kate Kinsella: Speaking Frames, Vocabulary, and English 3D Technology integrationand
CUE conferences

CAASPP assessmentanalysis

Project GLAD strategies

ELPAC assessmentanalysis

Unpacking CCSS andNGSS

Monitoring and Evaluation of Program Effectiveness:
The evaluation for the program effectiveness for EL students at WPS will include:
¢ Adheringto charter school-adopted academic benchmarks by language proficiency level
and years in program to determine annual progress
¢ Monitoring ofteacherqualifications and the use of appropriate instructional strategies
based on programdesign
¢ Monitoring of student identification and placement
¢ Monitoring parental program choice options
¢ Monitoring of availability of adequate resources

ELD Instructional Strategies

The Navigator educational program is designed to reach all learners, including English learners.
It promotes language acquisition and proficiency, oral language development, and enriched
learning opportunities. The inclusive and collaborative environment at WPS gives ELs a setting
to learn from and with English-speaking peers, as well as other ELs. Navigator staff encourage
studentstoshare knowledgein avariety offorms so all students can participate, regardless of
their own English proficiency. In addition, the inclusion of small group instructors in the
classroom ensures students receive more individualized support.

All EL students are fully integrated into regular classrooms and receive core content instruction
appropriate for their English proficiency and grade levels. Teachers plan their curriculum to
ensure EL students have full access to the material, modifying their instruction as needed in
order to provide integrated ELD.

Within the Navigator School’s schedule there is a dedicated time for Designated ELD instruction
in which ELs received leveled ELD instruction within a small group setting. During the

180 Page 540f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Designated ELD time, instructors focus on teaching specific linguistic skills and ELD standards to
students so that they can continue to build upon their English Language skills within
academically rigorous courses such as science and social studies.

As part of Navigator’s ongoing staff development, all teachers have been and will be trained on
the California ELD Standards and utilize a variety of ELD techniques and strategies. On
professional development days, during weekly coaching sessions, and in weekly data meetings,
teachers regularly discuss the needs and performance of EL students, based on both formal and
informal assessments. They arethen able to planforboththe integrated and designated ELD
instruction that is critical for the success of EL students.

Specific strategies that support our English Learners during designated and integrated ELD
include:

Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English: Staff throughout WPS will use SDAIE
strategies to support ELs in learning academic content. SDAIE instruction focuses on making
academic input comprehensible and reinforcing it using strategies such as realia and
manipulatives, visuals, graphic organizers, interactive discussions, and a focus on academic
vocabulary instruction.

Spiral review/preview of content: Opportunities for repeated exposure to academic vocabulary
are critical for acquiring language for EL student success. Brain research has proven children
need between ten and twenty experiences with a concept, problem or vocabulary to internalize
and convertlearning to long-term memory. Spiral review provides these opportunities while
previewing content and front-loading vocabulary, thereby increasing comprehension and
learning.

Orallanguage practice scenarios: Thisinstructional strategy provides EL students abundantoral
language development opportunities including always speaking and answering in complete
sentences, Socratic seminar and other forms of small group discussion. Students will be
required to verbally rationalize correct and incorrect answers using specific front-loaded
vocabulary.

Leveled reading groups: EL students will receive daily, leveled small-group reading instruction
for atleast forty minutes. Inthe early grades, instruction will focus on phonemic awareness,
phonics, fluency, and comprehension. The literacy approach utilized at WPS incorporates
current research on teaching children to read in a second language by providing scientifically-
based reading instruction, small group interventions based on on-going assessment, and
scaffolds for EL students. This type of leveled grouping and instruction will create an
environment that allows EL students to be much more successful and receive instruction at the
appropriate instructional level. In addition, the smaller groups allow the teacher to meet the

181 Page 550f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

individual needs of each student and differentiate instruction according to their academic levels
and needs. WPS students receive aminimum of 90 minutes perday ofleveled reading. Inthe
upper grades, the leveled reading groups focus on vocabulary, comprehension, and analysis.

Plan for students with special needs:

The Charter School shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws in serving
students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act (“Section 504”), the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) and the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Improvement Act (“IDEA”).

The Charter School shall be its own local educational agency (“LEA”) and shall apply
directly for membership in a Special Education Local Plan Area (“SELPA”) in conformity
with Education Code Section 47641(a). The Charter School shall consider membership
in the following SELPAs: El Dorado County Charter SELPA.

In the event the Charter School seeks membership in a different state-approved
SELPA, the Charter School shall provide notice toSCCOE, the SELPA, and the
California Department of Education before June 30" of the year before services are to
commence.

Upon acceptance in a SELPA, the Charter School shall provide the County with
evidence of membership. As an LEA member of the SELPA, the Charter School shall
receive state and federal revenues directly, in accordance with the SELPA’s allocation

plan.

T’he Charter School shall comply with all state and federal laws related to the provision
of special education instruction and related services and all SELPA policies and
procedures; and shall utilize appropriate SELPA forms.

The Charter School may seek resources and services (e.g. Speech, Occupational
Therapy, Adapted P.E., Nursing, and Transportation) from the SELPA, subject to
SELPA approval and availability. The Charter School may also provide related services
by hiring credentialed or licensed providers through private agencies or independent
contractors.

The Charter School shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and
the ADA. The facilities to be utilized by the Charter School shall be accessible for all

students with disabilities.

182 Page 56 0f 135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition
2019-2024

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act

The Charter School recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with a
disability shall, onthe basis ofdisability, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits
of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program of the Charter School. A
student who has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major
life activities, has a record of such an impairment, or is regarded as having such an impairment,
is eligible for protections under Section 504.

A 504 team will be assembled by the Principal and shall include the parent/guardian, the
student (where appropriate) and other qualified persons knowledgeable about the student, the
meaning of the evaluation data, placement options, and accommodations.

183 Page 57 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The 504 team will review the student’s existing records, including academic, social and
behavioral records, and is responsible for making a determination as to whether an evaluation
for 504 servicesis appropriate. Ifthe student has already been evaluated underthe IDEA but
found ineligible for special education instruction or related services under the IDEA, those
evaluations may be used to help determine eligibility under Section 504. The student evaluation
shallbe carried out by the 504 team, which shall evaluate the nature of the student’s disability
andtheimpactuponthe student’seducation. This evaluation willinclude considerationofany
behaviorsthatinterferewithregularparticipationinthe educational programand/oractivities.

The 504 team may also consider the following information in its evaluation:

¢ Testsandotherevaluation materials thathave been validated forthe specific purpose
for which they are used and are administered by trained personnel.

¢ Tests and other evaluation materials including those tailored to assess specific areas of
educational need, and not merely those that are designed to provide a single general
intelligence quotient.

o Tests are selected and administered to ensure that when a test is administered to a
student with impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills, the test results accurately
reflectthe student’s aptitude orachievementlevel, orwhateverfactorthe test purports
tomeasure, ratherthanreflecting the student’simpaired sensory, manual or speaking
skills.

The final determination of whether the student is eligible foraccommodations under Section
504 must be made by the 504 team in writing and notice is is given in writing to the parent or
guardian of the student in their primary language along with the procedural safeguards
available to them. If during the evaluation, the 504 team obtains information indicating
possible eligibility of the student for special education perthe IDEA, the 504 team will make a
referral for assessment under the IDEA.

If the studentis found by the 504 team to be eligible foraccommodations under Section 504,
the 504 team shall be responsible for determining what, if any, accommodations or services are
needed to ensure the student receives a free and appropriate public education (FAPE). In
developing the 504 Plan, the 504 team shall consider all relevant information utilized during the
evaluation of the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, but not limited to,
assessments conducted by the Charter School’s professional staff. The 504 Plan shall describe
the Section 504 disability and any program accommodations, modifications or services that may
be necessary.

A sample of 504 procedures can be found in Appendix L. All 504 team participants, parents,
guardians, teachers and any other participants in the student’s education, including substitutes
and small group instructors, must have a copy of each student’s 504 plan. The Principal or

184 Page 58 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Coach will ensure that teachers include 504 Plans with lesson plans for short-term substitutes
and thathe/she reviews the 504 Plan with along-term substitute. A copy of the 504 Plan shall
be maintained in the student’s file. Each student’s 504 Plan will be reviewed atleast once per
year to determine the appropriateness of the plan, needed modifications to the plan, and
continued eligibility.

Services for Students under the IDEA

The Charter School shall provide special education instruction and related services in
accordance with the IDEA, Education Code requirements, and applicable policies and
practices of the SELPA.

The Charter School shall provide services for special education students enrolled in the
Charter School. The Charter School shall follow SELPA policies and procedures, and shall
utilize SELPA forms in seeking out and identifying and serving students who may qualify for
special education programs and services and for responding to record requests and parent
complaints, and maintaining the confidentiality of pupil records.

The Charter School agrees to promptly respond to all County or SELPA inquiries, to comply
with reasonable County or SELPA directives, and to allow the County or SELPA access to
Charter School students, staff, facilities, equipment and records as required or imposed by

Staffing
All special education services at the Charter School will be delivered by individuals or agencies

185 Page 590f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

qualified to provide special education services as required by the California Education Code and
the IDEA. Charter School staff shall participate in SELPA in-service training relating to special
education.

The Charter School will be responsible for the hiring, training, and employment of site staff
necessary to provide special education services toits students, including, without limitation,
special education teachers, paraprofessionals, and resource specialists. The Charter School shall
ensure that all special education staff hired or contracted by the Charter School is qualified
pursuant to SELPA policies, as well as meet all legal requirements. The Charter School will be
responsible for the hiring, training, and employment of itinerant staff necessary to provide
special education services to the Charter School’s students, including, without limitation,
speechtherapists, occupational therapists, behavioral therapists, and psychologists.

186 Page 600135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The short-term staffing model for WPS includes a full-time special education teacher and two or
more special education paraprofessionals depending on the needs of the students. Speech
therapy services, occupational therapy services, psychological services, counseling services, and
any other service provider listed on a student’s IEP, will be provided through contracted staff,
unless the CMO has already hired one of the needed service providers. As the school grows,
more special education staff will be hired by the Charter School.

Along-term staffingmodelfor WPS may include the following full-time staff: additional special
education paraprofessionals, a speech pathologist, a counselorand a psychologist.

Notification and Coordination

The Charter School shall follow SELPA policies as they apply to all SELPA schools for
responding to implementation of special education services. The Charter School shall
adopt and implement polices relating to all special education issues and referrals.

Identification and Referral

The Charter School shall have the responsibility to identify, refer, and work cooperatively in
locating students who have or may have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive special
education services. No assessment or evaluation will be used for admission purposes. The
Charter School will implement SELPA policies and procedures to ensure timely identification
and referral of students who have, or may have, such exceptional needs. A pupil shall be
referred for special education only afterthe resources of the regular education program have
been considered, and where appropriate, utilized. This includes the Charter School's Response
to Intervention framework, outlined in a previous section. The Charter School may also choose
toreferastudentforservicesthroughthe provisions ofa Section 504 Plan, ifappropriate. The
oversight entity shall have access to the Charter School’s student records and information in
order to conduct oversight audits.

The Charter School shallfollow SELPA child-find procedures to identify all students who may
require assessment to consider special education eligibility and special education and related
services in the case that general education interventions do not provide a free appropriate
public education to the student in question.

Assessments

The term “assessments” shall have the same meaning as the term “evaluation” in the IDEA, as
provided in Section 1414, Title 20 of the United States Code. The Charter School shall
determine what assessments, if any, are necessary and arrange for such assessments for
referred or eligible students in accordance with the Charter School's general practice,

187 Page 610135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

procedure and applicable law. The Charter School will obtain parent/guardian consentto assess

188 Page620f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

students.

Referral for a special education assessment might come through the Student Study Team (SST)
process. When a student is determined to be in need of more intensive interventions, the
student is referred to the SST. At this meeting parents, intervention staff, teachers and an
administratorreview dataand create anintervention plantoimplementforatleast4 weeks. A
follow-up meeting is scheduled to determine if the interventions were effective. If the
interventions were not effective, a new intervention plan is created, a follow-up meeting
scheduled where intervention efficacy is reviewed again. If the student is not making
satisfactory progress, a referral might be made for a special education assessment ora new
cycle of intervention occurs. Parents will be informed that special education and related
services are provided at no cost to them and includes assessment guidelines and assurances
that if conflicting with SELPA policies and procedures, then SELPA policies and procedures will
govern.

In the event that the Charter receives a written request for evaluation, it will be solely
responsible for working with the parent/guardian to address the request and follow SELPA
policies, procedures, and timelines. Charter shall respond to a written request for assessment
within 15 days. If Charter concludes that an assessment is appropriate, it will send written
Assessment Plan within 15 days, and upon receipt, conduct the evaluation and hold the IEP
within 60 days.

IEP Meetings
The Charter School shallarrange and notice the necessary IEP meetings. IEP team membership

shallbe in compliance with state and federal law. The Charter School shall be responsible for
having the following individuals in attendance at the IEP meetings: the Principal and/or the
WPS designated representative with appropriate administrative authority as required by the
IDEA,; the student’s special education teacher; the student’s general education teacher; the
student, if appropriate; the student’s parent/guardian; and other WPS representatives who are
knowledgeable about the regular education program at WPS and/or about the student. The
Charter School shall arrange for the attendance or participation of all other necessary staff that
may include, but are not limited to, an appropriate administrator to comply with the
requirements of the IDEA, a speech therapist, psychologist, resource specialist, and behavior
specialist; and shall document the IEP meeting and provide the notice of parental rights.
Timelinesformeetingsinclude the following: Yearly toreview student’s progress; every three
years to review the results of a mandatory comprehensive reevaluation; after student has
received a formal assessment or reassessment; within 30 days of a parent’s request; when an
Individual Transition Plan (ITP) is required at the appropriate age; if manifestation
determination is required.

189 Page 630f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

IEP Development

The Charter School understands that the decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives,
program, services, placement, and exit from special education shall be the decision of the IEP
team, pursuant to the IEP process. Programs, services and placements shall be provided to all
eligible Charter School students in accordance with the policies, procedures and requirements
of the of the SELPA and State and Federal law. Every student who is assessed for special
education will have an |IEP that documents assessment results and eligibility for special
education services. Assurances of modifications and accommodations and Least Restrictive
Environment (LRE) Assurance that IEP goals and services will be linguistically appropriate as per
Ed Code Section 56345 (b). A copy of the IEP will be given to the parent in accordance with
state laws and policies on SELPA forms.

IEP Implementation

The Charter School shall be responsible for all school site implementation of the IEP. As part of
this responsibility, the Charter School shall provide the parents with timely reports on the
student’s progress as provided in the student’s IEP atleast as frequently as report cards are
provided for the Charter School’s non-special education students. Unless otherwise specified
onthe student’s IEP, parents willbe informed fourtimes ayear ofthe student progress toward
meetingannual goals. Ifreassessmentisrequested any time during the year, school willhave
thirty days, notincluding school vacations greaterthanfive days, tohold the IEP meeting. The
Charter assumes responsibility for IEP review. The Charter School shall also provide all home-
school coordination and information exchange. The Charter School shall also be responsible for
providing all curriculum, classroom materials, classroom modifications, and assistive
technology.

Interim and Initial Placements of New Charter School Students

The Charter School shall comply with Education Code Section 56325 with regard to students
transferring into the Charter School within the academic school year. In accordance with
Education Code Section 56325(a)(1), for students who enroll in the Charter School from another
school district within the State, but outside of the SELPA with a current IEP within the same
academic year, the Charter School shall provide the pupil with a free appropriate public
education, including services comparable to those described in the previously approved IEP, in
consultation with the parent, for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days, by which time the
Charter School shall adopt the previously approved IEP or shall develop, adopt, and implement
a new IEP that is consistent with federal and state law.

In accordance with Education Code Section 56325(a)(2), in the case of an individual with
exceptional needs who has an IEP and transfers into the Charter School from a district operated
program under the same special education local plan area of the Charter School within the
same academic year, the Charter School shall continue, without delay, to provide services
comparable to those described in the existing approved IEP, unless the parent and the Charter

190 Page 640f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

School agree to develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP thatis consistent with federal and
state law.

For students transferring to the Charter School with an IEP from outside of California during the
same academicyear, the Charter School shall provide the pupil with a free appropriate public
education, including services comparable to those described in the previously approved IEP in
consultation with the parents, until the Charter School conducts an assessment pursuant to
paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of Section 1414 of Title 20 of the United States Code, if
determined to be necessary by the Charter School, and develops a new |IEP, if appropriate that
is consistent with federal and state law.

Non-Public Placements/Non-Public Agencies
The Charter School shall be solely responsible for selecting, contracting with, and overseeing all
nonpublic schools and nonpublicagencies used to serve special education students.

IDEA Non-Discrimination

It is understood and agreed that all children will have access to the Charter School and no
student shall be denied admission nor counseled out of the Charter School due to the nature,
extent, or severity of his/her disability or due to the student’s request for, or actual need for,
special education services.

Reporting
Assurances that Charter will collaborate with authorizer or SELPA to collect/maintain

information required by IDEA and lists: age, grade, type of disability, ELL status, and number of
students receiving service, number of students receiving and types of test modifications and
exemptions; settings of service; suspension data, and reasons for charter exiting. All necessary
procedures and practices to ensure confidentiality and accurate/timely reporting will be the
responsibility of the Charter staff member.

Parent/Guardian Concerns and Complaints

The Charter School shall follow SELPA policies as they apply to all schools for responding to
parental concerns or complaints related to special education services. The Charter School shall
receive any concerns raised by parents/guardians regarding related services and rights. The
Charter School shallimmediately address any concerns raised by parents. The designated
representative shall investigate as necessary, respond to, and address the parent/guardian
concern or complaint. The Charter School, as the LEA, shall be ultimately responsible for
determining how to respond to parent concerns or complaints. The Charter School shall
cooperate in responding to any complaint to or investigation by the California Department of
Education, the United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights or any other
agency, andshallprovidetimely noticetothe otheruponreceiptofsuchacomplaintorrequest
for investigation.

191 Page650f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Procedural Safeguards

Charter School will provide Notice of Procedural Safeguards, details and assurances of parental
written consent and participation and right to initiate a due process hearing to challenge a
decision regarding the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of their child. Any
concerns or disagreements raised by parents will be acknowledged by the school within five
days followed by a resolution meeting.

Due Process Hearings

The Charter Schoolmayinitiate adue process hearing orrequestformediationwithrespectto
a student enrolled in the Charter School if it determines such action is legally necessary or
advisable. In the event that the parents/guardians file for a due process hearing, or request
mediation, the Charter School shall defend the case.

Inthe eventthat the Charter School determines that legal representation is needed, all costs
willbe borne by the Charter School and the Charter School shall have sole discretion to settle
any matterin mediation ordue process. The Charter School shall also have sole discretion to
file an appeal from a due process hearing or take other legal action involving any student
necessary to protect its rights.

SELPA Representation

The Charter School understands thatit shall representitselfatall SELPA meetings. A school
designeeshallparticipateinthe SELPA governance and SELPA-wide benefitsinaccordance with
the Local Plan and SELPA policies and procedures.

Funding
AsanLEA,the Charter School shallreceive its State and Federal special education funds directly

from the SELPA in accordance with the SELPA local allocation plan, and shall utilize those funds
to provide special educationinstruction and related services to eligible pupils. Asan LEA, the
Charter School shall be solely responsible for all special education costs that exceed State and
Federal special education revenue allocated to the Charter School.

192 Page 66 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 2: Measurable Student Outcomes

“The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. "Pupil outcomes, " for
purposes ofthis part, meansthe extentto which all pupils ofthe school demonstrate thatthey
have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school's educational
program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in pupil academic
achievement both schoolwide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter school, as that
termisdefinedin subparagraph (B) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section47607. The
pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of Section
52060, that apply forthe grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the
charter school. The school has clearly defined schoolwide outcome goals in compliance with
California Education Code sections 47605(b)(5)(B) and 52060(d).”

Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State Priorities

Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(b)(5)(B), the Charter School’'s
annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both schoolwide and for each subgroup of
pupils, which address and align with the Eight State Priorities as described in Education Code
Section 52060(d).

Watsonville Prep School’s schoolwide and subgroup outcome goals and performance targets
will be aligned to the state’s priorities that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of
the program operated, by WPS, and methods for measuring progress and the individual(s) with
primary responsibility for each, all aligned with Education Code Section 52060(d). The metrics
associated with these goals will help the Charter School to ensure that these specific subgroups
are making satisfactory progress, and are provided with necessary additional supports made
possible by additional funds from the Local Control Funding Formula.

The Charter School shall annually update and develop the LCAP in accordance with Education
Code Section 47606.5 and shall use the LCAP template adopted by the State Board of
Education. The Charter School reserves the right to establish additional and/or amend school-
specific goals and corresponding assessments throughout the duration of the charterthrough
the annual LCAP update. The Charter School shall submit the LCAP to the Districtand-County
Superintendent of Schools annually on or before July 1, as required by Education Code Section
47604.33.

The LCAP and any revisions necessary toimplementthe LCAP shallnotbe considered a material
revision to the charter, and shall be maintained by the Charter School atthe school site.

193 Page 67 of135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Outcomes Aligned to State Priorities

Theoutcomesforthe studentsof WPSthatwereoutlinedare aligned with state prioritiesand
goals. Thetable below describes the alignment and reorganizes the metrics around the state
goal they support.

State Priority #1. The degree towhichteachersare appropriately assigned (E.C. Section
44258.9)andfully credentialed, and every pupil has sufficientaccess to standards-aligned
instructional materials (E.C. Section 60119), and school facilities are maintained in good
repair (E.C. Section 17002(d))
ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE MEASURABLE Person(s)
ACHIEVE PRIORITY #1 | ANNUAL GOALS OUTCOMES AND Responsible
METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT
e WPS will An annual audit is e 100% Director of
maintain performedtoverify appropriated HR, Principal
appropriately appropriate credentialing and
assigned placement of from annual Operations
classified and classified and audit staff
certificated certificated
employeesin employees e 100% of staff
100% of receive
classrooms Ongoing supportis personalized
provided to professional
o WPS will certificated staffto development
develop and allow them to through coaching
utilizethe most move from an
up-to- date intern to a fully o WPS achieves
standards credentialed 80% retention of
aligned employee staff after two
instructional years
materials that An annualstaff
prepare survey is e 90% of faculty
students for implemented reportsthatthey
college and have the
career WPS staff completes necessary
allmandatory state resources to
Page 68 0f135

194




NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

e School facilities trainings succeed in the
are maintained e Operations staff classroom on
and in good conducts monthly annual staff
repair site walkthroughsto survey

ensure facilities are e 90% of

maintained and in community

good repair members agree
thatthe schoolis
clean and orderly
on community
survey

e 90% of school
and operational
leadersratethe
school condition
as acceptable on
the monthly
walkthrough

State Priority #2. Implementation of Common Core State Standards, includinghow EL
students will be enabled to gain academic content knowledge and English language
proficiency

ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE MEASURABLE PERSON
ACHIEVE PRIORITY #2 | ANNUAL GOALS OUTCOMES AND RESPONSIBLE
METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT
o AlIWPSmath o WPSdevelopsa e 75%0ofELsmake [Classroom
and language school calendar progress towards |teachers with
arts that allows for EL proficiencyas |support from
curriculum are weekly measured bythe | Principal and VP
aligned to professional CELDT/ELPAC |of Academics
CCSS development
e AIlWPS opportunities e Monthly, 100% of
curriculum will to address teachers will
be designed to implementation participate in
support ELs of the common professional
and other core standards development
subgroups with a focus on includingCCSS

195

Page 690f135




NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

EL students

Standards based
quizzes and
interim
assessmentsare
administeredat
allgradelevels.
Immediately
following, the
teacher and
coach will
conduct data
analysis to
identify strength
and nextsteps

Resources,
materials, and
software aligned
toCCSSarebe
provided
schoolwide to
enhancestudent
outcomes

All curriculum
maps have goals
and strategiesto
supportELs

Professional
development
includes
dedicated days
each year for
training on
implementing
CCSS and on
supporting ELs

implementation
through current
technology
School leadership
conducts yearly
audit of
curriculum maps
to ensure
alignmentto CCSS
and include
supports for ELs
and struggling
students

196

Page700f135




NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

and struggling
students

e Provide
educators on-
going coaching
that focuseson
CCSS practices

e Inorderto
enhance CCSS
learning, current
technology and
on-going training
and support will
be provided

e WPS provides
various
professional
opportunities for
teachers tolearn
ELD standards
and how to
integrate them
explicitly into
instruction

State Priority #3. Parental involvement, including efforts to seek parent input for making
decisions for schools, and how the school will promote parent participation

ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE MEASURABLE PERSON(S)
ACHIEVE PRIORITY #3 | ANNUAL GOALS OUTCOMES AND RESPONSIBLE
METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT
e WPS increase e Theschoolsite o Greaterthan75% Director of
parent promotesand of parents Community
involvement in encourages complete Qutreach, VP

197

Page710f135




NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024
school and parents to community survey of Culture,
solicits parent attend school- Principal
feedback based e 90% of parents
informational feel they have
e Parents meetings, ample
demonstrate councils, and opportunities to
high volunteer engage in
satisfaction activities volunteerismand
with the through community
school’s newsletters, meetings, as
program signage, direct measured by the
communication, annual parent
andsocialmedia survey
e Parents provide e 80% of parents
feedback “likely” or“highly
through an likely” to
annualsurvey recommend the
schooltoafriend

State Priority #4. Pupil achievement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Statewide assessments (SBAC, orany subsequentassessmentas certified by SBE)
B. The Academic Performance Index (API)

C Percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC/CSU
entrance requirements, or career technical education

D. Percentage of ELswhomake progresstoward Englishlanguage proficiency as
measured by the CELDT/ELPAC

E. EL reclassificationrate

F. Percentage of pupils who have passed an AP exam with a score of 3 or higher

G. Percentage of pupils who participate in and demonstrate college preparedness

pursuanttothe Early AssessmentProgram (E.C. Section99300 etseq.)orany subsequent
assessment of collegepreparedness

ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE | MEASURABLE PERSON(S)
ACHIEVE PRIORITY ANNUAL GOALS OUTCOMES AND RESPONSIBLE
#4 METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT
¢ Academic ¢ Standards o 90% ofELs Classroom

Page 720f1
198 age720f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

achievement based quizzes reclassified as teachers,
on the annual and interim English principal
SBAC testing assessments proficientwithin
consistently are analyzed to six years of
surpasses the determine original
CA state individual designation
average students

strengths and 75% of students
In ELA and next steps; in- are proficientor
mathematics, class above on
by fifth grade intervention CAASPP
and beyond, targets any and assessments by
75% of all students fifth grade
students will needing extra
show mastery support; 75% of all
of California additional subgroups score
Common after-school a proficient or
Core State intervention above on
Standards as may be utilized CAASPP
measured by based on data assessments by
a score of collection fifth grade
proficient or Specialized
advancedon intervention 75% of ELs
the SBAC groups are make annual

formed to progress
75% of target specific towards EL
students learning needs; proficiency as
meet annual CCSS- aligned measured by
growth goals curriculum and the CELDT
of one software are [ELPAC
performance provided to
level each these 90% of students
year on intervention feel safe at
ELPAC groups as school as

needed measured on
Studentsare Summer school the annual
redesignated is provided studentsurvey
as Fluent annually for
English struggling
Proficient students

Page730f135

199




NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024
within six e WPS provides a
years of broad courseof
entering WPS study for
students;

e Students students are
demonstrate provided with
college and enrichmentand
career field trip
readiness opportunities
through SBAC including but
scores not limited to

STEM, physical
education and
the arts

e Social and
emotional skills
are explicitly
taught during
weekly class
meetings; PBIS
model is
utilized to
promote
positive
behavior

State Priority #5. Pupilengagement, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates

B. Chronic absenteeism rates

C. Middle school dropout rates (EC Section 52052.1(a)(3))

D. High school dropoutrates

E. High school graduationrates

ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE | MEASURABLE PERSON(S)

ACHIEVE PRIORITY #5 | ANNUAL GOALS OUTCOMES AND RESPONSIBLE
METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT

o WPS students o WPS e 95%Average |Principal/Office
attend school implements an Daily manager
Page740f135

200




NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

regularly,
consistently
and on time

Attendance and
Truancy Policy
Parents are
informed of
chronic absence
and truancies
specifiedinthe
Attendance and
Truancy Policy
WPS provides
training to site
staff on the
Attendanceand
Truancy Policy

Attendance
(ADA)
Lessthan 3% of
WPS students
are tardy per
day

WPS maintains
an annual
Chronic
Absentee Rate
oflessthan 2%

State Priority #6. School climate, as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Pupil suspension rates

B. Pupil expulsion rates

C: Otherlocalmeasures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense

of safety and school connectedness

ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE | MEASURABLE PERSON(S)

ACHIEVE PRIORITY #6 | ANNUAL GOALS OUTCOMES AND RESPONSIBLE

METHODS OF
MEASUREMENT
e Students are e WPSengagesin o <1% Principal, Vice
collaborative extensive suspensions per| Principal of
and engaged community school year Operations and
citizens within building e <1%expulsions |Culture, Vice
their through whole- perschoolyear | Principal of
community school morning e 80% of Academics, Director
e Students messages and students would | of Community
consistently parent say other Outreach, Director
implement involvement students of Student Services,
strong SEL opportunities, consistently | Teachers, Small
skills and aswellasother demonstrate | Group Instructors,
representcore schoolevents ourcore values | SPED
valuesthrough e A social- on our annual |Paraprofessionals,
their actions emotional culturesurvey | Yard Dutystaff
curriculum s e 90% of

201

Page 750f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

taught during
school
community
meetings and
reinforced
throughoutthe
day by all staff.
Culture surveys
for students,
parents, and
staff are
administered
multiple times
per year

students would
say they are
satisfied with
WPS on our
culture survey

e 90% ofparents
say they are
satisfied with
WPS on our
culture survey

e >10% student
transfer rate
per year

State Priority #7. The extentto which pupils have access to,and are enrolledin, abroad

course of study, including programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated
students(classifiedasEL,FRPM-eligible,orfosteryouth; E.C.Section42238.02)and students
with exceptional needs.

“Broad course of study” includes the following, as applicable:

Grades 1-6:English,mathematics, socialsciences, science, visualand performingarts, health,
physical education, and other as prescribed by the governing board. (E.C. Section 51210)

Grades 7-12: English, social sciences, foreign language(s), physical education, science,
mathematics, visual and performing arts, applied arts, and career technical education. (E.C.

Section 51220(a)-(i))

ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE | MEASURABLE OUTCOMES | PERSON(S)
ACHIEVE PRIORITY #7 | ANNUAL GOALS AND METHODS OF RESPONSIBLE
MEASUREMENT
e WPSstudents, e WPS’s model e 100% of WPS Principal
including offers students studentsincluding
students from an all- students from all
allsubgroups, inclusive sub groups will
have accessto environment in have access to
all instructional all academic academic and
programs as and instructional
Page 76 0f135

202




NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

detailed in the instructional programs including
charter programs; this core subjects, PE,
includes push-in enrichments, and
service from electives as
special detailed in the
education staff charter
inclassroomsto
support both
students with
IEPs and at-risk
students
State Priority #8. Pupil outcomes, ifavailable, inthe subjectareas described above in #7, as
applicable.
ANNUAL GOALS TO | ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE | MEASURABLE OUTCOMES | PERSON(S)
ACHIEVE PRIORITY #8 | ANNUAL GOALS AND METHODS OF RESPONSIBLE
MEASUREMENT
o Students at e« WPS e 75%ofstudents | Teachers,
WPS will implements demonstrate Principal
become standards- annual growth as
proficient based measured bythe
readers and curriculum STARMathand
writers of the maps STARReading
English e WaPS
Language and implements o Byfifthgrade, 75%
will be regular ofallstudentsand
proficient formative and all subgroups (EL,
speakers and benchmark SED, Latinos,
communicators assessments African Americans,
of the English aligned to and SED) are
Language standards proficient or
o Students at e WPS advanced as
WPS will implements a measured by the
become robust English, math,
proficient in intervention and/or science
mathematical program portions of CAASPP
skills and including in- assessments
content class,
o Students at afterschool,and e Schoolleadership

203

Page 77 of135




NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024
WPS will summer school yearly audit of
become interventions curriculum maps
proficient in demonstrates that
scientific e Curriculum 100% of curriculum
thinking and maps are maps are aligned
concepts designed to to CCSS and have
e Students at support ELsand supports for ELs

WPS will struggling and students
become students requiring
proficient in intervention
social science e Curriculum
and history maps are
standards aligned to

assessments

based onCCSS

e Professional
development
and weekly
coaching and
data meetings
are
implemented to
analyze results
of and create
actionplansfor
benchmark
assessments
and to support
struggling
students and
subgroups

204 Page780f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element3: Methods by Which PupilProgress Toward Meeting
Outcomes Will Be Measured

“The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be measured. To
the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities shall be
consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability report card.”
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C).

While Navigator teachers have a clear scope and sequence of instruction, the nature of the
data-driven instruction model allows teachers to personalize student learning. Instruction,
intervention groupings, and spiral review of standards are adjusted daily based on student
achievement data. The data cycle of a daily check for understanding, weekly quiz and blended
data, a mid-year interim assessment, and an annual summative assessment provides the
educational leadership team with a variety ofinformation to informinstructional decisions.

Administration of State and National Tests

Student assessment is the cornerstone of Navigator’'s ability to guide students toward
proficiency and advanced levels of achievement. WPS will administer all components of state
and national tests for grades K-8, including SBAC, ELPAC (when applicable) and the California
Physical Fitness Test.

SBAC English, End of the year state Measures student absolute
mathematics mandated assessment | performance
on grade-level standards | and mastery of California
for Math and English State Standards
NWEA English language | Nationally-normed Allows the school to
MAP for arts, mathematics | assessment determine how much
Grades K-2 that compares a growth students have made

student’s performance
against the performance
of same-grade peers
nationally

over time and how that
growth compares to
studentsatsimilarschools
nationwide

205

Page790f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

ELPAC English learner Testadministered atthe | Measures students’
development beginning oftheyearto | masteryofthe English
students who have a language and
home language other | allows schools to monitor
than English students’
progress toward English
proficiency
STAR Reading | Reading, Nationally-normed test | Allows teacher to group
STAR Math mathematics that identifies students’ | students for literacy-based
readinglevelandLexile [ instruction and monitor
level as well as percentile | progress
and grade equivalency
for math
Interim English language | Internally-created Allows teachers to group
Assessments | arts, social studies, | assessments for English, | and reteach
Created by [ and science science, and social based on data and to
Navigator studies assess students’ mastery of
California
Common Core State
Standards;
usesquestionframesand
types similarto
the Smarter Balanced
Assessment to prepare
students for the SBAC
Weekly English language | Comprehension and Data drives instructionfor
Quizzes arts, mathematics | vocabulary quizzes the nextweek, highlights
basedonthetextsread [ areasforwholeclassre-
thatweekandthemath | teaching, and informs
standard of the week creation of groups for
additional support
Daily Exit English, 2-3shortquestions given | Teachers willuse this data
Tickets mathematics, at the end of every to pullgroups

science, social

lesson

for focus at the end of the

206

Page 800135




NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

studies day, or plan a
re-teach for the entire class
should that data

warrant it
Proof of Science, social Projects include essays, [ TeachersusePOP projects
Proficiency | studies speeches, video to measure students’
Projects (POP) productions, or mastery of the content;
demonstrations checkpointsalongtheway

allow for instructional shifts

California Science State assessment used to | Measures student mastery
Science Test measure state standards | of science based on the
(CAST) for science California Next Generation

Science Standards (NGSS) in
grades 5 and 8

California English, State assessment aligned | Helpsteachersidentify and

Alternative mathematics, with alternate addressgapsinknowledge

Assessment science achievement standards | orskills early so students

(CAA) can receive the support
they need

Students will also complete the California Mandated Fitness Test in their 5th and 8th grade
years.

Watsonville Prep is dedicated to continuous improvement and will annually reevaluate our
execution of our mission and vision with various stakeholders. Thus, an annual survey will be
sent home for parents to complete. Staff will complete this survey two times per year to give
feedback and suggestions to the school. Additionally, students will complete an annual survey
that includes questions regarding culture of their classrooms and the safety of the environment
and elicits suggestions for overall school improvement. Data from these key stakeholder
surveys will be used to inform improvement to WPS. Comprehensive summaries of all
qualitative and quantitative survey results will be provided to the board forits annual review.

207 Page 810135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Use and Reporting of Data

WPS will use a student information system in conjunction with the Charter School’s data
dashboard to warehouse and report student performance on the various assessments.
Currently Navigator Schools utilizes llluminate as the student information system.

Reports from assessments are made available to students, parents, and the Navigator School
Board as requested and will be accessible to parents daily through a live parent portal. Teachers
will update student data on an ongoing basis. Quarterly, parents will receive printed student
progress reports. Teachers will be provided with student data from the previous school year
and will input all current student data into llluminate on a weekly basis. Site leaders will also
use the llluminate database to course correct and develop professional development plans
based on local and state assessments. Additionally, WPS staff will present annual results and
metrics to the Navigator Schools board and the SCCBOERPVUED beard as requested.

Thisinformation, along with the results from state and federalassessments will be includedin
the School Accountability Report Card (SARC). Student achievement data will be disaggregated
annually to clearly identify the academic performance of students by subgroups (e.g., by
ethnicity, gender, English learners, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, and students
with disabilities.)

Once a week, WPS staff will meet during an early-release period to review weekly assessment
data. Itis atthese meetings that curriculum and instruction adjustments will be made by each
grade level team.

Authorizer Evaluation

WPS and the authorizer jointly develop an annual site visitation process and protocol in the
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) to enable the grantor to gatherinformation needed
to confirmthe Charter School’s performance and compliance with the terms of this charter.

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.3 WPS shall promptly respond to all reasonable
inquiries including, but notlimited to inquiries regarding its financial records from the Bistrict;
the County Office of Education; and the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. The SARC
will be posted annually as required by law. The Charter School affirms that, to the extent
practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities shall be consistent
with the way information is reported on a school accountability report card.

208 Page820f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 4: Governance Structure

“The governance structure ofthe charter school including, but notlimited to, the processto be
followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement.” Education Code Section
47605(b)(5)(D)

Nonprofit Public BenefitCorporation

Watsonville Prep School will be a directly funded independent charter school operated by
Navigator Schools, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, pursuant to California law.
While WPS intends to collaborate and work cooperatively with the CountyBistrict, WPS shall
operate as aseparate legal entity, independent ofthe CountyBistrict. Pursuantto California
Education Code Section 47604(c), the SCCBOE District shall not be liable for the debts and
obligations of WPS, operated by a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, or for claims
arisingfromthe performance of acts, errors, or omissions by WPS as long as the SCCBOE
Distriet-has complied with all oversight responsibilities required bylaw.

Please find the Navigator Schools Articles of Incorporation (Appendix N), Corporate Bylaws
(Appendix O), and Conflict of Interest Code (Appendix P)

Board of Directors
WPS is governed by Navigator Schools’ Board of Directors (“Board”) in accordance with its
adopted bylaws, which are consistent with the terms of this charter. Governance, policy-
making authority, and fiduciary responsibility for WPS will rest with the Navigator Schools
Board of Directors. The objectives of the Navigator Schools Board of Directors are to:

1. Promote the success of the charter schools it operates.

2. Ensure adherence to the mission and educational philosophy of Navigator

Schools.

The Board of Directors of Navigator Schools will be responsible for the oversight of Gilroy Prep
School, Hollister Prep School, Watsonville Prep School, and any later-approved charter schools
it operates. Parents from each charter school are encouraged to apply for a position on the
Navigator Schools Board and/or attend Navigator Schools Board meetings which will be held in
a convenient location for both charter schools.

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors will be the governing body of the Charter School, and
willconsistofnolessthanfive (6)andnomorethaneleven(11)Board members. Eachdirector
shall hold office, unless otherwise removed from office in accordance with the bylaws fortwo
(2) years and until a successor director has been appointed.

209 Page830f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Composition of Navigator Schools Board of Directors

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors strives to be representative of the community. Board
members serve voluntarily because they believe in the goals of Navigator Schools. Navigator
Schools will seek to ensure its Board members will represent a broad area of expertise and a
broad cross-section of the charter school’s communities and community-at-large, including
financial expertise, community and educational leadership. The Board shall include
representatives and members of the community, including one (1) parent representative from
Gilroy Prep School, and one (1) parent representative from Hollister Prep School (Foundational
Schools). The Board bylaws address future Board appointments and turnover. Navigator
Schools willalso look for people with backgroundsin real estate, law, educational pedagogy,
public accountancy, business, and philanthropy to play a role in governance.

The Board has created a Governance Committee to implement a process to nominate new

board members.
a. Each spring (or as needed due to unplanned vacancies), the Governance Committee
will identify existing vacancies, or vacancies that are bound to arise due to expiring
Board terms. Though the Governance Committee is responsible for the vetting of all
potential board candidates, any member of the Board may identify potentialmembers
and submit a resume for the candidate to the Governance Committee.
b. When a vacancy exists in either, or both, of the Parent Representative seats from the
Foundational Schools, the Governance Committee shall provide a notification to the
respective school site council who shall put forth up to five (5) qualified parent
candidates forthe Governance Committee to interview (during a public meeting).
c. The Governance Committee willreview resumes for, have conversations with, discuss
and rank all prospective candidates.
d. The Governance Committee willrecommend candidates to the Board and bring the
nomination to the Board for a vote at the next Board meeting.
e. The full Board will review the candidate's resume and vote to approve new members
by majority vote.
f. If the Board does not vote to approve a parent candidate recommended by the
Governance Committee (from a list put forth by the appropriate school-site council), the
Boardwillrequestthatanewlistof parents candidates be generated and provided to
the Board following the same process (the school site council will provide up to 5
candidates for the Governance Committee to interview and then the Governance
Committee will forward one or more candidates to the Board to choose from).
g. Newmembers will begin theirterm of office in July, oras needed whenthereisa
vacancy. Once members have been sworn in, the Navigator Schools Board of Directors
will partake in a mandatory board introductory training as well as the annual board
training. Newmemberswillbe presented withthe pasthistory ofthe board, by laws and
policies, as well as all full board and committee responsibilities.
h. New members will be elected to the Board when a previous member's term expires

210 Page 840f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

atan annual meeting occurring during the last quarter of the fiscal year. If vacancies
occurmid-yearorthe Boardwishestogrowinsize betweenannualmeetings, new
members may be added at any Board meeting held for this purpose.

2017-18 Board of Directors: (Biographies can be found in Appendix Q)

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors currently includes the following members:

JP Anderson, Gilroy Prep School parent, KeyPoint Credit Union

Nora Crivello, Hollister Prep School parent, WestPak, Inc.

John  Flaherty, Gilroy resident, former Chief of Staff, U.S. Department of Transportation
Alicia Gallegos-Fambrini, Innovate Public Schools Board member, former educator
John Glover, Alpha Public Schools

Joyce Montgomery, Summit Public Schools

Fiauu Ohmann, Pajaro Valley Chamber of Commerce and Agriculture

Caitrin Wright, Silicon Schools Fund

In accordance with Education Code Section 47604(b), the SCCBOE Bistriet may appoint a
representative to siton the Board of Directors. If the SCCBOE District chooses to do so, the
Charter School may appoint additional directors to ensure an odd number of Board
members.

Board Meetings and Responsibilities

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors meets regularly, at least six times per year, and in
accordance with the Brown Act. The Board of Directors is fully responsible for setting policy,
operation andfiscal affairs of Navigator Schools, including but not limited to the following:

o Ensure Watsonville Prep School adheres to the goals outlined in this charter, as well as
to state and federal guidelines and other Navigator policies;

o Holdthe Chief Executive Officer accountable for the academic and fiscal responsibility of
Watsonville Prep School;

o Provide supportto Navigator Schools for additional fundraising, marketing, and other
services as needsarise;

o Advocate on behalf of Navigator Schools, including working to establish partnerships
with community organizations, institutes of higher learning, non-profit foundations and
corporate entities that support education through noncommercial relationships;

o Hire, supervise, evaluate, discipline, and dismiss the CEO;

o Approve and monitor the implementation of the general policies of Navigator Schools;

o Approve and monitor Navigator Schools’ annual budget and budget revisions;

The Charter School has adopted a Conflict of Interest Code that complies with the Political
Reform Act and Corporations Code conflict of interestrules, and which shall be updated with
any charter school-specific conflict of interest laws or regulations.

211 Page850f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The Board may delegate the management of the corporation’s activities to any person(s),
management company, or committees provided that the activities and affairs of the
corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised underthe ultimate
direction of the Board.

The Charter School Board of Directors will attend an annual in-service for the purposes of
trainingindividualBoard members ontheirresponsibilities withtopics toinclude, atminimum,
conflicts of interest and the Brown Act.

Navigator Schools and WPS Leadership Responsibilities

The Navigator Schools team and WPS site leadership will be actively involved in the day-to-day
management of the Charter School’s operations. Their roles are enumerated in Element 5,
below.

Staff, Student, and Community Involvement and Governance

All stakeholders in the school community play a very active and important role in the
accomplishments of Watsonville Prep School. Cultivating and continuing a strong partnership
will ensure the success of all Navigator Schools. This collaboration greatly enriches both the
academic and social programs. Stakeholders will be involved in all levels of decision-making at
Watsonville Prep School andtheir participation will help to fulfillthe promise of awell-rounded
education for allstudents.

Staff, students, and community members are invited to attend board meetings, committee
meetings, school site meetings, and annual LCAP meetings. Meeting times and locations are
planned soitis convenientfor parents and community members to attend. Notification willbe
posted at the school site, through hard copy and electronic messages, and on the WPS website.
Staff, students, and families also participate in annual surveys to ensure school community
voice is included as decisions are made about Watsonville Prep School.

Governing Board

Parents and community members will be encouraged to apply to serve on the Navigator Board
of Directors. Furthermore, parents and community members willbe invited to serve oneach of
the school’'s Governing and Executive Committees, that could include but would not be limited
to: personnel, curriculum, budget, safety, academics, technology, arts, professional
development, and facilities.

212 Page 86 0f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Parents attend monthly School Site Council (SSC) and English Learner Advisory Committee
(ELAC) parent meetings where they elect their own officers and representatives.

School Site Council (SSC)

School Site Council’s role is to develop, review, update, recommend approval of the Single Plan
for Student Achievement (SPSA) to the Governing Board of Navigator Schools, and give regular
inputon Navigator Schools LCAP. Watsonville Prep SSC will have the responsibility for allocating
categorical block grant resources and setting the site-based practices and procedures to
achieve the school’s program goals, thus promoting the best educational program possible for
students.

Involvementin the School Site Council will provide for direct parentand teacher collaboration
in the ongoing process of reviewing and revising the school’s educational program. This will
enable Navigator to continue meeting the unique and changing needs of each Watsonville Prep
student.

Allmeetings will be open to the publicin accordance with the Brown Act, and all stakeholders
andinterested parties will be encouraged to contribute agendaitems for discussion. Meeting
schedules will be made available to the public and an agenda of each meeting will be posted
publicly (atthe schoolsiteand onthe school’swebsite)atleast24 hoursinadvancethereof. All
meetings will be held in accordance with the posted agenda and any items raised during any
“public comment” period will be added to a later agenda for official discussion. Minutes of
meetings will be posted on the school campus in the main office and on the website.

Selection Process of School Site Council Members
Members of the Watsonville Prep School Site Council shall serve two-year terms. The voting
members of the SSC shall include representatives from the school’s various constituencies and
will be comprised of:

o The principal

o Chairperson

o Three certificated representatives (to be elected by certificated staff)

o One classified representative (to be elected by classified staff)

o+ 5WPS parent members (to be elected by parents of WPS students)

213 Page 87 of135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

English Learner Advisory Committee

The English Learner Advisory Committee’s (ELAC) role is to advise the principal and SSC on
programs and services forEnglish Learners. The ELAC actsinanadvisory capacity and serves as
avoice forthe English learner community. Under CA laws, all schools with more than 21 ELs
must have an ELAC. Committee membership mustinclude parents of ELs, but may also include
other duly elected family and community members. The percentage of parents who are elected
must be equal to the percentage of ELs at the school. (Forexample, if 50% of students at the
school are ELs, atleast 50% of the ELAC must be parents.) The remaining percentage of the
committee can be comprised of the principal, community members, parent liaisons, and
teachers and other staff. However, only parents of ELs are empowered to elect additional
members to the ELAC.

The ELAC is required by law to be involved in the following tasks:

¢ Monitoring and evaluating the school’s EL program, including the review of the school’s
plan for Englishlearners

o Advising on the school’'s SPSA

¢ Analyzing and reviewing the school’s needs assessment

¢ Analyzingandreviewingthe school’sannuallanguage censusreport(R-30LC Report)

o Ensuringthatother parents are aware of the importance of regular school attendance

o Developing the Title | Parent Involvement Policy and School-Parent Compact, which will
describe how parents, school staff, and students will share responsibility forimproved
studentacademic achievementand proficiency on the Common Core State Standards

Watsonville Prep will strive to have the ELAC and SSC overlap to the extent possible under the
law. The two committees will convene to ensure alignment on the SPSA and LCAP Plan, as they
both play development and monitoring roles.

Other leadership and patrticipation opportunities

Watsonville Prep School staff, parents, and other community members will be invited to
participate in the parent club, attend monthly bilingual parent coffees, attend parent/teacher
conferences, volunteer in the classroom, and attend morning openers. Navigator Schools will
honor, encourage, and respect the voice of stakeholders to ensure WPS continuously serves the
needs of thecommunity.

214 Page 88 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 5: Employee Qualifications

“The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school.” Education
Code Section47605(b)(5)(E)

General Qualifications

Allemployees of Watsonville Prep School shall be considered employees of Navigator Schools.
Navigator recruits professional, effective, qualified, and mission-driven personnel to serve in
administrative, instructional support, and non-instructional support capacities. Navigator
recognizes the importance of employing a diverse staff who value teamwork, collaborative
decision-making, technology and innovation, and who are passionate about eliminating the
achievementgap. Navigator staffalso manifestadeep commitmenttotheirown professional
growth and excellence.

Navigator works to foster an environment where all employees play an important role in
creating a positive school culture and effective learning atmosphere to provide for optimal
student success. Because academic coaching is so critical in a teacher’s development,
Navigator has taken great pains to develop a culture of improvement that begins as early as the
firstinterview. During the hiring process, new instructors are given the opportunity toteach a
lesson to students and immediately receive feedback from one of the site’s academic coaches.

Navigator Schools will not discriminate or harass based on race, color, religion, sex, gender
identity, pregnancy, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, mental disability, medical
condition, sexual orientation, genetic information, or any other characteristic protected by
stateorfederallaw. The Charter SchoolisaSchoolof Choiceandnoemployeewillbeforcedto
work for the Charter School. Navigator Schools will comply with all State and federal laws
concerning the maintenance and disclosure of employee records.

Navigator shall comply with Education Code Sections 44237 and 45125.1 regarding the
requirement to fingerprint and obtain background clearance of employees and contractors.
Prior to employment, each employee must furnish an up-to-date Tuberculosis risk assessment
result and documents establishing legal employment status.

Navigator Schools shall comply with applicable provisions of the Every Student Succeeds Act as
they apply to certificated and paraprofessional employees of charter schools. Navigator
Schools will employ or retain teachers who hold a Commission for Teacher Credentialing
certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public
schools would be required to hold.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the organization’s success in meeting its
instructional, school culture, operations, fundraising, external relations and financial

215 Page 890135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

management goals. S/he will work closely with the Chief Academic Officer to support school
leaders and manage the progress of the Charter School’s academic program while also being
the primary liaison between the Charter School and its external audiences including the Board,
funders, state chartering authorities, the surrounding community, and other partners.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS

The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:

Masters or Doctorate degree or equivalent work experience preferred

A proven track record as an effective leader

Experienced manager ofmanagers

Effective in recruiting and retaining high-quality talent

Experience in strategic planning and prioritizing

Has a passion for closing the achievement gap for all students

Can articulate an understanding of high-quality instructional practice

Has the ability to foster relationships with a diverse array of constituents

Has proven effectiveness in the ability to build and maintain high-functioning systems

across a complex, multi-site organization

o Excellent interpersonal skills, including the ability to develop and keep the trust and
confidence of others; the ability to successfully work with different personality styles

o Excellent communication skills, including speaking, listening and writing

o Character strengths of zest, grit, self-control, optimism, social intelligence, gratitude,
and curiosity

o Valuesrooted in high expectations, going above and beyond, and deep humility

o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Chief Academic Officer (CAO)

The Chief Academic Officer is charged with driving exceptional academic achievement and
positive school culture. The CAOQ is accountable for the Charter School and school leader
performance, including but not limited to teaching and learning across the organization. S/he
operationalizes the academic vision for the organization and leads a high-performing
instructional team including Charter School and Support Office leaders. The CAO will develop
teachers andleaders utilizing the NS coaching systemin service to achieving goals.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:
o Masters or Doctorate degree or equivalent work experience preferred
o A minimum of seven years of leadership experience with success in many of the
following areas: leading a high performing/high poverty school, successfully leading and
supporting school leaders, implementing and supporting rigorous curricula, supporting
Special Education, effectively managing data and assessment

216 Page900f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

o Stronginstructional acumen and the ability to use data to evaluate strategic options and
generate recommendations

o Significant experience in high poverty communities with a passion for empowering
students and families

o Commitment to building relationships and trust with leaders, teachers, students,
parents, and community

o Atrack record of leading, motivating, and developing diverse and high-performing
teams

o Beliefin and insistence on a strengths-based approach, recognizing that the only way to
grow is to build from people's strengths

o Character strengths of zest, grit, self-control, optimism, social intelligence, gratitude,
and curiosity

o Valuesrooted in high expectations, going above and beyond, and deep humility

o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Principal

The Charter School Principal is a critical member of the Navigator Schools seniorleadership
team charged with driving exceptional academic achievement and positive school culture. A
Navigator Principal is accountable for the Charter School and school leader performance,
including but not limited to teaching and learning on the school site and across the
organization. S/he collaborates with other Charter School and organizational leadership to
operationalize the academic vision for the organization and lead a high-performing instructional
team. The Principal develops teachers and leaders utilizing the Navigator Schools’ coaching
system in service to achieving goals. A Navigator Schools Principal is committed to and works to
create charter schools that are equitable, diverse, and create a sense of belonging.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:
o BA or equivalent plus a minimum of three years of progressively responsible
administrative experience and/ortraining
o Experience working in a charter management organization or other public school
environment preferred
o Ability to perform each essential duty satisfactorily, reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential responsibilities
o Excellent interpersonal skills, including the ability to develop and keep the trust and
confidence of others, and the ability to successfully work with different personality
styles
o Ability to work effectively and positively with diverse parent communities
o Excellent communication skills, including speaking, listening and writing
o Knowledge of school finance, budgeting, and business operations, and the ability to
manage a school budget in a responsible manner

217 Page910f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

o Ability to lead and positively navigate conversations and meetings thatinclude divergent
opinions and conflict

o Must be able to work effectively under pressure with frequent interruptions

¢ Must be able to understand and carry out oral and written instructions

o Ability to establish and maintain cooperative and effective relationships with those
contacted in the course of work

o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Vice Principal of Academics and Intervention (A&l)

The Vice Principal of Academics and Intervention directly supports teachers in their
developmentinto outstanding educators, redefines Navigator’s data and assessment practices,
and creates and implements effective intervention programs to ensure all students have the
skills necessary to succeed in college and beyond. The Vice Principal of A&l is an essential
member of the Charter School administrative team.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:
¢ Bachelor's degree and valid California Teaching Credential required
o Minimum 3 years of teaching experience required and a minimum of five years teaching
experience preferred
o Previous experience working with a diverse student population preferred
o Ability to provide rigorous weekly coaching to approximately 1/3 of school teaching staff
o Ability to successfully plan and ensure the implementation of all student intervention
endeavors, both during and outside of school hours
o Ability to lead and positively navigate conversations and meetings thatinclude divergent
opinions and conflict
o Must be able to work effectively under pressure with frequent interruptions
¢ Must be able to understand and carry out oral and written instructions
o Ability to establish and maintain cooperative and effective relationships with those
contacted in the course of work
o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Vice Principal of Culture and Operations (C&O)

The Vice Principal of Culture and Operations supports teachers in their development into
outstanding educators, leads all school site operations, acts as a liaison with Parent Club, and
leads school culture initiatives to ensure all students have the skills necessary to succeed in
college and beyond. The Vice Principal of C&O is an essential member of the Charter School
administrative team.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:

218 Page920f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Bachelor’s degree required

Previous experience working with a diverse student population preferred

Ability to provide rigorous weekly coaching to approximately 1/3 of school teaching staff

Ability to lead and navigate positively conversations and meetings that include divergent

opinions and conflict

o Must be able to work effectively under pressure with frequent interruptions

¢ Mustbe able to understand and carry out oral and written instructions

o Ability to establish and maintain cooperative and effective relationships with those
contacted in the course of work

o Ability to successfully lead school scheduling and operations to ensure school runs safely
and effectively, including, but not limited to: scheduling, purchasing, safety, fundraising,
compliance, field trips, and facilities

¢ Must be able to maximize program utility and student/staff satisfaction

o Must be able to lead school culture initiatives to promote a positive and inclusive
learning environment that upholds high expectations for all students and staff members

o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Teachers

Teachers at Navigator Schools are specifically trained in the Navigator instructional model, and
they are coached weekly to ensure that the daily instruction delivered is consistently top-tier.
Teachers use technology on a daily basis in Navigator’s cutting edge blended educational
program, build and promote critical thinking skills, and transform children into 21st century
citizens. Anotherkey attribute of Navigatorteacheris that s/he maintains strongrelationships
with students in order to deliver an exceptional educational experience to every child that
walks through ourdoors.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:
o K-8:Bachelor'sdegree and atleastone valid California Teaching Credential (required)
o 1-3yearsofteachingexperience working with a diverse student population (preferred)
o Abilitytodeliverrigorousinstruction using a variety of methods, including direct whole
group, small group circles, 1-on-1 tutoring, and blended technology tools
o Abilitytodevelop andimplement curriculumin alignment with Common Core standards
¢+ Ability to manage student behavior according to common Navigator practices
o Mustmaintain high expectations for selfand students atall times and committo 100%
student engagement
¢ Bilingual Spanish aplus

Resource Specialist

The Navigator Resource Specialist, as the special education case manager, is driven to positively
impactthe lives oftraditionally underserved students. The Resource Specialistensures top-

219 Page930f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

quality special education services are provided to students with all types of learning differences
by directly delivering services to students, making sure thatappropriate contractors are apart
of the IEP team, ensuring compliance with requisite laws, and developing and growing
Navigator’s full inclusion Special Education model through ongoing professional development.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS

The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:
o Bachelor'sDegreeandValid CaliforniaResource Specialist Special Education Credential

Required

Graduate degree aplus

1-4 years of teaching experience working with a diverse student population preferred

Excellent communication skills (both oral and written)

Ability to use discretion and good judgment when dealing with confidential and

sensitive information

» Knowledgeable of federal, state, and local special education laws and regulations

¢+ Ability to provide direct instruction at least 70% of the time and services for students
whose needs are identified inawritten IEP and who are assigned to general education
classrooms for a majority of the day

o Must collaborate in the development and implementation of behavior management
techniques as appropriate

o Observes student behavior in the general education classrooms and consults with
teachers regarding thesebehaviors

o Communicates regularly with students and parents

o Mustwork closely with school psychologist, speech and language pathologist, and other
providers of related services for special needs students to ensure optimal services as
provided and that compliance-related issues are addressed in atimely manner

o Ability to coordinate IEP processes and timelines

o Facilitates necessary accommodations for standardized testing, in accordance with the
goals and objectives in each student’s IEP

o Must maintain detailed student special education records and electronic databasesfor
special education and all related paperwork

o Must effectively communicate and work cooperatively with all other Charter School
personnel, parents, and other agencies for the best interests of each student

o Must maintain high expectations for self and students at all times

o Builds positive culture among school site special education staff that aligns with
Navigator-wide norms

o Performs other duties as assigned

o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

220 Page940f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Small Group Instructor (SGI)

The Small Group Instructor is responsible for working with teachers and students to help
facilitate learning in the classroom. An SGI works with small groups of students during centers
time in both Humanities and STEM classrooms. The SGI supports students in practicing
standards and concepts thathave already been introduced by the classroom teacher.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:

» Associate’s Degree and High School Diploma or GED required, Bachelor’'s degree
preferred
Commitment to student success and learning
Knowledge of commonly used concepts, practices, and procedures within the field
Reliance on instructions and pre-established guidelines to perform job functions
Desire to improve professionally; open to receiving coaching and feedback
Flexible to changing work environment; always presents with a positive attitude
Ability to read and write simple correspondence
Possesses effective communicationskills
Ability to calculate figures and amounts such as discounts, interest, commissions,
proportions, percentages
o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Paraprofessional

The Student Services Paraprofessional is responsible for working with teachers and students to
help facilitate Special Education learning in the classroom. Navigator paraprofessionals are part
of a full inclusion support system that provides mostly push-in support to students in the
classrooms, allowing students with IEPs to spend maximum time in the classroom with student
peers.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS
The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:

s Associate’s degree and High School Diploma or GED required, Bachelor's Degree
Preferred
Commitment to student success and learning
Knowledge of commonly used concepts, practices, and procedures within the field
Reliance on instructions and pre-established guidelines to perform job functions
Desire to improve professionally; open to receiving coaching and feedback
Flexible to changing work environment; always presents with a positive attitude
Ability to read and write simple correspondence
Possesses effective communicationskills

271 Page950f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

o Ability to calculate figures and amounts such as discounts, interest, commissions,
proportions, percentages
o Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Teacher-in-Training

The teacher-in-training role is one that supports beginning educators in learning “The Navigator
Way” while receiving coaching and valuable practical classroom experience. While employed at
a Navigator charter school as a teacher-in-training, individuals are also exposed to theoretical
expertise through enrollment in a credentialing program. Teachers-in-training transition to
classroom teachers after a year or less, and will be prepared to deliver an exceptional
educational experience to every child that walks through our doors.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS

The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:

Bachelor’s Degree and proof of enrollmentina Valid CA Teaching Credential Program
Experience working with a diverse student body preferred

Commitment to student success and learning

Knowledge of commonly used concepts, practices, and procedures within the field
Reliance on instructions and pre-established guidelines to perform job functions
Desire to improve professionally, open to receiving coaching and feedback
Flexible to changing work environment; always presents with a positive attitude
Ability to read and write simple correspondence

Possesses effective communicationskills

Bilingual in Spanish a plus

Non-Instructional

All non-instructional staff such as the office manager, assistant office manager, clerical,
custodial, and lunch duty personnel must possess experience and expertise appropriate for
their position.

CANDIDATE REQUIREMENTS

The ideal candidate will possess the following qualifications:

Experience in working in charter schools, education, and/or non-profits preferred
Knowledge of commonly used concepts, practices, and procedures within the field
Reliance on instructions and pre-established guidelines to perform job functions
Desire to improve professionally, open to receiving coaching and feedback
Flexible to changing work environment; always presents with a positive attitude
Ability to read and write simple correspondence

Possesses effective communicationskills

Bilingual in Spanish a plus

277 Page 96 0f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Evaluation

The Navigator Schools Performance Evaluation Systemis one thatis focused on supporting
professional growth and continuous improvement. The organization has general templates that
vary depending on the specific role.

Supervisors meet with direct reports two (2) times per year for performance evaluation
conferences. The resultis a final end-of-year document that chronicles growth that occurred
during the year and action steps for the following year.

Salaries and Benefits

Employee salaries are determined on an individual basis by the Principal, Chief Academic
Officer, and Chief Executive Officer based on education, experience, knowledge and skills. The
leadership team, in conjunction with the board of directors, reviews the salaries and benefits
annually to ensure they are fair, reasonable, and within Navigator’s budget. Navigator salaries
are comparable to local school districts.

(Appendix R: Navigator Schools Employee Handbook)
(Appendix S: Sample Benefits Record)

273 Page 97 of135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 6: Health and Safety Procedures

“The proceduresthatthe charterschoolwillfollowto ensure the health and safety of pupilsand
staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of the charter school
furnish the charter school with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237.”
Education Code Section47605(b)(5)(F)

Navigator Schools has adopted and implemented a comprehensive set of health, safety, and
risk management policies and procedures forits charter schools. These policies and procedures
are reviewed and updated on a regular basis, in consultation with outside experts and staff.
They will be on file at WPS, and available for review upon request. These policies are
incorporated into the Charter School’s studentand staffhandbooks and shall be reviewed on
an ongoing basis by the Principal and Board of Directors. Navigator Schools will comply with all
State and federallaws concerning the maintenance and disclosure of employee records.

The following is a summary of the health and safety policies of Navigator Schools:

Procedures for Background Checks

Employees and contractors of Navigator Schools are required to submit to a criminal
background check and to furnish a criminal record summary as required by Education Code
Sections44237and45125.1. Applicants foremploymentmustsubmittwo sets offingerprints
to the California Department of Justice for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary.
The Charter School shallnothire any person, in eithera certificated or classified position, who
has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as otherwise provided by law, pursuant
to Education Code Sections 44830.1 and 45122.1. The Director of Human Resources and the
CEO monitor compliance with this policy and report to the Board of Directors on a regular basis.
The Board Chair and Director of Human Resources will monitor the fingerprinting and
background clearance of the CEQO. Volunteers who volunteer outside of the direct supervision of
a credentialed employee shall be fingerprinted and receive background clearance prior to
volunteering with the direct supervision of a credentialed employee.

Role of Staff as Mandated Child Abuse Reporters

All employees are mandated child abuse reporters and will follow all applicable reporting laws,
the same policies and procedures used by the District. The Charter School shall provide
mandated reporter training to all employees annually in accordance with Education Code
Section 44691.

Tuberculosis Risk Assessment and Examination
Employees and volunteers who have frequent or prolonged contact with students, willbe
assessed and examined (if necessary) for tuberculosis prior to commencing employmentand

274 Page980f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

working with students, and foremployees atleastonce eachfouryearsthereafter, asrequired
by Education Code Section 49406.

Immunizations
All enrolled students and staff who receive classroom-based instruction will be required to
provide records documenting immunizations as is required at public schools pursuant to Health
and Safety Code Sections 120325-120375, and Title 17, California Code of Regulations Sections
6000-6075. Allrising 7th grade students must be immunized with a pertussis (whooping cough)
vaccine booster.

Medication in School

WPS willadhere to Education Code Section 49423 regarding administration of medicationin
school. The Charter School willadhere to Education Code Section 49414 regarding epinephrine
auto-injectors and training for staff members.

Vision, Hearing, and Scoliosis
Students are screenedforvision, hearing, and scoliosis. WPS willadhere to Education Code
Section49450 et seq. as applicable to the grade levels served by Navigator Schools.

Diabetes
WPS will provide aninformation sheetregarding Type 2 diabetes to the parent or guardian of
incoming 7th grade students, pursuantto Education Code Section49452.7. Theinformation
sheet includes, but shall not be limited to, all of the following:

o Adescription of Type 2 diabetes

o Adescription of the risk factors and warning signs associated with Type 2 diabetes

¢ Arecommendation that students displaying or possibly suffering from risk factors or

warning signs associated with Type 2 diabetes should be screened for Type 2 diabetes
o Adescription of treatments and prevention methods of Type 2 diabetes
o Adescription of the different types of diabetes screening tests available

WPS will contract, as necessary to meetthe health and safety policies and procedures, licensed
medical staff that are appropriately trained to provide training, administer medications,
conduct vision and hearing screenings, scoliosis screenings, or provide direction on diabetes
protocols.

Suicide Prevention Policy
Inaccordance with Education Code Section 215, Navigator Schools has adopted a policy on
student suicide prevention, which shall be applicable to Watsonville Prep School. (Appendix T)

Feminine Hygiene Products
The Charter School will stock atleast 50% of its restrooms with feminine hygiene products, and

275 Page990f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

shall not charge students for these products, pursuant to Education Code Section 35292.6.

Blood Borne Pathogens

WPS will meet state and federal standards for dealing with blood borne pathogens and other
potentially infectious materials in the workplace. The Board shall establish a written infectious
control plan designed to protect employees and students from possible infection due to contact
with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and hepatitis Bvirus
(HBV).

Wheneverexposedtobloodorotherbodilyfluidsthroughinjury oraccident, staffand students
shall follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. Staff is trained on proper
procedures & protocolsannually.

Drug-Free, Alcohol-Free, and Smoke-Free Environment
WPS will function as a drug-free, alcohol-free, and smoke-free environment.

Facility Safety

WPS will comply with Education Code 47610 by utilizing facilities that are either compliant with
the Field Act or facilities that are compliant with the California Building Standards Code,
including provisions for seismic safety. WPS agrees to test sprinkler systems, fire extinguishers,
andfire alarms annually atits facilities to ensure they are maintained in an operable condition
atall times. Navigator Schools will receive a Certificate of Occupancy before start of school and
follow all state guidelines for fire inspections.

Fire, Earthquake, and Evacuation Drills

The Charter School shall conduct fire drills as required under Education Code Section 32001.
Students and staff participate in earthquake drills every other month, fire drills monthly, and at
least one lockdown drill annually.

Emergency Preparedness

Navigator Schools has developed an Emergency Preparedness Plan specifically to address the
needs of the facility in conjunction with law enforcement and the Fire Marshal. The plan
includes, but is not limited to the following responses: fire, flood, earthquake, lockdown,
hostile intruder situations, and other natural disasters. If assuming a facility that was previously
used as aschool site, any existing emergency preparedness plan for the school site shall be
used as a starting basis for updating the handbook for the Charter School.

All staff are trained on emergency preparedness procedures, including appropriate “first
responder” training or its equivalent. Please see Appendix U for the Emergency Preparedness
Plan.

226 Page1000f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

CPR Training
Key Instructional staff and school leadership are CPR and first aid certified.

Comprehensive Anti-Discrimination and Harassment Policies and Procedures
Navigator Schools is committed to providing a school free from discrimination and sexual
harassment, as well as any harassment based upon as the actual or perceived characteristics of
race, religion, creed, color, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, national
origin, ancestry, ethnic group identification, genetic information, age, medical condition,
marital status, sexual orientation, sex and pregnancy, physical or mental disability, childbirth or
related medical conditions, military and veteran status, denial of family and medical care leave,
or on the basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more of these
actual or perceived characteristics, or any other basis protected by federal, state, local law,
ordinance or regulation. Navigator Schools has developed a comprehensive policy to
immediately remediate any concerns about discrimination or harassment at the Charter School
(including employee to employee, employee to student, and student to employee misconduct).
Misconductofthis natureis very serious and willbe addressedinaccordance withthe Charter
School’s anti-discrimination and harassment policies.

Integrated Complaint andInvestigation
Navigator Schools has adopted a comprehensive complaint and investigation procedure to
centralize all complaints and concerns regarding its charter schools.

227 Page1010f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 7: Means to Achieve Racial/Ethnic Balance Reflective of the
District

“The means by which the charter school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among its
pupilsthatis reflective ofthe general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction ofthe
school district to which the charter petition is submitted.” Education Code Section
47605(b)(5)(G).

Navigator Schools has adopted and implemented a policy, including an outreach program,
which focuses on achieving and maintaining a racial and ethnic balance among its students that
is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the Pajaro
Valley Unified School District. WPS will institute a recruitment program designed to educate
and inform potential students and theirfamilies aboutits instructional program and to ensure
all Pajaro Valley residents are given an equal opportunity to enroll their children at WPS.

Outreach and Recruitment Plan
Our outreach and recruitment plan includes, but is not necessarily limited to:

o Promotional materials, such as brochures, flyers, advertisements, and social media
campaigns in both English and Spanish.

o Visitsto Head Start and First Five preschools, religious organizations, and non-profit
community organizations to share information about Watsonville Prep School and
Navigator Schools.

o Information booths and information distribution at community events, local businesses,
social service agencies, faith-based organizations, farmer’'s markets, grocery stores, and
shopping centers to promote WPS and to meet prospective students and their families.

o Distribution of promotional material to local businesses, libraries, and community
resource centers throughoutWatsonville.

o Openhouses and schooltour visits for prospective students and theirfamilies tolearn
more aboutthe Charter School, Navigator Schools’ mission,and the WPS model.

Targeted Community

While WPS will focus its recruitment efforts on the English Learner and socio-economically
disadvantaged populations, WPS remains committed to serving any child who wishes to attend
the Charter School. Ongoing community outreach in English and Spanish will promote WPS as
an educational alternative for any interested families. Outreach efforts highlight Navigator’s
commitment to equity in education to ensure families of students with special needs
understand Navigator's model ofinclusion and dedication to providing all students with a high
quality educational experience. See Appendix V for outreach plan.

278 Page1020f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Achieving Racial & Ethnic Balance
WPS will document the efforts made to achieve racial and ethnic balance and theresults
achieved, as well as an accurate accounting of the ethnic and racial balance of the students

enrolled. Navigator Schools leadership will evaluate this data annually and revise the outreach
efforts as necessary.

229 Page1030f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 8: Admission Requirements

“Admission policies andprocedures, consistentwith [Education Code Section 47605]subdivision
(d).” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H).

Legal Assurances

WPS shall be non-sectarian in its programs, admission policies, and all other operations, and
will not charge tuition or discriminate against any pupil on the basis of the characteristics
outlined in Education Code Section 220.

WPS shalladmitallgrade-level eligible pupils who wish to attend the Charter School, uptothe
capacity of WPS, inaccordance with Education Code Section47605(d)(2)(A). WPSis a school of
choice and, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(f), no student is required to
attend WPS. Admission is not determined based on the place of residence of the pupil or of
his/her parent or guardian within the state of California; however, in the event of a public
random drawing, admission preference is granted to residents of Pajaro Valley Unified School
District. Notestorassessmentwill be administered to determine acceptance orenrolimentin
WPS. WPS will comply with all laws establishing minimum and maximum age for public school
attendance in charter schools. Proof of age must be presented at the time of enrollment as
describedin Education Code Section48002. In accordance with Education Code Sections 49011
and 47605(d)(2)(B)(iv), admission preferences shall not require mandatory parental volunteer
hours as a criterion for admission or continued enroliment.

Asapubliccharterschoolinthe state of California, we mustcomply with the state laws
governing admissions of charterschools. Therefore:

WPS is committed to actively recruiting families and students dedicated to carrying forth the
mission and vision of Navigator Schools.

WPS welcomes all applications and will not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed
in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender identity, gender
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other
characteristics thatis contained in the definition of hate crimes setforthin Section 422.55 of
the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned
characteristics) orincome in its admissions policy and procedures.

WPS will comply with and enforce all state laws and regulations governing charter schools and
admissions to these public institutions.

Open Enroliment and Timeline

Open enroliment at WPS will starts the first day of school each year and run through March 31.

230 Page1040f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

During this defined period all applications received are eligible to enter the WPS lottery.
Following the open enroliment period each year, applications shall be counted to determine
whetheranygradelevelhasreceived more applicationsthanavailability. Inthe eventthatthis
happens, the Charter School will hold a public random drawing (or “lottery”) to determine
admission for the impacted grade level, with the exception of existing students, who are
guaranteed admission in the following school year.

Admission preferencesinthe case ofapublicrandomdrawing shallbe givento studentsinthe
following order:
1. Siblings of currentstudents
2. Childrenofteachers, staff,andfoundersidentifiedinthe original charter (nottoexceed
10% of the total enrollment)
3. Residents of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District who reside within the city
boundaries of Watsonville
4. Other residents of the Pajaro Valley Unified School District
5. All other applicants

The Charter School intends to apply for the federally-funded Public Charter School Grant
Program (PCSGP) and reserves the right to modify the lottery preferences if needed to comply
with the terms and conditions of the PCSGP. The Charter School and the CountyBistrict
agree to adhere to the requirements related to admission preferences as set forth in
Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B)(i)-(iv)

Assurances

o The WPS lottery will be public, transparent, and fair.

o WPS lottery will be held in April and the event will be held in a public space large
enough to accommodate all interested parties.
An uninterested party will be charged with conducting the process.
Parents do not have to be present to participate.
Parents will be notified within 72 hours of selection and will have one week to respond.
Preferences shall not result in limiting enroliment access for pupils with disabilities,
academically low-achieving pupils, English learners, neglected or delinquent pupils,
homeless pupils, or pupils who are economically disadvantaged, as determined by
eligibility for any free or reduced-price meal program, foster youth, or pupils based on
nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation.

The Board of Directors will take all necessary efforts to ensure lottery procedures are fairly
executed. Lottery spaces are pulled in order of grade level by the designated lottery official
(appointed by the Chief Executive Officer). Separate lotteries shall be conducted for each grade
in which there are fewer vacancies than pupils interested in attending. All lotteries shall take
place on the same day in a single location. Lotteries will be conducted in ascending order

231 Page1050f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

beginningwiththe lowestapplicable gradelevel. Thereis noweighted priority assignedtothe
preference categories; rather, within each grade level, students will be drawn from pools
beginning with all applicants who qualify for the first preference category, and shall continue
with that preference category until all vacancies within that grade level have been filled. If
there are more students in a preference category than there are spaces available, arandom
drawing will be held from within that preference category untilallavailable spaces arefilled. If
all students from the preference category have been selected and there are remaining spaces
availableatthatgradelevel, studentsfromthe second preference categorywillbedrawninthe
lottery, and the drawing shall continue until all spaces are filled and preference categories are
exhausted in the order provided above.

Atthe conclusion ofthe publicrandomdrawing, all studentswhowere notgranted admission
dueto capacity shall be giventhe optionto puttheirname on awaitlistaccording to theirdraw
inthe publicrandom drawing. This wait list will allow students the option of enrolimentin the
caseofanopeningduringthe currentschoolyear. Inno circumstance willawaitlistcarry over
to the following school year.

Families who submitted completed application forms prior to the deadline will be notified in
writing regarding the date, time, and location of the public lottery, and rules for thelottery
process atleasttwo weeks priortothe publicrandom drawing date. Familiesdonothavetobe
present to participate in the lottery.

Summary of the lottery application process
1. Open enroliment period
a. Recruitment/informational meetings
b. Completion ofapplication
2. Random public drawing (April)
a. Single lottery
b. Notification of families
3. Enrollment paperwork (within two weeks of lottery or notification of admission)
a. Acceptance letter signed and mailed to school by parent/guardian
b. Completion of all necessary paperwork, including but not limited to:
Enrollment form
Proof of minimum age requirements
Proof ofimmunization
Home language survey
Emergency medical information
Release of records
Kinder orientation (for newly admitted kindergarten students)

232 Page1060f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Minimum Age for Enrollment
In accordance with Education Code Section 48000, a pupil shall be admitted to kindergarten at

the beginning of a school year, or as space allows, at any later time in the school year if the
child will have his or her fifth birthday on or before September 1 of that school year.

233 Page107 of135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 9: Annual Financial Audit

“The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which shall
employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit exceptions and
deficiencies shall be resolvedto the satisfaction of the chartering authority.” Education Code
Section 47605(b)(5)(1)

An annual independent financial audit of the books and records of Navigator Schools will be
conducted as required by Education Code Sections47605(b)(5)(I)and47605(m). The books and
records of Navigator Schools are kept in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and as required by applicable law, the audit will employ generally accepted
accounting procedures. The audit will be conducted in accordance with applicable provisions
within the California Code of Regulations governing audits of charter schools as published in the
State Controller’s K-12 Audit Guide.

Navigator Schools’ Board of Directors shall hire an independent auditor who has, at a minimum,
a CPA and educational institution audit experience, and is approved by the State Controller on
its publishedlistas an educational audit provider. This auditor shall complete an annual audit
of Navigator’s financial books and records. The audit shall verify the accuracy of Navigator’s
financial statements (including balance sheets, income statements, and cash flow statements),
attendance and enrollment reporting practices, internal controls, and other documents or
systemsrequired bylaw. Tothe extentrequired underapplicable federallaw, the audit scope
will be expanded to include items and processes specified in applicable Office of Management
and Budget Circulars.

The annual auditshallbe completed and forwarded to P/ S5, the County Superintendent of
Schools, the State Controller, and the CDE by the 15th of December each year. At the
conclusion of the audit, any exceptions or deficiencies will be reviewed by the Board of
Directors with the Chief Executive Officer, the Finance Committee, Principal, and, if applicable,
Navigator Schools’ back office service provider. The Board will then report to the
CountyBistrict on how the exceptions and deficiencies have been or will be resolved to the
satisfaction of the CountyPVUED along with an anticipated timeline for the same. Audit
appeals orrequests for summary review shall be submitted to the Education Audit Appeals
Panel (EAAP) in accordance with applicable law.

The independentfiscal audit of Navigator Schools is public record and provided to the public
upon request.

234 Page 108 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 10: Suspension and Expulsion Procedures

“The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled from the charter school for
disciplinary reasons or otherwise involuntarily removed from the charter school for any reason.
These procedures, at a minimum, shall include an explanation of how the charter school will
comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process
requirements that is consistent with all of the following:

(i) Forsuspensions offewerthan 10days, provide oral orwritten notice ofthe charges against
the pupil and, ifthe pupil denies the charges, an explanation ofthe evidence that supportsthe
charges and an opportunity for the pupil to present his or her side of the story.

(i) For suspensions of 10 days or more and all other expulsions for disciplinary reasons, both of
the following:

(I) Provide timely, written notice ofthe charges againstthe pupil and an explanation of
the pupil’s basicrights.

(ll) Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of

days at which the pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and
confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the pupil has the right to bring
legal counsel or an advocate.
(i) Contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by the charter school
forany reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been provided written notice of
intentto remove the pupil no less than five school days before the effective date of the action.
The written notice shall be in the native language ofthe pupil orthe pupil’s parent or guardian
or, if the pupil is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the pupil’s educational
rights holder, and shall inform him or her of the right to initiate the procedures specified in
clause (ii) before the effective date ofthe action. Ifthe pupil’s parent, guardian, oreducational
rights holder initiates the procedures specified in clause (ii), the pupil shall remain enrolled and
shall not be removed until the charter issues a final decision. For purposes of this clause,
“involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not
include suspensions specified in clauses (i) and (ii).” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(J)

The Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote learning
and protect the safety and well-being of all students at Watsonville Prep School. In creating
this policy, Navigator Schools has reviewed Education Code Section 48900 et seq. which
describes the non-charter schools’ list of offenses and procedures to establish its list of offenses
and procedures for suspensions and expulsions. The language that follows closely mirrors the
language of Education Code Section 48900 et seq. Navigator Schools is committed to annual
review of policies and procedures surrounding suspensions and expulsions and, as necessary,
modification ofthelists of offensesforwhich students are subjectto suspensionorexpulsion.

When the policy is violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular

235 Page1090f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

classroom instruction. This policy shall serve as WPS’ policy and procedures for student
suspension and expulsion and it may be amended from time to time without the need to
amend the charter so long as the amendments comport with the legal requirements. WPS staff
shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently among all students. This
policy, andits procedures, shall be distributed as part of the studenthandbook and will clearly
describe discipline expectations.

Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal
punishmentincludes the willful infliction of or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on
a student. For purposes of the policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use
of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other
persons or to prevent damage to school property.

The WPS administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians are notifiedin
writing upon enrollment of all discipline policies and procedures. The notice shall state that this
policy and procedures are available on request in the school office.

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities
unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.

Astudentidentified as anindividual with disabilities orforwhom Watsonville Prep School has
a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Improvement Act of 2004 (“IDEA”) or who is qualified for services under Section 504
ofthe Rehabilitation Actof 1973 (“Section 504”)is subjectto the same grounds for suspension
and expulsion and is accorded the same due process procedures applicable to general
education students except when federal and state law mandates additional or different
procedures. Watsonville Prep School follows all applicable federal and state laws including but
notlimitedtothe CaliforniaEducation Code, whenimposinganyformofdiscipline onastudent
identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom WPS has a basis of knowledge of a
suspecteddisability orwhois otherwise qualified for such services or protectionsinaccording
due process to such students.

No student shall be involuntarily removed by the Charter School for any reason unless the
parent or guardian of the student has been provided written notice of intent to remove the
student nolessthanfive schooldays before the effective date of the action. The written notice
shall be in the native language of the student or the student’s parent or guardian or, if the
studentis afoster child or youth orahomeless child or youth, the student’s educational rights
holder, and shall inform him or her of the right to initiate the procedures specified below for
suspensions, before the effective date of the action. If the student’s parent, guardian, or
educational rights holder initiates the procedures specified below for suspensions, the student
shallremainenrolledandshallnotberemoveduntilthe Charter Schoolissuesafinaldecision.

236 Page1100f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

As used herein, “involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or
terminated, butdoes notinclude suspensions or expulsions pursuant to the suspension and
expulsion procedures describedbelow.

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students
A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is related to
school activity or school attendance occurring at any time including but not limited to:

a) While on schoolgrounds

b) While going to or coming from school

c) During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus

d) During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity

Enumerated Offenses
1. Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students may be suspended for any of the following
acts when it is determined the pupil:

a) Caused, attemptedto cause, orthreatened to cause physical injury to another person.

b) Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.

¢) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of
any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058,
alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.

d) Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined
in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage orintoxicant of any
kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid
substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, alcoholic
beverage orintoxicant.

e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, which
includes, butis not limited to, electronic files and databases.

g) Stole orattempted to steal school property or private property, which includes, butis
not limited to, electronic files and databases.

h) Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products,
including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes,
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibitthe
use of his or her own prescription products by a pupil.

i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.

i) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug
paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.

k) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property, which includes, butis
not limited to, electronic files and databases.

l) Possessedanimitationfirearm,i.e.,areplicaofafirearmthatis sosubstantially similar
in physical propertiestoan existingfirearmastolead areasonable personto conclude

237 Page1110f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

that the replica is a firearm.

m) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections
261, 266¢, 286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal
Code Section243.4.

n) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness
in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from
being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.

0) Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug
Soma.

p) Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision,
“hazing” means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational
institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or
disgraceresultingin physical ormental harmto aformer, current, or prospective pupil.
For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include athletic events or school-
sanctioned events.

q) Made terroristic threats against school officials and/or school property, which includes,
but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this section,
“terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person
who willfully threatens to commit a crime which result in death, great bodily injury to
another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with
the specificintentthat the statementis to be taken as athreat, evenifthereis nointent
of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in whichiitis
made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the
personthreatened, agravity of purpose and animmediate prospect of execution ofthe
threat, and thereby causes that personreasonably to be in sustained fear for his orher
own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school
property, which includes, but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the
personal property of the person threatened or his or herimmediate family.

r) Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. Forthe
purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by
a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or
pervasivetohave anegativeimpactupontheindividual’s academic performance orto
create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section shall
apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

s) Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate
violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This section
shall apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

t) Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated school personnel or volunteers and/or
a student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably
expected effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder and

Page1120f1
238 age of135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

invadingtherights ofeitherschool personnelorvolunteersand/orstudents by creating
anintimidating or hostile educational environment. This section shallapplyto pupilsin
any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Engagedinanactofbullying,including, butnotlimitedto, bullyingcommitted bymeans
of an electronicact.

1) “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct,
includingcommunications made inwriting orby means ofan electronicact, and
including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which
would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which
are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably
predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

Placing areasonable student (defined as a student, including, butis not
limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care,
skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a
person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of
harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.

Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental
effect on his or her physical or mental health.

Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with
his or her academic performance.

Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with
his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities,
or privileges provided by the Charter School.

“Electronic Act” means the creation or transmission originated on or off the
school site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a
telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device,
computer, or pager, ofacommunication, including, but notlimited to, any of the
following:

A message, text, sound, video, orimage.
A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:

(@) Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an
Internet Web site created for the purpose of having one or more
of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.

(b) Creatinga credibleimpersonation of another actual pupil for the
purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in
subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to
knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the
purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would
reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was
or is the pupil who was impersonated.

(c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of

239 Page1130f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means
a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or
attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the
false profile.

ii.  Anactof cyber sexual bullying.

(@) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” means the
dissemination of, orthe solicitation orincitementto disseminate,
aphotograph orothervisual recording by a pupil to another pupil
or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or
can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects
described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A
photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall
include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit
photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor
is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other
electronic act.

(b) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” does not
include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious
literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that
involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.

3) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not
constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis thatithas been transmitted on
the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

v) Apupil who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or
attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subjectto suspension,
but not expulsion, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to
have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the
victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline
pursuant to subdivision(1)(a)-(b).

w) Possessed, sold, orotherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession ofany
object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item
from a certificated schoolemployee, withthe Principal or designee’s concurrence.

2. Non-Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students must be suspended and recommended
for expulsion for any of the following acts when it is determined the pupil:

a) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous
object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the studenthad
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee,
with the Principal or designee’s concurrence.

3. Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students may be recommended forexpulsionforany of

240 Page1100f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

the following acts when it is determined the pupil:

a) Caused, attemptedto cause, orthreatened to cause physical injury to another person.

b) Willfully used force of violence upon the person, or another, except self-defense.

¢) Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of
any controlled substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058,
alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind.

d) Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined
in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage orintoxicant of any
kind, and then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid
substance or material and represented same as controlled substance, alcoholic
beverage orintoxicant.

e) Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

f) Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property, which
includes, butis not limited to, electronic files and databases.

g) Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property, which includes, butis
not limited to, electronic files and databases.

h) Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products,
including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes,
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel. This section does not prohibitthe
use of his or her own prescription products by a pupil.

i) Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.

j) Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug
paraphernalia, as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.

k) Knowingly received stolen school property or private property which includes, but is not
limited to, electronic files and databases.

l) Possessedanimitationfirearm,i.e.:areplicaofafirearmthatis sosubstantially similar
in physical propertiesto an existingfirearmastolead areasonable persontoconclude
that the replica is a firearm.

m) Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections
261, 266¢, 286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal
Code Section243.4.

n) Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness
in a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from
being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness.

0) Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug
Soma.

p) Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision,
“hazing” means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational
institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or
disgraceresultingin physical ormentalharmto aformer, current, or prospective pupil.

241 Page1110f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include athletic events or school-
sanctioned events

q) Made terroristic threats against school officials and/or school property, which includes,
but is not limited to, electronic files and databases. For purposes of this section,
“terroristicthreat” shallinclude any statementwhetherwritten or oral, by a personwho
willfully threatens to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to
another person, or property damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with
the specificintentthat the statementis to be taken as athreat, evenifthereis nointent
ofactually carryingitout, which, onitsfaceand underthe circumstancesinwhichitwas
made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the
personthreatened, agravity of purpose and animmediate prospectofexecution ofthe
threat, and thereby causes that personreasonably to be in sustained fear for his orher
own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school
property which includes, but is not limited to, electronic files and databases, or the
personal property of the person threatened or his or herimmediate family.

r) Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. Forthe
purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by
a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or
pervasive tohave anegativeimpactupontheindividual’s academic performance orto
create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section shall
apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

s) Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause or participated in an act of hate
violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This section
shall apply to pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

t) Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated school personnel or volunteers and/or
a student or group of students to the extent of having the actual and reasonably
expected effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder and
invading the rights of either school personnel or volunteers and/or student(s) by
creatinganintimidating orhostile educational environment. This sectionshallapplyto
pupils in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

u) Engagedinanactofbullying,including, butnotlimitedto, bullyingcommitted by means
of an electronicact.

1) “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct,
includingcommunications made inwriting orby means ofan electronicact, and
including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which
would be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which
are directed toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably
predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

v. Placingareasonable student(defined as a student, including, butis not
limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care,
skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a

242 Page1120f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of
harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.

vi.  Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental
effect on his or her physical or mental health.

vii. ~ Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with
his or her academic performance.
vii. ~ Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with

his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities,
or privileges provided by the Charter School.

2) “Electronic Act” means the creation or transmission originated on or off the
schoolsite, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a
telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device,
computer, or pager, ofacommunication, including, but notlimited to, any of the
following:

i. A message, text, sound, video, orimage.
ii. Apostonasocial network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:

(a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an
Internet Web site created for the purpose of having one or more
of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.

(b) Creatinga credibleimpersonation of another actual pupil for the
purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in
subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation” means to
knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the
purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would
reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was
or is the pupil who was impersonated.

(c) Creating afalse profile for the purpose of having one or more of
the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means
a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or
attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who created the
false profile.

ii.  Anactof cyber sexual bullying.

(@) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” means the
dissemination of, orthe solicitation orincitementto disseminate,
aphotograph orothervisual recording by a pupil to another pupil
or to school personnel by means of an electronic act that has or
can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the effects
described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A
photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall
include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit
photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor

243 Page1130f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

is identifiable from the photograph, visual recording, or other
electronic act.

(b) For purposes of this clause, “cyber sexual bullying” does not
include a depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious
literary, artistic, educational, political, or scientific value or that
involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities.

3) Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not
constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis thatithas been transmitted on
the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

v) Apupil who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or
attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subjectto suspension,
but not expulsion, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to
have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the
victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline
pursuant to subdivision(3)(a)-(b).

w) Possessed, sold, orotherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession ofany
object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item
from a certificated schoolemployee, withthe Principal or designee’s concurrence.

4. Non-Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students mustbe recommended for expulsion for
any of the following acts when it is determined pursuant to the procedures below that the
pupil:

a) Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous
object unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the studenthad
obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee,
with the Principal or designee’s concurrence.

If it is determined by the Administrative Panel and/or Board of Directors that a student has
brought a firearm or destructive device, as defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United
States Code, on to campus or to have possessed a firearm or dangerous device on campus, the
student shall be expelled for one year, pursuant to the Federal Gun Free Schools Act of 1994. In
such instances, the pupil shall be provided due process rights of notice and a hearing as
required in this policy.

Theterm “firearm” means (A) any weapon (including a startergun) which willoris designed to
ormay readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (B) the frame or
receiverofany suchweapon;(C)anyfirearmmufflerorfirearmsilencer; or(D)anydestructive
device. Such term does notinclude an antique firearm.

The term “destructive device” means (A) any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, including but
not limited to: (i) bomb, (ii) grenade, (iii) rocket having a propellant charge of more than four

244 Page1140f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

ounces, (iv) missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce,
(v) mine, or (vi) device similar to any of the devices described in the preceding clauses.

Suspension Procedure
Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:

1. Conference

For suspensions of fewer than 10 days, Charter School will provide written notice of the charges
against the student. If the student denies the charges, Charter School will provide explanation
ofthe evidence that supports the charges, and an opportunity for the student to present his or
her side of the story.

For suspensions of 10 days or more, Charter School will provide timely, written notice of the
charges against the student and an explanation of the student's basic rights. Within 30 days, the
school will also hold a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer, at which the student has a fair
opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses, to confront and cross-examine
adverse witnesses, and at which the student has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate.

Atthe conference, the pupil shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the
evidenceagainsthimorherandshallbe giventhe opportunity topresenthisorherversionand
evidenceinhisorherdefense,inaccordance with Education Code Section47605(b)(5)(J)(i). This
conference shall be held within two (2) school days, unless the pupil waives this right or is
physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or
hospitalization. No penalties may be imposed on a pupil for failure of the pupil’s parent or
guardian to attend a conference with Charter School officials. Reinstatement of the suspended
pupil shall not be contingent upon attendance by the pupil’s parent or guardian at the
conference.

2. Notice to Parents/Guardians

Atthetime ofthe suspension,anadministratorordesignee shallmake areasonable effortto
contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is suspended, the
parent/guardian shallbe notified in writing ofthe suspension and the date of return following
suspension. Thisnotice shall statethe specificoffense committed by the student. Inaddition,
the notice may also state the date and time when the studentmay returnto school. If Charter
School officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinentto the
suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without
delay.

3. Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion
Suspensions, when not including a recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5)
consecutive school days per suspension. Upon a recommendation of expulsion by the Principal

245 Page1150f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

or designee, the pupil and the pupil’s parent/guardian or representative will be invited to a
conference to determine if the suspension for the pupil should be extended pending an
expulsion hearing. In such instances when the Charter School has determined a suspension
period shallbe extended, suchextension shallbe made only afteraconferenceis held withthe
pupil or the pupil’s parents.

This determination will be made by the Principal or designee upon either of the following: 1)
the pupil’s presence will be disruptive to the education process; or 2) the pupil poses a threat
or danger to others. Upon either determination, the pupil’s suspension will be extended
pending the results of an expulsion hearing.

Authority to Expel

Asrequired by Education Code Section47605(b)(5)(J)(ii), students recommendedforexpulsion
are entitled to a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer to determine whether the student
shouldbe expelled. The procedures hereinprovide forsuchahearingandthe notice of said
hearing, as required by law.

A student may be expelled by the neutral and impartial Navigator Schools Board of Directors
following a hearing before it or by the Board upon the recommendation of a neutral and
impartial Administrative Panel, to be assigned by the Board as needed. The Administrative
Panel will consist of at least three (3) members who are certificated and neither a teacher of
the pupil or a Board member. Each entity shall be presided over by a designated neutral hearing
chairperson. The Administrative Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have
committed an expellable offense, and the Board of Directors shall make the final
determination.

Expulsion Procedures

Charter School will provide timely, written notice of the charges against the student and an
explanation of the student's basic rights. Within 30 days, the school will hold a hearing
adjudicated by a neutral officer, at which the student has a fair opportunity to present
testimony, evidence, and witnesses, to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at
which the student has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate.

Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine whether the
student should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing shall be held within
thirty (30) school days afterthe Principal or designee determinesthatthe pupilhas committed
an expellable offense.

In the event an Administrative Panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the
Board for a final decision whether to expel. The hearing shall be held in closed session
(complying with all pupil confidentiality rules under FERPA) unless the pupil makes a written

246 Page1160f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

request for a public hearing in open session three (3) days prior to the date of the scheduled
hearing.

At least ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing, written notice of the hearing
shallbe forwarded tothe studentandthe student’s parent/guardian. Upon mailing the notice,
it shall be deemed served upon the pupil. The notice shall include:
¢ The date and place of the expulsion hearing;
o A statement of specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion
is based;
e Acopy of Charter School’s disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation;
¢ Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information
aboutthe student’s status atthe Charter School to any other school district or schoolin
which the student seeks enroliment;
e The opportunity for the student and/or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in
person orto employ and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor;
¢ Therightto inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing;
e The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing;
e The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and
documentary evidence on the student’s behalf including witnesses.

Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses
Navigator Schools may, upon afinding of good cause, determine thatthe disclosure of either
the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would
subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this
determination, the testimony of the withess may be presented at the hearing in the form of
sworn declarations that shall be examined only by Watsonville Prep School, Navigator Schools
Board of Directors, orthe hearing officer. Copies ofthese sworndeclarations, editedtodelete
the name and identity of the witness, will be made available to the pupil.

The complainingwitnessinany sexual assaultorbattery case mustbe provided with a copy of
the applicable disciplinary rules and advised of his /her right to (a)receive five (5) days’ notice of
his/her scheduled testimony, (b) have up totwo (2) adult support persons of his/her choosing
present in the hearing at the time he/she testifies, which may include a parent, guardian, or
legal counsel, and (c) elect to have the hearing closed while testifying.

WPS mustalso provide the victim aroom separate from the hearing room for the complaining
witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony.

Atthediscretionofthe entity conducting the hearing, the complaining witness shallbe allowed
periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which he or she may leave the
hearing room.

247 Page117 of135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the hearing
room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.

The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also limittime for taking the testimony of the
complainingwitnesstothe hours he/sheis normallyin school, ifthereis nogood cause totake
the testimony during other hours.

Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the
hearingis confidential. Nothinginthe law precludes the entity presiding overthe hearing from
removingasupportpersonwhomthe presiding entityfindsisdisruptingthe hearing. The entity
conducting the hearing may permit any one of the support persons for the complaining witness
to accompany him or her to the witness stand.

If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, WPS must present evidence the witness’
presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to the Charter School. The entity
presidingoverthe hearing shallpermitthe withessto stayunlessitisestablishedthatthereisa
substantial risk the testimony of the complaining witness would be influenced by the support
person, in which case the presiding official shall admonish the support person or persons not to
prompt, sway, orinfluence thewitnessinanyway. Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer
from exercising his or her discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom he or she
believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness.

The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the
complaining witness and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom during
that testimony.

Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in
publicatthe requestofthe pupilbeingexpelled, the complaining witness shall have therightto
have his/her testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would
threaten serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there are no alternative
procedures to avoid the threatened harm. The alternative procedures may include videotaped
depositions or contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing
room by means of closed-circuit television.

Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is presumed
inadmissible and shallnotbe heard absentadeterminationbythe personentity heard. Before
such a determination regarding extraordinary circumstances can be made, the witness shall be
provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition to the introduction of the evidence.
Inthe hearing onthe admissibility ofthe evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to
be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or other support person. Reputation or opinion
evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any

248 Page1180f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

purpose.

Involuntary Student Disenroliment, Dismissal, or Transfer
Aclearstatementthatnostudentwillbeinvoluntarily disenrolled, expelled ordismissed by the
charter school for any reason unless the parent or guardian has been provided written notice of
intent to remove the student at least five school days before the effective date. The written
notice must be in the student’s native language and inform him or her of the right to initiate
hearing procedures. The notice will be provided to the parent via email, certified or registered
mail or hand delivered. The notice Includes an assurance that, if the student's parent or
guardian initiates the hearing procedures, the student will remain enrolled until the charter
school issues a final decision.

Record of Hearing

A record of the hearing will be made and may be maintained by any means, including electronic
recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the
proceedings can bemade.

Presentation of the Evidence

While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be admitted
and used as proofonly ifitis the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons canrelyin the
conduct of serious affairs. Arecommendation by the Administrative Panel to expel must be
supported by substantial evidence the student committed an expellable offense. Findings of
fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is admissible,
no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay. Sworn declarations may be admitted as
testimony from witnesses of whom the Board or Administrative Panel determines that
disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable
risk of physical or psychological harm.

If, due to a written request by the expelled pupil, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and
the charge is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual
battery as defined in Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right
to have his or her testimony heard in a session closed to the public.

The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a
written recommendation to the Board who will make a final determination regarding the
expulsion. Thefinal decision by the Board shallbe made withinten (10) school days following
the conclusion of the hearing. The decision of the Board is final.

If the Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the pupil shall immediately be
returned to his/her educational program.

249 Page1190f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Written Notice to Expel

The Principal or designee following a decision of the Board to expel will send written notice of
the decision to expel, including the Board’s adopted findings of fact, to the student or
parent/guardian. This notice shallalsoinclude the following: (a) notice of the specific offense
committed by the student; and (b) notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to
informany new districtin which the student seeks to enroll of the student’s status with WPS.

The Principal or designee will send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to the
authorizer. This notice shallinclude the following: (a) the student’s name; and (b) the specific
expellable offense committed by the student.

Disciplinary Records
Watsonville Prep School will maintain records of all student suspensions and expulsions at the
Charter School. Such records will be made available to the authorizer upon request.

No Right to Appeal
Thepupilwillhave norightofappealfromexpulsionfromWPS asthe Board’s decisiontoexpel
will be final.

Expelled Pupils/Alternative Education

Parents/guardians of pupils who are expelled will be responsible for seeking alternative
education programs including, but not limited to, programs within the county or their school
districtortheir school district of residence. Watsonville Prep School shall work cooperatively
with parents/guardians as requested by parents/guardians or by the school district of residence
to assist with locating alternative placements during expulsion.

Rehabilitation Plans

Students who are expelled from WPS will be given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as
developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is not
limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission. The
rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from the date of expulsion
when the pupil may reapply to the WPS for readmission.

Readmission

Thedecisiontoreadmitapupiloradmita previously expelled pupilfromanotherschooldistrict
or charter school shall be in the sole discretion of the Board following a meeting with the
Principal or designee and the pupil and parent/guardian or representative to determine
whether the pupil has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine whether
the pupil poses athreatto others or will be disruptive tothe school environment. The Principal
ordesignee will make arecommendation to the Board following the meeting regarding his or
her determination. The Board shall then make a final decision regarding readmission during the

250 Page1200f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

closed session of a public meeting, reporting out any action taken during closed session
consistentwith the requirements of the Brown Act. The pupil’s readmissionis also contingent
upon WPS'’s capacity at the time the student seeks readmission.

Special Procedures for the Consideration of Suspension and Expulsion of Students with
Disabilities

1. Notification of SELPA

WPS willimmediately notify the SELPA and coordinate with the procedures in this policy with
the SELPA ofthe discipline of any student with a disability or studentwho WPS orthe SELPA
would be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability.

2. Services During Suspension

Students suspended for more than ten (10) school days in a school year will continue to receive
services so as to enable the student to continue to participate in the general education
curriculum, althoughinanothersetting (which could constitute achange of placementandthe
student’s IEP would reflect this change), and to progress toward meeting the goals set outin
the child’s IEP/504 Plan; and receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment, and
behavioral intervention services and modifications, that are designed to address the behavior
violation so that it does not recur. These services may be provided in an interim alternative
educational setting.

3. Procedural Safeguards/Manifestation Determination
Within ten (10) school days of arecommendation for expulsion or any decision to change the
placementofa child with adisability because of a violation of acode of studentconduct, WPS,
the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team will review all relevantinformationin
the student’s file, including the child’s IEP/504 Plan, and teacher observations, and any relevant
information provided by the parents to determine:
e Iftheconductinquestionwascausedby, orhadadirectand substantial relationshipto
the child’s disability; or
¢ Iftheconductinquestionwas the directresultofthe local educationalagency’s failure
to implement the IEP/504 Plan.

If WPS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine that either of the
above is applicable for the child, the conduct will be determined to be a manifestation of the
child’s disability.

IfWPS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team make the determination that
the conduct was a manifestation of the child’s disability, the IEP/504 Team will:
e Conduct a functional behavioral assessment and implement a behavioral intervention
plan for such child, provided that WPS had not conducted such assessment prior to such

251 Page1210f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

determination before the behavior that resulted in a change in placement;

e Ifabehavioral intervention plan has been developed, review the behavioral intervention
plan if the child already has such a behavioral intervention plan, and modify it, as
necessary, to address the behavior; and

¢ Returnthechildtothe placementfromwhichthe child was removed, unlessthe parent
and WPS agree to change of placement as part of the modification of the behavioral
intervention plan.

If WPS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine the behavior was not
amanifestation ofthe student’s disability and the conductin question was nota direct result of
the failure to implement the IEP/504 Plan, then WPS may apply the relevant disciplinary
procedures to children with disabilities in the same manner and for the same duration as the
procedures would be applied to students without disabilities.

4. Due Process Appeals

The parentofachildwithadisability who disagrees with any decisionregarding placement, or
the manifestation determination, or WPS believes that maintaining the current placement of
the child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others, may request an
expedited administrative hearing through the Special Education Unit of the Office of
Administrative Hearings or by utilizing the dispute provisions of the 504 Policy and Procedures.

When an appeal relating to the placement of the student or the manifestation determination
has been requested by either the parent or WPS, the student will remain in the interim
alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officerin accordance with
stateandfederallaw, including20U.S.C. Section 1415(k), until the expiration of the forty-five
(45) day time period provided for in an interim alternative educational setting, unless the
parent and WPS agree otherwise.

In accordance with 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(3), if a parent/guardian disagrees with any
decision regarding placement, or the manifestation determination, or if the Charter School
believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely to resultin
injury tothe child orto others, the parent/guardian or Charter School may requesta hearing.

In such an appeal, a hearing officer may: (1) return a child with a disability to the placement
from which the child was removed; or (2) order a change in placement of a child with a
disability to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for not more than 45 school
days if the hearing officer determines that maintaining the current placement of such child is
substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others.

5. Special Circumstances
WPS personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when

259 Page1220f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

determining whetherto orderachange in placement for a child with a disability who violates a
code of studentconduct.

The Principal or designee may remove a studentto an interim alternative educational setting
for not more than forty-five (45) school days without a regard to whether the behavior is
determined to be a manifestation of the student’s disability in cases where the student:
e Carries or possesses a weapon, as defined in 18 U.S.C. Section 930, to or at school, on
school premises, or to or at a school function;
e Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled
substance, while at school, on school premises, or ata school function; or
¢ Hasinflicted serious bodily injury, as defined by 20 U.S.C. Section 1415(k)(7)(D), upon a
person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function.

6. Interim Alternative Educational Setting
The student’s interim alternative educational setting will be determined by the student’s
IEP/504 Team.

7. Procedures for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Education Services

Astudentwho has notbeenidentified to be eligible for special education and related services
and who has violated a code of student conduct may assert the procedural safeguards if the
Charter School had knowledge that the student was disabled before the behavior occurred.
Knowledge on the part of the Charter School includes:

The parent/guardian has expressed concern in writing, or orally, to supervisory or
administrative personnel of the Charter School that the child is in need of special education and
related services.

The parent/guardian has requested a special education evaluation of the child.

The studentisinthe process of being assessed for special education.

The student has a section 504 plan.

The teacher of the student, or other personnel of the LEA, expressed specific concerns about a
pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child to the director of special education of the
Charter School or to other supervisory personnel of the Charter School.

The Charter School shall notbe deemed to have knowledge that the studenthad a disability if
the parent/guardian has not allowed an evaluation, refused services, or if the student has been
evaluated and determined to not be eligible.

253 Page 123 0f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 11: Retirement Systems

“The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by the State
Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement System or federal social
security.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K)

Certificated employees at WPS shall participate in the State Teachers’ Retirement System
(STRS) and all other employees not eligible for STRS shall participate in the federal social
security system. Employees accumulate service credityearsinthe same mannerasall other
members of STRS, and contribute atthe rate established by STRS. Employees are offered a
benefits package that is competitive with that of local school districts. Non-certificated
employees participate in federal Social Security. Additionally, Navigator Schools offers a403(b)
optionto allemployees. Navigator Schools informs all applicants for eligible positions within
the organization of the retirement system options for employees. Navigator Schools’ business
office is responsible for ensuring all required deductions and contributions are made.

Navigator Schools retains the option forits Board of Directors to electto participate inanother
retirement system or reciprocal system in the future, should it find that participation enables
Navigator Schools to attract and retain a high-quality staff.

254 Page1240f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 12: Public School Attendance Alternatives

“The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school district who
choose notto attend charter schools.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(L)

No student may be required to attend Watsonville Prep School. Students who reside within the
District who choose not to attend WPS may attend school within the District according to
District policy or at another school district or school within the District through the District’s
intra-and inter-district transfer policies. Parents and guardians of each student enrolled in WPS
will be informed on admissions forms that students have no right to admission in a particular
school of a local education agency as a consequence of enrollmentin WPS, except to the extent
that such a right is extended by the local education agency.

255 Page1250f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 13: Employee Return Rights

“The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the employment of the school
district to work in a charter school, and any rights of return to the school district after
employment at a charter school.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M)

Nopublicschooldistrictemployeeisrequired towork at Navigator Schools. Employees ofthe
District cCourtywho choose to leave the employment of the District o Couriyto work at Navigator
Schools have no automatic rights of return to the District or County after employment by
Navigator Schools unless specifically granted by the District or Courly through a leave of
absenceorotheragreement. Navigator Schools employees shall have any right upon leaving
the District or County to work at Navigator Schools that the District or County may specify,
any rights of return to employment in a school district after employment at Navigator
Schools that the District or County may specify, and any other rights upon leaving
employment to work at Navigator Schools that the District or County determines to be reasonable
and not in conflict with any law.

Sick or vacation leave or years of service credit at the District or County or any other school
district will not be transferred to Navigator. Employment by Navigator Schools provides
no rights of employment at any other entity, including any rights in the case of closure of
WPS.

256 Page 126 0f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 14: Dispute Resolution Process

“The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the charter to
resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(N)

The Charter School recognizes that it cannot bind the Disirict County to a dispute resolution
procedure to which the Bistrict County does not agree. The following policy is intended as a
starting point for a discussion of dispute resolution procedures. The Charter School is willing to
considerchangesto the process outlined below as suggested by the BistriciCounty.

Disputes between Navigator Schools and the CountyAutherizing District
Navigator Schools and the BistrictCounty will attempt to resolve any disputes amicably and

reasonably without resorting to formal procedures. Navigator Schools acknowledges the
DistrictCounty’s on- going right to inspect and observe Watsonville Prep School under
Education Code Section 47607, and such inspection and observation is not subject to this
dispute resolution mechanism.

In the event of a dispute between WPS and the DisirictCounty, the staff, employees, and
Board members of Navigator Schools and the DistrictCounty agree firstto frame the issue in
written format (“dispute statement”) and refer the issue to the DistrictCounty Superintendent
and the Chief Executive Officer of Navigator Schools, or their respective designees. In the event
the DistriciCounty believes the dispute relates to an issue that could lead to the revocation of
the charterin accordance with Education Code Section 47607, Navigator requests this be
noted in the written dispute statement although it recognizes it cannot legally bind the
DistrictCounty to do so. However, participation in the dispute resolution procedures
outlined in this section shall not be interpreted to impede or as a prerequisite to the
DistrictCounty’s ability to proceed with revocation with Education Code Section 47607 and
its implementing regulations.

The CEO and the Superintendent, or their respective designees, will informally meet and confer
in atimely fashion to attempt to resolve the dispute, no later than ten (10) business days from
receiptofthe dispute statement. Inthe eventthisinformal meetingfails toresolve the dispute,
both parties shall identify two Board members from their respective governing boards who
shall jointly meet with the Superintendent and the CEOQO, or their respective designees, and
attempt to resolve the dispute within twenty (20) business days from receipt of the dispute
statement.

If this joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the Superintendent and the CEO, or their
respective designees, will meet to jointly identify a neutral third party mediator to engage the
partiesinamediation sessiondesignedtofacilitate resolution ofthe dispute. The formatofthe
mediation session will be developed jointly by the Superintendent and the CEO, or their

257 Page 127 of135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

respective designees. Mediation shall be held within sixty (60) business days of receipt ofthe
dispute statement. The costs of the mediator will be split equally between the

istrictCounty and Navigator Schools. If mediation does not resolve the dispute either party
may pursue any other remedy available under the law. All timelines in this section may be
revised upon mutual written agreement of the DistrictCounty and Navigator Schools. The
only binding results are those to which both parties mutually agree, in advance. During this
process, neither party will make public comment.

Internal Disputes at WPS

Disputes regarding internal matters of WPS, such as complaints or concerns from students,
parents/guardians, community members, and staff, will be handled in accordance with the
internal complaint policies and procedures, including a Uniform Complaint Policy and
Procedure, as adopted by the Board of Directors, and required by state law. Students,
parents/guardians, volunteers, and staffatthe Charter School shallbe provided with a copy of
the Charter School’s complaint policies and procedures. Should the CountyBistrict
receive any complaints regarding WPS, it will promptly forward them to Navigator Schools for
investigation and resolution.

(Appendix W: Sample Family Handbook)

258 Page 128 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Element 15: School Closure Procedures

“The procedures to be used ifthe charter school closes. The procedures shall ensure a final
auditofthe charterschoolto determine the disposition ofallassets and liabilities ofthe charter
school, including plansfordisposing ofany netassets andforthe maintenance andtransferof
pupil records.” Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(0)

Closure of Watsonville Prep School will be documented by official action of the Navigator
Schools Board of Directors. The action willidentify the reason for closure. The official action
willalsoidentify an entity and person or persons responsible for closure-related activities.

The Charter School will promptly notify parents and students of WPS, the District; the Santa
Cruz County Office of Education, Navigator's SELPA, the retirement systems in which Navigator
Schools’ employees participate (e.g. State Teachers’ Retirement System and federal social
security), and the California Department of Education of the closure as well as the effective
date ofthe closure. This notice willalso include the name(s) of and contactinformation forthe
person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be made regarding the closure, the pupils’ school
districts of residence, and the mannerin which parents/guardians may obtain copies of pupil
records, including specific information on completed courses and credits that meet graduation
requirements.

The Charter School will ensure the closure notification to the parents and students of WPS
provides information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative programs.
This notice will be provided promptly following the Board’s decision to close Watsonville Prep
School.

The Charter School will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have
completed, together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which they will
provide to the entity responsible for closure-related activities.

As applicable, WPS will provide parents, students, and the CountyBistrict with copies of all
appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next
school. All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the Family Educational
Rights and Privacy Act (‘FERPA”),20 U.S.C. Section 1232g. WPS will ask the CountyBistrictto
store original records of WPS students. All pupil records of WPS shall be transferred to the
CountyBistrictuponthe closure of the Charter School. Ifthe CountyBistriet willnot or cannot
store the records, WPS will work with the County Office of Education to determine a suitable
alternative location for storage.

All state assessment results, special education records, and personnel records will be
transferred to and maintained by the entity responsible for closure-related activities in

259 Page 129 0f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

accordance with applicable law.

As soon as reasonably practical, WPS will prepare final financial records. Navigator Schools will
also have an independent audit completed within six months after closure. Navigator Schools
will pay forthe final audit. The auditwillbe prepared by a qualified Certified Public Accountant
selected by the Navigator Schools Board of Directors and will be provided to the
CountyBistriet promptly uponits completion. The final audit willinclude an accounting of all
financial assets, including cash and accounts receivable, an inventory of property,
equipment, other items of value, an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts
payable and any reduction in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other
investigations, loans, and unpaid staff compensation, and an assessment of the disposition
of any restricted funds received by or due to WPS.

Navigator Schools will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education
Code section47604.33.

Onclosure of WPS, all assets of Navigator Schools, including but notlimited to allleaseholds,
personal property, intellectual property, and all ADA apportionments and other revenues
generated by students attending WPS, remain the sole property of Navigator Schools and, upon
the dissolution of the non-profit public benefit corporation, shall be distributed in accordance
withthe Articles of Incorporation. Any assets acquired fromthe CouryBistrictor CountyBistrict
property will be promptly returned upon Charter School closure to the BistriciCounty. The
distribution shall include return of any grant funds and restricted categorical funds to their
source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as appropriate,
which may include submission of finalexpenditurereportsforentitlementgrantsandthefiling
of any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance Reports, as well as the
return of any donated materials and property in accordance with any conditions established
when the donation of such materials or property was accepted.

On closure, Navigator Schools shall remain solely responsible for all liabilities arising from the
operation of WPS.

As Watsonville Prep Schoolis operated by a non-profit public benefit corporation, should the
corporation dissolve with the closure of WPS, the Board will follow the procedures set forthin
the California Corporations Code for the dissolution of a non-profit public benefit corporation
and file all necessary filings with the appropriate state and federal agencies.

As specified by the budgetwithin Appendix X, Navigator Schoolswill utilize thereserve fundto
undertake any expenses associated with the closure procedures identified above.

260 Page1300f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Miscellaneous Charter Provisions

Term
The term of the charter shall begin on July 1, 2019 and expire on June 30, 2024

Budgets and Financial Reporting

“The petitioner or petitioners also shall be required to provide financial statements that include
a proposedfirst-yearoperational budget, including startup costs, and cashflow and financial
projections forthe first three years of operation.” Education Code Section 47605(g).

The Chief Executive Officer of Navigator Schools and the treasurer of the Navigator Schools
Board of Directors has developed a conservative financial plan based on the most current public
funding projections. Attachedas Appendix X, thefollowingbudgetdocumentsareincluded:

e Budget narrative

e Five year budgetprojections

¢ Revenue and Expenditureassumptions

¢ Five-year monthly cash flow projections

e Evidence of a strong reserve fund

Navigator Schools will provide reports to the Bistrictand-County Superintendent of Schools, as
follows, in accordance with Education Code Section 47604.33, and will provide additional fiscal
reports as requested by the CountyBistrict:

e ByJuly1,apreliminary budgetforthe currentfiscal year. Foracharterschoolinitsfirst
year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition pursuant to
Education Code Section 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.

e By July 1, alocal control and accountability plan and an annual update to LCAP required
pursuant to Education Code Section 47606.5

e By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year, reflecting
changes through October 31. Additionally, on December 15, a copy of Navigator
Schools’ annualindependent financial audit report for the preceding fiscal year will be
delivered to the District-State Controller, California Department of Education and
County Superintendent of Schools.

e By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting
changes through January 31

o By September 15, afinal unaudited report for the full prior year. The report submitted
to the CountyBistrict shall include an annual statement of all Navigator’s receipts
and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.

Cost of Living
Navigator Schools has assumed a modest COLA during the 5-year period. Keeping revenue
projections conservative, Navigator has continuedtoincrease salary levels and expense costs at

261 Page1310f135



NavigatorSchools Watsonville Prep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

inflationary or above projections. Detail of the anticipated COLA can be found in Appendix X.
Staffing

Navigator is fully staffed to support the program as described but may add additional staff to
support programs. A detailed year-by-year staffing plan with projected salary and benefit costs

is included in Appendix X.

Staff Development
Navigator commits annually to funding professional development. Detailed projected
expenditures for staff development are included in Appendix X.

Facilities
“The facilities to be utilized by the school. The description of the facilities to be used by the
charter school shall specify where the school intends to locate.” Education Code Section
47605(g).

Watsonville Prep Schoolwillbe located withinthe city boundaries of Watsonville. Watsonville
Prep will seek to operate in District facilities, as it is important for the Charter School to be
located within the Watsonville community. In partnership with the District, WPS will be
interested in securing along-term lease on District facilities to provide a stable, safe learning
environment for students and families. WPS may exercise its rights under Proposition 39 to
secure affordable, quality facilities. (To illustrate this interest, see Appendix Y for Intent to
Enroll Forms) WPS will be committed to serving the Watsonville community and thus intends to
operate within the city boundaries of Watsonville. To ensure that WPS is able to provide its
entire academic program and extra-curricular activities necessary for a kindergarten through
eighth grade program, the facility will require access to the following:
e Classrooms: Aminimum of 20 classrooms of atleast 960 square feet per classroom
e Multipurpose room, gymnasium and cafeteria with adequate space to safely prepare
and serve breakfast and lunch to the entire student body
¢ Special education resourceroom
o Sufficient number of restrooms for students and staff
o Office space foradministrative staff (including Principal, Vice Principals, Office Manager,
Office Assistant, and Counselor)
¢ Routine access to fields large enough for physical education and afterschool sports
programs
Whereas addressing charter school facilities needs can put a strain on the relationship between
a school district and the charter school, and whereas Watsonville Prep desires to develop a
positive and collaborative relationship with PVUSD, and whereas WPS seeks to positively
contribute to the overall student housing needs for students residing in Watsonville, WPS is
actively evaluating available community facilities not owned by PVUSD to operate WPS in
accordance with all local permitting and building code requirements.

262 Page1320f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Potential Civil Liability Effects
“Potential civil liability effects, ifany, upon the school and upon the school district.” Education
Code Section 47605(g).

Watsonville Prep School is operated by Navigator Schools, a California will have a minimal

impact on the County-PajareValleyUnified-SchoolBistrict. The following impacts are restated

here for clarity:

Oversight

Pursuant to California law, the CountyBistrict will be required to provide oversight and
performance monitoring services, including monitoring school and student performance data,
reviewing the school’s audit reports, performing annual site visits, engaging in any
necessary dispute resolution processes, and considering charter amendment and renewal
requests. Pursuant to Education Code Section 47613(a), the CountyBistrict may charge for the
actual costs of supervisorial oversight of the Charter School not to exceed one (1) percent of
the revenue of the Charter School. The CountyBistrictmay charge up to three (3) percent of
therevenue ofthe Charter Schoolif the Charter Schoolis able to obtain substantially rentfree
facilities fromthe CountyBistrict. Pursuant to Education Code Section47613(f), “revenue of
the charter school” is defined as the amount received in the currentfiscal year from the local
control funding formula calculated pursuant to Education Code Section 42238.02, as
implemented by Education Code Section 42238.03. Navigator Schools’ operating budget
reflects the oversight fee to be paid annually to the CountyBistrict.

Insurance Coverage

WPS will maintain insurance which is based on requirements outlined in the MOU between
Navigator and the County-PVUJSD, including but not limited to general liability, workers’
compensation, and other necessary insurance.

Potential Civil Liability Effects
“Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and upon the school district.”
Education Code Section 47605(g).

Watsonville Prep School is operated by Navigator Schools, a California non-profit public benefit
corporation. This corporationis organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue
and Taxation Code Section 23701(d).

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(c), an entity that grants a charter to a charter school
operated by or as a non-profit public benefit corporation will not be liable for the debts or
obligations of the charter school or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors, or
omissions bythe charterschoolifthe authority has complied with alloversightresponsibilities

263 Page1330f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

required by law. Navigator Schools will work diligently to assistthe CountyBistrictin meeting
anyand all oversight obligations under the law, including monthly meetings, reporting, or
other requested protocol to ensure the CountyBistrict will not be liable for the operation
of Navigator Schools.

Further, Navigator Schools intends to enter into a memorandum of understanding with the
district, wherein Navigator Schools will indemnify the CountyBistrict for the actions of WPS
underthis charter.

The corporate bylaws of Navigator Schools provide forindemnification of the Board, officers,
agents, and employees, and Navigator shall purchase and maintain general liability insurance,
Boardmembers’ &officers’insurance, andfidelity bondingto secure againstfinancialrisks.

As stated above, insurance amounts are based on the terms of the MOU. The CountyBistrictis
named an additional insured on the general liability insurance of Navigator Schools.

The Navigator Schools Board of Directors institutes appropriate risk management practices as
discussed herein, including screening of employees, establishing codes of conduct for students,
and dispute resolution.

Administrative Services
“The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided.”
Education Code Section 47605(g).

Navigator Schools provides most of its own administrative services including, but not limited to,
financial management, accounts payable/receivable, payroll, human resources, and
instructional program development. When appropriate, Navigator Schools contracts with
appropriately qualified and/or credentialed outside, third-party contractors to provide
administrative services as necessary. In the event any administrative services are to be
provided by the CountyBistrict, the specifics will be agreed to in a Memorandum of

Understanding, between Navigator Schools and -the CountyPajare-\Valley Unified-School
SHEHE

Navigator Schools does not contract with any third party that has financial or other monetary
gain from the services rendered.

264 Page1340f135



NavigatorSchools WatsonvillePrep SchoolCharterPetition

2019-2024

Appendix A
AppendixB
AppendixC
AppendixD
AppendixE
AppendixF
AppendixG
AppendixH
Appendix|
AppendixJ
AppendixK
AppendixL
Appendix M
AppendixN
AppendixO
AppendixP
AppendixQ
AppendixR
Appendix S
AppendixT
AppendixU
AppendixV
Appendix W
Appendix X
AppendixY

Appendices

Intent to Enroll Forms/Signatures of Interested Teachers
Background Information of Founding Team
Organization Chart for Navigator Schools

Northern Central Coast Regional School Performance
Coaching Rubric & Checklist

Sample Chants

Proposed Bell Schedule & Master Schedule

Sample Calendar(2017/2018)

Data Meeting Template

Navi101/201 Schedule

ElDorado County Charter SELPA Letterof Good Standing & Intent
Sample 504 Procedures

SELPA Procedures, Participation Agreement, and Forms
Navigator Schools Articles of Incorporation
Navigator Schools Corporate Bylaws

Navigator Schools ConflictofInterestCode

Biographies ofNavigator Schools Board of Directors
Navigator Schools Employee Handbook

Sample Benefits Record

Suicide Prevention Policy

Emergency Preparedness Plan

Watsonville Prep School Outreach Plan

Navigator Schools Family Handbook

Financial Materials, Including 5-Year Budget Projections and Cash Flow
Intent to EnrollForms

1350f1
265 Page1350f135



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
RESOLUTION # 18-10

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
CONDITIONALLY APPROVING THE CHARTER PETITION FOR THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF WATSONVILLE PREP SCHOOL

WHEREAS, on or about March 28, 2018, the Pajaro Valley Unified School District (PVUSD)
received a charter petition (“Petition”) from Navigator Schools, a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation (“Petitioners”) proposing the establishment of Watsonville Prep School
(“Charter School”);

WHEREAS, consistent with Education Code section 47605 subdivision (b), the PVUSD Board
of Trustees voted to deny the Petition on or about May 23, 2018;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code section 47605 subdivision (j), Petitioners submitted
the Petition on or about June 19, 2018, to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education
(*SCCOE™);

WHEREAS, in accordance with Education Code section 47605 subdivision (b), on July 19,
2018, the Santa Cruz County Board of Education (“County Board”) held a public hearing on the
provisions of the charter, at which time the County Board heard and considered statements from
the Charter School, PVUSD, and the public;

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Charter Review Team undertook an
extensive review of the Petition and all documents attached to the Petition.

WHEREAS, the County Board has convened on August 16, 2018 to consider whether to grant
or deny the Petition;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz County Board of
Education conditionally approves the Petition for a five year educational term, subject to the
following conditions. The term shall expire on June 30, 2023. Failure of Petitioners to satisfy
the conditions as set forth below constitutes a denial of the Petition.

1. Local Parent/Community Involvement in Governance

The Petition shall be modified to add a voting position to the Petitioner’s Board of
Directors for a Watsonville Prep School parent and to hold the Charter School’s board
meetings in a location convenient to parents of Watsonville Prep School.

2. Transitional Kindergarten

The Petition shall be modified to provide a description of Petitioner’s Transitional
Kindergarten Program, which shall have a developmentally appropriate curriculum and
assessment plan which meet the requirements of EC Section 48000(a) and are aligned to
the CA Preschool Learning Foundations and the CA Preschool Curriculum Frameworks
per Senate Bill 858.

266



3. Services for English Language Learners

The Petition shall be revised to allow English Learners to be redesignated as Fluent
English Proficient in any grade.

4. Facilities

The Petition shall be amended to include a Facility Plan, which shall include a
description of the Petitioner’s facility options for the operation of its school. The Facility
Plan shall include a detailed description of desired facilities, related costs, and their
intention to pursue or not pursue a Prop 39 request in accordance with Education Code
section 47605(g). Petitioner shall also provide an updated budget to include potential
rental expense projections.

5. Operational MOU

The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), attached hereto, between the County Board,
the SCCOE and the Charter School, shall be approved by all parties by October 1, 2018.

THEREFORE, based on the above findings, individually and collectively, the County Board
makes the following conclusions in accordance with Education Code section 47605. The above
conditions must be fully addressed to the satisfaction of the County Board on or before October
1, 2018. In the event they are not, the Petition is hereby denied as set forth below. The above
findings constitute that the Petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of
all required elements of a Charter Petition set forth in Education Code 47605.6(b)(5).

THEREFORE, the County Board approves the MOU attached hereto. In the event the Petition
is denied, the MOU shall automatically terminate.

THEREFORE, based upon the above findings and conclusions, the County Board denies the
Petition in the event that the conditions are not met by October 1, 2018.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 16" day
of August 2018.

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Bruce Van Allen, Board President Michael Watkins, Secretary to the Board
Santa Cruz County Board of Education Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools

267



SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
RESOLUTION # 18-11

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
DENYING THE CHARTER PETITION FOR THE
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE WATSONVILLE PREP SCHOOL

WHEREAS, on or about March 28, 2018, the Pajaro Valley Unified School District (PVUSD)
received a charter petition (“Petition”) from Navigator Schools, a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation (“Petitioners™) proposing the establishment of Watsonville Prep School
(“Charter School”);

WHEREAS, consistent with Education Code section 47605 subdivision (b), the PVUSD Board
of Trustees voted to deny the Petition on or about May 23, 2018;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code section 47605 subdivision (j), Petitioners submitted
the Petition on or about June 19, 2018, to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education
(“SCCOE™);

WHEREAS, in accordance with Education Code section 47605 subdivision (b), on July 19,
2018, the Santa Cruz County Board of Education (“County Board”) held a public hearing on the
provisions of the charter, at which time the County Board heard and considered statements from
the Charter School, PVUSD, and the public;

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Charter Review Team undertook an
extensive review of the Petition and all documents attached to the Petition.

WHEREAS, the County Board has convened on August 16, 2018 to consider whether to grant
or deny the Petition;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Santa Cruz County Board of Education
hereby adopts the Proposed Findings of Fact set forth in the Alternative Action of the Staff Report,
attached hereto as Exhibit "A," as its own.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that based on the Proposed Findings of Fact attached hereto as
Exhibit "A," (Staff Report), the Petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions
of all required elements of a Charter Petition set forth in Education Code 47605.6(b)(5)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that for the reasons given above, the Petition is hereby denied.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Santa Cruz County Board of Education on this 16" day
of August 2018.

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Bruce Van Allen, Board President Michael Watkins, Secretary to the Board
Santa Cruz County Board of Education Santa Cruz County Superintendent of Schools

268



	August 2018 - Board Agenda
	REC - Special Board Minutes - July 19,  2018
	Special Meeting Minutes - July 19, 2018
	REC - Regular Board Minutes - July 19, 2018
	Regular Meeting Minutes - July 19, 2018
	REC - Budget Revisions
	Budget Revisions
	REC - Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Report 063016
	REC - Donations
	Watsonville Prep School PowerPoint
	SCCOE_Staff Report_8-8-2018_ Legal Review_v8
	SCCOE_WPS_MOU_8-8-2018_Legal Review_v8
	Navigator Schools Appeal to Santa Cruz County Office of Education .pdf
	WPS Redline Charter Appeal to SCCOE 6.21.18


	Resolution 18-10 Conditional Approval
	Resolution 18-11 Denial



